SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
443 24TH STREET
SAN LEON, TEXAS 77539

Regular Meeting

Notice is hereby given of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Leon Municipal
Utility District at 6:30 p.m., Wednesday, September 18, 2019 at the San Leon Volunteer Fire
Department 337 12™ Street, San Leon, Texas for the purpose of Discuss/Consideration and
Act/Approval upon the following matters:

Call Meeting to Order;
Comments from District Residents;
Consider and Approve a Proposed Development at 1438 24™ for Rajiv Patel;
Discuss and Approve Audit for Fiscal Year End June 30, 2019,
Conduct a Public Hearing Concerning Adoption of District Tax Rate, Close Public Hearing
and Adopt a District Tax Rate;
Approval of the POS; Approve a date for the sale of the bonds in October; Approve
submittal of documents to Moody’s and bond insurance companies; Authorize
advertisement in the Galveston Daily News and the Texas Bond Reporter; Select a Paying
Agent and Escrow Agent; Anything else necessary to complete the bond sale; Approve
engagement of special tax counsel;
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on August 21, 2019;
Consider and Approve the Engineer’s Report;
Consider and Approve the Field Superintendent’s Report;
District Manager’s Report;
Consider and Approve the Office Manager’s Report;
Discuss and Follow up on Qutstanding Issues;
Director’s Report;
Recess into Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.071/551.072 and 551.07 of the
Texas Government Code regarding;
o Consultation with District’s Attorney;
= Personnel Matters;
Return to Regular Session and Act on Matters Discussed in Executive Session;
Adjourn Meeting;

#* ¥ ¥ ® *

# ¥ ¥ O* % % B ¥

Prepared by:

'( }

Janice Hoffman, Office Manager

Filing Date: 09/12/2019 8:08AM

I hereby certify that this instrument was FILED on the date and time stamped hereon
and RECORDED in the OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS of Galveston County, Texas.

Dwight D. Sullivan, County Clerk
Galveston County, Texas

DO NOT DESTROY - Warning, this document is part of the Official Public Record.



Re: 1438 24th Street

Date 9/10/2019 11:04 AM
From amiller@slmud.org on behalf of Andrew Miller
Actionable/To slmud1@slmud.org

Appreciate the site plan! I've notified our office manager to place you on the agenda for next week's meeting on
Wednesday at 6:30 PM at the fire station.

Get Outlook for Android

From: Andrew Miller

Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 11:01:32 AM
To: San Leon MUD <sImudl1@slmud.org>
Subject: Fwd: 1438 24th Street

Please add these individuals to the agenda for next week.

Get Outlook for Android

From: Rajiv Patel <rajivpatel1025@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 10:58:14 AM
To: Andrew Miller <amiller@sImud.org>
Subject: 1438 24th Street

To Mr.Miller,

I'm writing this letter of intent as per your request to be put onto the board meeting agenda. Here are the details of what we
hope to work alongside your office on:

We are looking to have 7 additional taps allocated and made available for a redevelopment on our property located on 1438
24th street. We have previously had 8 taps on this property so the infrastructure and appropriate pipelines are already in
place for those. We are formally requesting to add only 7 more for a total of 15 (8 existing and 7 new). When we spoke on the
phone you mentioned San Leon MUDs desire to continue growing and we hope to be a part of this long term plan. Please let
me know if you have any questions and we look forward to hearing from you soon.

l.e: | have attached a site plan below as per request below.

(@ OPTION B Revisited.pdf


https://aka.ms/ghei36
https://aka.ms/ghei36
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B_KL6YQZLOAvQVc3Zm1mRnJZOWM2QUFUd0toNC1EVnVmLWNv/view?usp=drivesdk

OPTION B2 : 15 UNITS
- Assumes 20’ setback on all sides
- 15" distance between units

- 24" Two-way road

- 3153 SF pond surface area



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

JUNE 30, 2019



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REQUIRED SUPFLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL-GENERAL FUND

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-REQUIRED BY THE WATER DISTRICT FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT GUIDE

NOTES REQUIRED BY THE WATER DISTRICT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDE
(Included in the notes to the financial statements)

SERVICES AND RATES

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
INVESTMENTS

TAXES LEVIED AND RECEIVABLE
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
CHANGES IN LONG-TERM BOND DEBT

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES GENERAL FUND
AND DEBT SERVICE FUND - FIVE YEARS

BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

ASSESSED VALUE BY CLASSIFICATION

ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT

g-11

31-33

34-35

36

37-38

30-42

43-44

45-48

49-50

h
(]



McCALL GIBSON SWEDLUND BARFOOT PLLC

Certified Public Accountants
13100 Wortham Center Drize
Sutte 235 9600 Great Hills Trail
Houston, Texas 77065-5610 Suite 1501V
(713) 462-0341 Austin, Texas 78759
Fax (713) 462-2708 (512) 610-2209
E-Mail: mgsh@mgsbplic.com wunp.mgshplle.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
San Leon Municipal Utility District
Galveston County, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major
fund of San Leon Municipal Utility District (the “District”™), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CITOT.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant o the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in
the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Dastrict’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes cvaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Member af
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Texas Society of Certified Public Accountanis



Board of Directors
San Leon Municipal
Utility District

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the District as of June
30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplemeniary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — General Fund be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurancc.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information required by the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality as published in the Water District Financial Management Guide
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
supplementary information, excluding that portion marked “Unaudited” on which we express no opinion
or provide any assurance, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures., including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statementis themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion. the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

September 18, 2019



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Management's discussion and analysis of San Leon Municipal Utility District’s (the “District”)
financial performance provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019. Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial statements.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The basic financial statements
include: (1) combined fund financial statements and government-wide financial statements and
(2) notes to the financial statements. The combined fund financial statements and govemment-
wide financial statements combine both: (1) the Statement of Net Position and Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet and (2) the Statement of Activities and Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances. This report also includes required and
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District’s annual report includes two financial statements combining the government-wide
financial statements and the fund financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the District’s overall status.
Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector with
its basis in full accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of intemal activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes the District’s assets, liabilities, and, if applicable,
deferred inflows and outflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of
the District would extend to other non-financial factors.

The Statement of Activities reports how the District’s net position changed during the current
fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The combined statements also include fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The District has three governmental fund types. The General Fund
accounts for resources not accounted for in another fund, customer service revenues, operating
costs and general expenditures. The Debt Service Fund accounts for ad valorem taxes and
financial resources restricted. committed or assigned for servicing bond debt and the cost of
assessing and collecting taxes. The Capital Projects Fuind accounts for financial resources
restricted, committed or assigned for acquisition or construction of facilities and related costs.



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The focus in the fund statements provides a distinctive view of the District’s governmental
funds. These statements report short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of spendable
resources and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. They are useful
in evaluating annual financing requirements of the District and the commitment of spendable
resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two
perspectives may provide insight into the long-term impact of shori-term financing decisions.
The adjustments columns, the Reconciliation of the Govemmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position and the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities explains
the differences between the two presentations and assists in understanding the differences
between these two perspectives.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full
understanding of the government-wide and fund financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information (“RSI”). A budgetary comparison schedule is included as
RSI for the General Fund.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position. In the
case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $5.400,749 as of June 30, 2019. A portion of
the District’s net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (water and wastewater
facilities as well as vehicles and equipment less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding).



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)
A comparative analysis of government-wide changes in net position is presented below:

Summary of Changes in the Statement of Net Position

Change
Positive
2019 2018 (Negative)
Current and Other Assets b 5,547,022 $ 6,201,514 b (654,492)
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation) 11,612 344 11,588,260 24,084
Total Assets $ 17.159.366 $ 17,789,774 $ (630.408)
Bonds and Notes Payable $ 11.004,259 $§ 11,501.090 g 496,831
Other Liabilities 754 358 679,155 (75.203)
Total Liabilities $ 11,758.617 $ 12,180,245 $ 421.628
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 1.623.937 $ 2,569.789 $ (945,832)
Restricted 1,686,588 1.803.217 (116.629)
Unrestricted 2,090,224 1.236.523 853,701
Total Net Position 3 5,400,749 8 5,609,529 $ (208.780)

The following table provides a summary of the District’s operations for the years ending June 30,
2019, and June 30, 2018.

Summary of Changes in the Statement of Activities

Change
Positive
2019 2018 {Negative)
Revenues:
Property Taxes g 1,612.478 b 1.525.055 3 87423
Charges for Services 3,693,329 3,296,214 397,115
Other Revenues 196,423 183,631 12,792
Total Revenues hY 3.502.230 h 5.004.900 $ 497330
Expenses for Services 5,711,010 5,039.468 (671.5342)
Change in Net Position $ (208.780) 3% (34568) §$ (174,212)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 5,609,529 5.644.097 (34.568)
Net Position, End of Year 8 5.400.749 5 5,609.329 $ (208.780)




SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The District’s combined fund balances as of June 30, 2019, were $4,614,490, a decrease of
$758,598 from the prior year.

The General Fund fund balance increased by $822,585, primarily due to transfers from the
Capital Projects Fund to reimburse for inflow and infiltration expenditures.

The Debt Service Fund fund balance decreased by $114,416, primarily due to the structure of the
District’s debt service requirements.

The Capital Projects Fund fund balance decreased by $1,466,767, primarily due to transfers to
the General Fund and expenditures paid from bond proceeds received in a prior year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Board of Directors did not amend the budget during the current fiscal vear. Actual revenues
were $141,506 lower than budgeted revenues, primarily due to lower than anticipated wastewater
revenues, offset by higher than anticipated tap conmection and inspection fees. Actual
expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by $123.792, primarly due to higher than
anticipated repairs and maintenance and bad debt expense.

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets as of June 30, 2019, total $11,612.344 (net of accumulated depreciation) and
include land, buildings, vehicles and equipment as well as the water and wastewater systems.

Significant capital asset activity during the year included

Capital Assets At Year-End, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Change
Positive
2019 2018 (Negative)
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land and Land Improvements $ 151,807 $ 151.807 b
Construction in Progress 491,660 491.660
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation:
Buildings, Vehicles, and Equipment 274,433 341,355 (66,922)
Water System 5.391.,779 5,361,816 (170,037)
Wastewater System 5.302.665 5.533.282 (230,617

Total Net Capital Assets § 11,612,344 $ 11588260 $ 24.084




SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY

As of June 30, 2019, the District had total bond debt payable of $11,065,000. The changes in the
debt position of the District during the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2019. are summarized as
follows:

Bond Debt Payable, July 1, 2018 $§ 11,530,000
Less: Bond Principal Paid 465,000
Bond Debt Payable, June 30, 2019 § 11,065,000

The District's Series 2013 and 2017 bonds carry an insured rating of “AA” by virtue of bond
insurance issued by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation and Municipal Assurance Corp.,
respectively. The District’s underlying rating is “BBB+" (S&P) and “A3” (Moody’s).

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to San Leon Municipal Utility District, 443 24t Qtreet, San
Leon, Texas 77539.



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Cash
Investments

JUNE 30, 2019

Cash with Galveston County Tax Office

Receivables:
Property Taxes

Penalty and Interest on Delinquent Taxes
Service Accounts (Net of Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts of $130,000)

Due from Other Funds
Land
Construction in Progress

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

TOTAL ASSETS

Debt

General Fund Service Fund

$ 776,950 $ 121,952

1,556,912 1,331,113

2,269 1,750

138,731 118,651
299,227

192.330

$§ 2774089 §  1.765.7%6

The accompanying notes to the financial
statements are an integral part of this report.

-8



Capital Statement of
Projects Fund Total Adjustments Net Position
$ 354048 § 1252950 § § 1,252.950

805.419 3,693 444 3.693.444
4019 4.019
257382 257,382
40,000 40,000
299,227 299,227
497 192,827 (192,827)
151,807 131,807
491,660 491.660
10.968.877 10.968.877
$ 1159964 $ 5699849 8§ 11459517 $ 17,139,366

The accompanying notes to the financial
statements are an integral part of this report.

9.



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2019

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Interest Payable

Due to Other Funds

Security Deposits

Long-Term Liabilities:
Bonds Payable. Due Within One Year
Bonds Payable. Due After One Year

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property Taxes

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for Authorized Construction
Restricted for Debt Service
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes to the financial

Debt
General Fund Service Fund
$ 196238  $
192,827
294 800
$ 683.863 $ -0=
$ 138,731 3 118.651
$ $
1.647.145
1.951.493
$ 1.951.493 h 1.647.143
$ 2.774.089 $ 1.765.796

statements are an integral part of this report.

- 10~



Capital Statement of
Projects Fund Total Adjustments Net Position
$ 144,112 340,350 $ 340,350

119,208 115,208
192,827 (192.827)
294,800 294,800
490,000 490,000
10,514,239 10,514,259
$ 144112 827977 $§ 10,930,640 11,758,617
$ -0- 257382 $  (257.382) -0
$ 1,015,852 1015852 $§ (1.015.852)
1,647.145 (1.647.145)
1,951,493 (1,951,493)
§ 1015852 4,614,490 $  (4.614.490) -0-
$ 1159964 5,699,849
$ 1,623,937 $ 1623937
1,686,588 1,686,588
2,090,224 2,090,224
§  5.400,749 5,400,749

The accompanying notes to the financial
statements are an integral part of this report.

i



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 4,614,490

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities arc not current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as assets in the governmental funds. 11.612.344

Deferred inflows of resources related to property tax revenues and penalty and
interest receivable an delinguent taxes for the 2018 and prior tax levies became part
of recognized revenue in the governmental activities of the District. 297.382

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. These liabilities at year end
consist of’

Accrued Interest Payable $ (119.208)
Bonds Payable (11,004,239) (11,123.467)
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 3 5.400.749

The accompanying notes to the financial
statements are an integral part of this report.

-12-



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Debt
General Fund Service Fund
REVENUES

Property Taxes $ 936,834 $ 652,330

Water Service 1,352,900

Wastewater Service 1,029,799

Street Lighting 124,587

Fire Fighting Service 264 318

Solid Waste Service 561,140

Penalty and Interest 34.444 57.456

Tap Connection and Inspection Fees 268685

Miscellaneous Revenues 127887 25,790
TOTAL REVENUES 5 4,700,594 5 735,576
EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Service Operations:

Personnel g 929,969 $

Protessional Fees 142,376 18.268
Contracted Services 881.267 713
Purchased Water 514,338

Utilities 116,562

Repairs and Maintenance 1.253,521

Street Lighfing 73,372

Depreciation

Other 668,056

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:

Bond Prneipal 465,000
Bond Interest 366.009
Note Principal 29,478
Note Interest 553
TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES by 4,609,492 b 849,992
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES 3 91,102 3 (114.416)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In(Out) 3 731,483 $ -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES b 822 585 3 (114,416)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION - JULY 1, 2018 1,128,908 1,761,561
FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION - JUNE 30, 2019 3 1,931,493 5 1,647,145

The accompanying notes to the financial
statements are an integral part of this report.

-13-



Capital Statement of
Projects Fund Total Adjustments Activities
$ 1,589,164 b 23314 3 1,612,478
1,352,900 1,352,900
1,029,794 1.029.799
124,587 124,587
264,318 264318
561,140 561,140
91.900 91,900
268,685 268,685
42,746 196,423 196,423
42746 $ 5,478,916 b 23314 3 5.502.230
& 020,969 3 5 929,969
160,644 160,644
881,982 881,982
514338 514,338
116.562 116.562
285,856 1,539,377 1.539.377
73,372 73,372
467,576 467,576
514 668,570 668,570
491,660 491,660 (491,660)
465,000 (463.,000)
366,009 (7.942) 358,067
29.478 (29.478)
353 553
778,030 $ 6,237,314 $ (326,504) § 5,711,010
(735.284) $ (758,598) § 3549818 § (208.780)
(731.483) 3 =0~ 3 -0- 3 -0-
(1.466.767) (758,598) % 758,598 3
(208,780) (208.780)
2.482.619 3,373,088 236,441 5,609.529
1,015,852 by 4,614,490 3 786,259 3 5.400.749

The accompanying notes to the financial
statements are an integral part of this report.

-14-



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO

THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report tax revenues when collected. However, in the Statement
of Activities, revenue is recorded in the accounting period for which the taxes are
levied.

Governmental funds do not account for depreciation. However, in the Statement of
Net Position, capital assets are depreciated and depreciation expense is recorded in
the Statement of Activities.

Governmental funds report capital expenditures as expenditures in the period
purchased. However. in the Statement of Net Position, capital assets are increased by
new purchases and the Statement of Activities is not affected.

Governmental funds report bond principal payments as expenditures. However, in
the Statement of Net Position. bond principal payments are reported as decreases in
long-term liabilities.

Governmental funds report interest expenditures on long-term debt as expenditures in
the year paid. However, in the Statement of Net Position, interest is accrued on the
long-term debt through fiscal year-end.

Governmental funds report note principal payments as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Net Position, note principal payments are reported as decreases in long-
term liabilities.

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes to the tinancial
statements are an integral part of this report.

- 5=

5 (758,598)

23,314

(467.576)

491,660

465,000

7,942

29.478

$ (208.780)



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1. CREATION OF DISTRICT

San Leon Municipal Utility District, located in Galveston County, Texas, (the “District™), was
created May 26, 1965, by House Bill 1082 Chapter 520, Acts of the 39th Legislature of the
State of Texas. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 49 of the Texas Water Code, the District
is empowered to purchase, operate and maintain all facilities, plants and improvements
necessary to provide water, sanitary sewer service, storm sewer drainage, irrigation, solid waste
collections and disposal including recycling, and to construct parks and recreational facilities
for the residents of the District. The District is also empowered to contract for or employ its
own peace officers with powers to make arrests and to establish, operate and maintain a fire
department to perform all fire-fighting activities within the District. The Board of Directors
held its first meeting on March 28, 1973, and the first bonds were sold on July 10, 1975.

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial siatements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™). In addition, the accounting records of
the District are maintained generally in accordance with the Water District Financial
Management Guide published by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (the
“Commission”).

The District is a political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by an elected board.
GASB has established the criteria for determining whether an entity is a primary government or
a component unit of a primary govemment. The prnmary criteria are that it has a separately
elected governing body, it is legally separate, and it 1s fiscally independent of other state and
local governments. Under these criteria, the District is considered a primary government and is
not a component unit of any other government. Additionally. no other entities meet the criteria
for inclusion in the District’s financial statement as component unis.

Financial Statement Presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards Part II, Financial Reporting
(“GASB Codification™).

The GASB Codification set forth standards for external financial reporting for all state and local
government entities, which include a requirement for a Statement of Net Position and a
Statement of Activities. It requires the classification of net position into three components: Net
Investment in Capital Assets; Restricted; and Unrestricted. These classifications are defined as
follows:

w Y=



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

¢ Net Investment in Capital Assets — This component of net position consists of capital
assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages. notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets.

e Restricted Net Position — This component of net position consists of external constraints
placed on the use of assets imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants).
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation of other govemments or constraints imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted Net Position — This component of net position consists of assets that do not
meet the definition of Restricted or Net Investment in Capital Assets.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the
District’s policy to use restricted resources first.

Govemment-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the
District as a whole. The District’s Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities are
combined with the governmental fund financial statements. The District is viewed as a special-
purpose govemment and has the option of combining these financial statements.

The Statement of Net Position is reported by adjusting the governmental fund types to report on
the full accrual basis, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and
receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. Any amounts recorded due to and due
from other funds are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

The Statement of Activities is reported by adjusting the governmental fund types to report only
items related to current vear revenues and expenditures. Items such as capital outlay are
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. Internal activities between
governmental funds, if any, are eliminated by adjustment to obtain net total revenue and
expense of the government-wide Statement of Activities.

=17



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2019

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

As discussed above, the District’s fund financial statements are combined with the government-
wide financial statements. The fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.

Governmental Funds

The District has three governmental funds and considers each to be a major fund.

General Fund - To account for resources not required to be accounted for in another fund,
customer service revenues. operating costs and general expenditures.

Debt Service Fund - To account for ad valorem taxes and financial resources restricted.
committed or assigned for servicing bond debt and the cost of assessing and collecting taxes.

Capital Projects Fund - To account for financial resources restricted, committed or assigned for
acquisition or construction of facilities and related costs.

Basis of Accounting

The District uses the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental fund types. The
modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues when both “measurable and
available” Measurable means the amount can be determined. Available means collectable
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The District
considers revenues reported in governmental funds to be available if they are collectable within
60 days after year end. Also, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-
term debt, which are recognized as expenditures when payment is due.

Property taxes considered available by the District and included in revenue include taxes
collected during the vear and taxes collected after year-end, which were considered available to
defray the expenditures of the current year. Deferred inflows of resources related to property
tax revenues are those taxes which the District does not reasonably expect to be collected soon
enough in the subsequent period to finance current expenditures.

Amounts transferred from one fund to another fund are reported as other financing sources or
uses. Loans by one fund to another fund and amounts paid by one fund for another fund are
reported as interfund receivables and pavables in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet if
there is intent to repay the amount and if the debtor fund has the ability to repay the advance on
a timely basis.

o



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets are reported in
the government-wide Statement of Net Position. All capital assets are valued at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated assets are valued at
their fair market value on the date donated Repairs and maintenance are recorded as
expenditures in the governmental fund incurred and as an expense in the government-wide
Statement of Activities. Capital asset additions, improvements and preservation costs that
extend the life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful life of the
asset. Engineering fees and certain other costs are capitalized as part of the asset.

Assets are capitalized, including infrastructure assets, if they have an original cost greater than
$5.000 and a useful life over two years. Depreciation is calculated on each class of depreciable
property using the straight-line method of depreciation. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Years
Buildings 40
Water System 10-45
Wastewater System 10-45
All Other Equipment 3-20

Budgeting

In compliance with governmental accounting principles, the Board of Directors annually adopts
an unappropriated budget for the General Fund. The budget was not amended during the
current fiscal year.

Pensions
Payments are made into the Social Security system for employees of the District. In addition,
other retirement plan arrangements have been made as further described in Note 10. The

Internal Revenue Service has determined that the directors are considered employees for federal
payToll tax purposes only. Directors do not participate in the retirement plan.

-19-



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recognized within the
various financial statements. In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement
of Activities, the governmental activities are presented using the economic Iesources
measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination
of operating income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. All assets and
liabilities associated with the activities are reported. Fund equity is classified as net position.

Govemmental fund types are accounted for on a spending or financial flow measurement focus.
Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are included on the Balance Sheet, and
the reported fund balances provide an indication of available spendable or appropriable
resources. Operating statements of governmental fund types report increases and decreases in
available spendable resources. Fund balances in govemmental funds are classified using the
following hierarchy:

Nonspendable: amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The District does not
have any nonspendable fund balances.

Restricted: amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional
provisions, or enabling legislation, or because of constraints that are imposed externally.

Committed: amounts that can be spent only for purposes determined by a formal action of the
Board of Directors. The Board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the District.
This action must be made no later than the end of the fiscal year. Commitments may be
established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the
Board. The District does not have any committed fund balances.

Assigned: amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, but
that are intended to be used for specific purposes. The District has not adopted a formal policy
regarding the assignment of fund balances and does not have any assigned fund balances.
Unassigned. all other spendable amounts in the General Fund.

When expenditures are incurred for which resiricted, committed, assigned or unassigned fund

balances are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of restricted
funds, then committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

-20-



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management [0 make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3. LONG-TERM DEBT

Refunding
Series 2012 Series 2013 Series 2017
Amounts Outstanding —

June 30, 2019 $1,775.000 $ 6,380,000 $2,910,000
Interest Rates 3.40% 3.00% - 4.25% 2.25% -3.253%
Maturity Dates — Serially September 1, September 1, September 1,

Beginning/Ending 2019/2025 2019/2033 2015/2037
Interest Payment Dates September 1/ September 1/ September 1/

March 1 March 1 March 1
Callable Dates N/A September 1, 2020* September 1, 2024*

* On any date thereafter, at a price equal to the par value plus accrued interest from the most
recent interest payment date to the date fixed for redemption. The Series 2017 term bonds
maturing September 1, 2029, September 1, 2031, September 1, 2033, September 1, 2035
and September 1, 2037 are subject to mandatory redemption beginning September 1, 2028,
September 1, 2030, September 1, 2032, September 1, 2034 and September 1, 2036,
respectively.

The following is a summary of transactions regarding bonds pavable for the vear ended June 30,
2019:

July I, Tune 30,
2018 Additions Retirements 2019

Bonds Payable $ 11,530,000 $ $ 463,000 $ 11,065,000
Unamortized Discounts (152.983) (10,329) (142,654)
Unamortized Premiums 94.395 12.682 81913
Bonds Payable, Net $ 11471612 b (- $ 467,333 $ 11,004,259

Amount Due Within One Year 8 490,000

Amount Due After One Year 10,514,259

Bonds Payable, Net $ 11,004,259

I



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 3. LONG-TERM DERT (Continued)

As of June 30, 2019, the debt service requirements on the bonds outstanding were as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 490,000 $ 348,762 b 838,762
2021 510,000 330,707 840,707
2022 530,000 313,075 843,075
2023 555,000 295,800 830,800
2024 375,000 277,810 852,810
2025-2029 3,300,000 1,101,544 4,401,544
2030-2034 4,245,000 508,606 4.753.606
2035-2038 860,000 57,009 917,009
$ 11,065,000 $ 3,233,313 $ 14,298,313

On May 4, 2019, the District voters authorized the issuance of $39,840,000 in bonds for the
purpose of construction and acquisition of water, sewer and drainage facilities and
improvements. As of June 30, 2019, the District had authorized but unissued bonds in the
amount of $5.000,000. The bonds are payable from the proceeds of an ad valorem tax levied
upon all property subject to taxation within the District, without limitation as to rate or amount.

Subsequent to year-end, the District anticipates closing on the sale of its Series 2019 Unlimited
Tax Bonds in the amount of $22.750,000. The District anticipates using the proceeds for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion, 487 outfall line and to finance certain engineering and
bond issuance costs. As of the date of this report, the bonds have not been sold.

During the vear ended June 30, 2019, the District levied an ad valorem debt service tax rate of
$0.18 per $100 of assessed valuation, which resulted in a tax levy of $646,119 on the adjusted
taxable valuation of $358.607.212 for the 2018 tax year. The bond orders require the District to
levy and collect an ad valorem debt service tax sufficient to pay interest and principal on bonds
when due and the cost of assessing and collecting taxes. See Note 8 for the mamtenance tax
levy.

The District’s tax calendar is as follows:

Levy Date - October 1 or as soon thereafter as practicable.
Lien Date - January 1.
Due Date - Upon receipt but not later than January 31.

Delinquent Date - February 1, at which time the taxpayer is liable for penalty and interest.



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 4. SIGNIFICANT BOND ORDER AND LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
(Continued)

The bond orders state that the District is required to provide continuing disclosure of certain
general financial information included in an annual audit to certain information repositories.
The audit, which includes audited annual financial statements, is to be provided at the end of
each fiscal year and shall continue to be provided through the life of the bonds.

The District has covenanted that it will take all necessary steps to comply with the requirement
that rebatable arbitrage eamnings on the investment of the gross proceeds of the bonds, within
the meaning of Section 148(f) of the Intemal Revenue Code, be rebated to the federal
government. The minimum requirement for determination of the rebatable amount is on the
five-year anniversary of each issue.

NOTE 5. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District’s deposit policy
for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of Texas statutes.

Texas statutes require that any cash balance in any fund shall, to the extent not insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor, be continuously secured by a valid
pledge to the District of securities eligible under the laws of Texas to secure the funds of the
District, having an aggregaie market value, including accrued interest, at all times equal to the
uninsured cash balance in the fund to which such securities are pledged. At fiscal year end, the
carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $1,465,777 and the bank balance was
$1,615,774. The District was not exposed to custodial credit risk at vear-end.

The carrying values of the deposits are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and
the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2019, as listed below:

Certificate
Cash of Deposit Total
GENERAL FUND 8 776950 $ 212827 §$ 989.777
DEBT SERVICE FUND 121,952 121,952
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 354,048 354,048
TOTAL DEPOSITS § 1,252.950 b 212,827 $ 1465777




SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 5. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments

Under Texas law, the District is required to invest its funds under written investment policies
that primarily emphasize safety of principal and liquidity and that address investment diversi-
fication, vield, maturity, and the quality and capability of investment management, and all
District funds must be invested in accordance with the following investment objectives:
understanding the suitability of the investment to the District’s financial requirements, first
preservation and safety of principal, second; liquidity. third; marketability of the investments if
the need arises to liquidate the investment before maturity, fourth: diversification of the
investment portfolio, fifth; and vield, sixth. The District’s investments must be made “with
judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion, and
intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation,
but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be
derived.” No person may invest District funds without express written authority from the Board
of Directors.

Texas statutes include specifications for and limitations applicable to the District and its
authority to purchase investments as defined in the Public Funds Investment Act. The Disirict
has adopted a written investment policy to establish the guidelines by which it may invest. This
policy is reviewed annually. The District’s investment policy may be more restrictive than the
Public Funds Investment Act.

The District invests in TexPool, an extemal investment pool that is not SEC-registered. The
State Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas has oversight of the pool. Federated
Investors, Inc. manages the daily operations of the pool under a contract with the Comptroller.
TexPool measures its portfolio assets at amortized cost. As a result, the District also measures
its investments in TexPool at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. There are no
limitations or restrictions on withdrawals from TexPool.

The District invests in the Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program (“TexSTAR”), an extemal
public funds investment pool that is not SEC-registered. J. P. Morgan Investment Management
Inc. provides investment management and FirstSouthwest, a Division of Hilltop Securities Inc.,
provides participant services and marketing under an agreement with the TexSTAR Board of
Directors. Custodial, fund accounting and depository services are provided by JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. and/or its subsidiaryv J.P. Morgan Investors Services Co. Investments held by
TexSTAR are marked to market dailv. The investments are considered Level I investments
because their fair value is measured by quoted prices in active markets. The fair value of the
District’s position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. There are no
limitations or restrictions on withdrawals from TexSTAR.



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE S. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Certificates of deposit are recorded at amortized cost. As of June 30, 2019, the District had the
following investments and maturities:

Maturities in Years

Fund and Less Than More Than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 1-3 6-10 10
GENERAL
TexPool $1.344,085 $ 1.344.085 $ $ $
Ceruficate of Deposit 212,827 212.827
DEBT SERVICE FUND
TexPool 1,075,891 1.075,891
TexSTAR 255,222 255,222
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
TexSTAR 805 419 805,419
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $3,693 444 $ 3.693.444 § -0- § -0- $ -0-

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an invesiment will not fulfill its
obligations. At June 30, 2019, the District’s investments in TexPool and TexSTAR were rated
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. The District also manages credit risk by typically investing in
certificates of deposit with balances below FDIC and NCUA coverages.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The District considers the investments in TexPool and TexSTAR to have maturities
of less than one year due to the fact the share positions can be redeemed each day at the
discretion of the District. The District also manages interest rate risk by investing in certificates
of deposit with maturities less than eighteen months.

Restrictions

All cash and investments of the Debt Service Fund are restricted for the payment of debt service
and the cost of assessing and collecting taxes. All cash and investments of the Capital Projects
Fund are restricted for the purchase of capital assets.

NOTE 6. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts. theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions and natural disasters from which the District carries
commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior
year and settlements have not exceeded coverage in the past three years.

w28 -



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

July 1, June 30,
2018 Increases Decreases 2019

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Land and Land Improvements $ 151,807 3 $ b 151,807

Construction in Progress 778,030 286,370 491,660
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 3 151,807 $ 778,030 § 286370 3 G643 467
Capital Assets Subject to Depreciation

Buildings, Vehicles, and Equipment 3 964,807 3 $ 3 964.807

Water System 7,682,146 7.682,146

Wastewater System 10,327,949 10,327,949
Total Capital Assets Subject to Depreciation § 18,974,902 5 -0- § -0- § 18974902
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings, Vehicles, and Equipment kN 623,452 i 66,922 b 3 690.374

Water System 2,120,330 170,037 2,290,367

Wastewater System 4794 667 230,617 5,025,284
Total Accumulated Depreciation § 7.538,449 $ 467,576 § -0- $ R006,025
Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net of

Accumulated Depreciation $ 11436453 $ (467576) § -0- $§ 10,968.877
Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated

Depreciation $ 11.588260 $ 310454 $ 286,370 $ 11.612.344

NOTE 8. MAINTENANCE TAX

On August 14, 1999, the voters of the District approved the levy and collection of a
maintenance tax not to exceed $0.30 per $100 of assessed valuation of taxable property within
the District. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the District levied an ad valorem
maintenance tax rate of $0.27 per $100 of assessed valuation, which resulted in a tax levy of
$969.178 on the adjusted taxable valuation of $358,607.212 for the 2018 tax year. The
maintenance tax is to be used by the General Fund to pav expenditures of operating the
District’s water and sewer system.

NOTE 9. SURFACE WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT

On May 13, 1985, the District executed an agreement with the Galveston County Water
Authority, presently known as the Gulf Coast Water Authority (the “Authority™). This
agreement has been subsequently amended. The contract allows the Authority to acquire,
construct and operate a water treatment plant and related water supply system in order 1o
provide potable water to its customers. Charges to the District include its allocation of raw
water charges, capital charges and operating and maintenance charges. During the current fiscal
year, the District recorded $514,338 in water costs attributable to this contract. The term of this
agreement was extended through December 31, 2027.

= P5is



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 10. RETIREMENT PLAN

On March 1, 1997, the District implemented a Simple Individual Retirement Account (IRA) to
benefit the employees of the District. This retirement plan calls for the District to match up to
3% of each employee’s contribution based on employee gross wages. The accounts are set up
in each participating employee’s name and are the property of the named employee. During the
current year, the District’s share of cost associated with this plan was $17,100.

NOTE 11. STREET LIGHTING

On April 23, 1997, the Texas Legislature passed a bill which allows the District, with voter
approval, to install, operate and maintain street lighting. The District can assess the cost of
installation, operating and maintaining the street lighting as an additional charge on the monthly
billings of the District’s customers. In November 1999, the voters of the District approved
street lighting for the District. The current street lighting charge is $3.95 per month per
customer. During the current year, the District recorded $124,587 in revenues and $73,372 in
costs related to street lighting.

NOTE 12. FIRE PREVENTION SERVICES

On August 10, 1982 the District entered into a Fire Prevention Service Agreement with San
Leon Volunteer Fire Department. This agreement was amended in 1998, 2006, 2009 and 2011.
Effective March 22, 2011, the District began billing a mandatory fee of $8.00 per month per
customer for fire prevention services. During the current fiscal vear, the District received
$264,318 in fire prevention service revenues.

NOTE 13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

As of June 30, 2019, the General Fund recorded a payable in the amount of $192,330 to the
Debt Service Fund for debt service tax collections and a payable in the amount of $497 to the
Capital Projects Fund for expenditures related to a previous bond issue. During the current
fiscal vear, the Capital Project Fund also transferred $731,483 to reimburse the General Fund
for inflow and infiltration expenditures paid in a prior year.

NOTE 15. NOTES PAYABLE

In a prior vear, the District entered into a 36-month Equipment Financing Agreement with CNH
Industrial Capital America LLC to finance a Case CX31B Compact Excavator. The monthly
payments were $1,723 with interest accruing at 5.85% annually on the unpaid balance. This
note was paid in full in the current fiscal year.

On October 4, 2016, the District entered into a 36-month Equipment Financing Agreement with
CNH Industrial Capital America LLC to finance a Case CX36B Compact Excavator. The
monthly payments were $968 with interest accruing at 1.90% annually on the unpaid balance.
This note was paid in full in the current fiscal year.

=2



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2019



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Water Service
Wastewater Service
Street Lighting
Fire Fighting Service
Solid Waste Service
Penalty and Interest
Tap Connection and Inspection Fees
Miscellaneous Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Services Operations:

Personnel
Professional Fees
Fire Fighting Expenses
Solid Waste Service
Purchased Water
Unlities
Repairs and Maintenance
Street Lighting
Other

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Transfers In(Out)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2018

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2012

Variance
Original and Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 925,000 $ 936834 $ 11,834
1.400.000 1.352,900 (47,100)
1,300.000 1.029,799 (270,201)
125,000 124 587 (413)
275,000 264 318 (10,682)
600,000 561,140 (38.860)
32,500 34,444 1,944
150,000 268,685 118,685
34,600 127.887 93.287
§ 4842100 $ 4.700.594 $ (141.306)
h 974,000 $ 929969 $ 44,031
178.000 142,376 35,624
330,000 263,976 86,024
625.000 599,962 25,038
490,000 514338 (24,338)
130,000 116,562 13,438
1,070,000 1.253.521 (183,521)
83,000 73.372 11,628
583,700 715,416 (131,716)
$ 4485700 $ 4.609.492 § (123,792)
$ 356,400 $ 91,102 $ (265.298)
$ -0- § 731,483 § 731483
$ 356,400 $§ 8223585 § 466,185
1,128,908 1,128,908
$ 1.485.308 $ 1.951.493 $ 466,185

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-29a



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — REQUIRED BY THE

WATER DISTRICT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDE

JUNE 30, 2019



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
SERVICES AND RATES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

1. SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE DISTRICT DURING THE FISCAL YEAR:

X Retail Water Wholesale Water Drainage
X Retail Sewer Wholesale Wastewater Irmgation

Parks/Recreation X Fire Protection Security
X Solid Waste/Garbage Flood Conirol Roads

Participates in joint venture, regional system and/or
wastewater service (other than emergency interconnect)

X Other (specify): _Street Lights

2. RETAIL SERVICE PROVIDERS

a. RETAIL RATES FOR A 5/8” METER (OR EQUIVALENT):

Based on the rate order effective January 17, 2017.
Flat Rate per 1,000

Minimum Minimum Rate Gallons over
Charge Usage Y/N Minimum Use Usage Levels
WATER: $ 16.00 2,000 N $4.50 2,001 to 4,000
$4.75 4,001 to 7,000
$£500 7.001 w0 10,000
$525 10,001 to 24,000
§5.50 24,001 to 44,000
$373 44,001 to 75,000
§6.00 75,001 and up
WASTEWATER: § 17.00 2.000 N $375 2,001 to 4,000
$4.00 4,001 t 7,000
$4.25 7.001 to 10,000
$4.50 10.001 to 24,000
$4.50 24,001 to 44,000
$450 44.001 to 75,000
$4.50 75,001 and up
SURCHARGE:
Commission
Regulatory 0.5% of water and sewer bill
Assessments
Street Lights $§ 395
VFD $ 800
Garbage $ 19.00
District employs winter averaging for wastewater usage? X

Yes No
Total monthly charges per 10,000 gallons usage: Water: $34.25 Wastewater: $49.25 Surcharge: $§31.47

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

sl




SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
SERVICES AND RATES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2. RETAIL SERVICE PROVIDERS (Continued)

b. WATER AND WASTEWATER RETAIL CONNECTIONS: (Unaudited)
Total Active ESFC Active
Meter Size Connections Connections Factor ESFCs
Unmetered x1.0
<Y x1.0
x25
1%” x3.0
» x 8.0
3 x15.0
4~ x 230
6" x50.0
8" x 80.0
107 x 115.0

Total Water Connections
Total Wastewater Connections x 1.0

3. TOTAL WATER CONSUMPTION DURING THE FISCAL YEAR ROUNDED TO
THE NEAREST THOUSAND: (Unaudited):

Gallons billed to customers: Water Accountability Ratio: %
(Gallons billed/Gallons purchased)

Gallons purchased: From: Guif Coast Water Authority

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-3ha



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
SERVICES AND RATES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

STANDBY FEES (authorized only under TWC Section 49.231):
Does the District have Debt Service standby fees? Yes

Does the District have Operation and Maintenance standby fees? Yes
LOCATION OF DISTRICT:
Is the District located entirely within one county?

Yes X No

- —

County in which District is located:

Galveston County, Texas

Is the District located within a city is extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ)?

Entrely X Partly Not at all

ET]J in which district is located:
City of Texas City, Texas
Are Board Members appointed by an office outside the District?

Yes No X

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

=33 -



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

PERSONNEL EXPENDITURES (Including Benefits)

Salaries $ 667,725
Payroll Taxes 50,703
Pension 17,100
Payroll Service 2,724
Insurance 191.717
TOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENDITURES $ 929,965
PROFESSIONAL FEES:
Auditing b 20,750
Engineering 95814
Legal 23,312
Financial Advisor 2,500
TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES $ 142376
PURCHASED WATER SERVICE b 514,338
CONTRACTED SERVICES:
Tax Collection and Appraisal District $ 12,995
UTILITIES:
Electricity $ 98,399
Telephone 18,163
TOTAL UTILITIES $ 116.562
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE § 1.253521
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES:
Computer/Internet 8 37.818
Director Fees 9,300
Dues 1,385
Insurance 76,945
Office Supplies and Postage 44 608
Rents and Leases 14,384
Payroll Taxes 2,990
Election Costs 13.034
Training 8,506
Travel and Meetings 4,183
Other 22997
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES b 236,170

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-3k



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL
SECURITY

FIRE FIGHTING
STREET LIGHTING

OTHER EXPENDITURES:
Auto and Vehicle Expenditures
Bad Debt Expense
Chemicals
Fuel
Laboratory Fees
Permit Fees
Regulatory Assessment
Sludge Hauling
Small Tools and Equipment
Uniforms
Other

TOTAL OTHER EXPENDITURES

DEBT SERVICE:
Note Principal
Note Interest

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Number of persons employed by the District

14 Full-Time

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

$ 559,962
b 4.330

263,976

$ 263976

73,372

$ ;

$ 3,945
130,000
23,944
9.773
20,073
13,875
10.559
151,695
50,781
9484
7.757

$ 431886

$ 29,478
553
30,031

$§ 30031

$ 4609492

_0  Part-Time



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

INVESTMENTS
JUNE 340, 2019
Accrued
Interest
Tdentification or Interest Maturity Balanee at Receivable at
Fund Certificate Number Rate Date End of Year End of Year
FUND
TexPool XXKK0003 Varies Dauly $ 1,118,778 $
TexPool XXX 0004 Varies Daily 225.307
Certificate of Deposit XK0007 0.85% 05/23/20 212,827
TOTAL GENERAL FUND $§ 1,556.912 $ -0-
DEBT SERVICE FUND
TexPool O{X 0006 Varies Daily $ 1,075.891 b
TexSTAR XXKK6T790 Varies Daily 255,222
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND § 1331113 § -0-
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
TexSTAR FOKHO0170 Vares Daily $ 805,419 § -0-
TOTAL - ALL FUNDS $ 3,693.444 $ -0-

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-36 =




SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

TAXES LEVIED AND RECEIVABLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

TAXES RECEIVABLE -
JULY 1.2018
Adjustments to Beginning

Balance

Original 2018 Tax Levy
Adjustment to 2018 Tax Levy

TOTAL TO BE
ACCOUNTED FOR

TAX COLLECTIONS:
Prior Years
Current Year

TAXES RECEIVABLE -
TUNE 30, 2019

TAXES RECEIVABLE BY

YEAR:

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005 and Prior

TOTAL

Maintenance Taxes Debt Service Taxes
$ 107.615 h 126,453
( 1,228) g 106,387 !1,591 ) $ 124 862
$ 925,210 $ 616,807
43,968 969,178 29312 646.119
$ 1,075.565 $ 770,981
$ 41,754 hY 55,610
895,080 936,834 596,720 652,330
$ 138731 $§ 118651
$ 74,098 $ 49399
17.495 23.554
7.828 9429
4975 6.947
2.820 5,640
2,392 4,785
4244 2,122
3,646 1,823
3.428 1.714
3.088 1.544
2,489 1,244
1,775 887
1,844 1.209
8.609 8.354
$ 138,731 (4 118.651

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-37-



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

TAXES LEVIED AND RECEIVABLE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2018 2017 2016 2015

PROPERTY VALUATIONS:

Land § 133,853,042 § 117,759,335 § 84601856 $ 84231854

Improvements 300359958 267754377 225,104,245 204987185

Personal Property 8,830,938 8.552,844 9,001,318 9.601,467

Exemptions (86.438.726) (92,369,036) (50.453,116) (45,715,500)
TOTAL PROPERTY

VALUATIONS $ 358,607,212 $ 301,697,520 $ 268.254.303 $§ 253.105.006
TAX RATES PER §100

VALUATION:

Debt Service h 0.1800 $ 0.2582 $ 0.2459 $ 0.2622

Maintenance 0.2700 0.1918 02041 0.1878
TOTAL TAX RATES PER

$100 VALUATION $ 04500 § 04500 § 04500 8 0.4500
ADJUSTED TAXLEVY* § 1615297 $ 1530523 § 1207959 § 1140276

PERCENTAGE OF TAXES
COLLECTED TO TAXES
LEVIED 92.35 %

 9132%

98.57 % 98.95 %

* Based upon the adjusted tax levy at the time of audit for the fiscal year in which the tax was

levied.

Maintenance Tax — Maximum tax rate of $0.30 per $100 of assessed valuation approved by voters

on August 14, 1999,

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-38-



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

REFUNDING SERIES-2012

Due During Fiscal Principal Interest Due
Years Ending Due September 1/
June 30 September 1 March 1 Total
2020 b 225,000 5 56.525 3 281.325
2021 240,000 48,620 288.620
2022 243,000 40,375 285.375
2023 255,000 31,875 286,875
2024 263,000 23,035 288.035
2025 275,000 13,855 288.835
2026 270,000 4,590 274,590
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2033
2036
2037
2038
5 1.775.000 b 218.875 $ 1.993.875

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

<30



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

SERIES-2013

Due During Fiscal Principal Interest Due
Years Ending Due September 1/
June 30 September 1 March 1 Total

2020 $ 170,000 $ 207206 § 377.206
2021 170,000 199,981 369,981
2022 180.000 193,669 373.669
2023 190,000 188,119 378.119
2024 195,000 182,344 377344
2025 205,000 176,344 381344
2026 230,000 169,819 399.819
2027 525,000 158,494 683.494
2028 550,000 142 025 692.025
2029 580,000 124,369 704,369
2030 610,000 105,394 715.394
2031 640.000 84,681 724.681
2032 675.000 62.491 737.491
2033 710,000 38.675 748.675
2034 750,000 13,125 763.125
2035
2036
2037
2038

$ 6.380.000 $ 2,046,736 $ 8.426.736

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

- 40 -



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

SERIES-2017

Due During Fiscal Principal Interest Due
Years Ending Due September 1/
June 30 Scptember 1 March 1 Total

2020 $ 95,000 b 85.031 $ 180.031
2021 100,000 82.106 182,106
2022 105,000 79,031 184.031
2023 110,000 75,806 185.806
2024 115,000 72,431 187,431
2025 120,000 68,906 188.906
2026 125,000 65,700 190.700
2027 135,000 62,691 197.691
2028 140.000 59,338 199.338
2029 145,000 55,413 200,413
2030 155,000 50,913 205.913
2031 165,000 46,113 211.113
2032 170,000 41.088 211.088
2033 180,000 35,838 215.838
2034 150,000 30,288 220.288
2035 200.000 24 313 224313
2036 210,000 17.907 227.907
2037 220,000 11,051 231,051
2038 230,000 3.738 233,738

$ 2.910,000 b 967.702 5 3.877.702

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

ol



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

ANNUAL REQUIREMENTS
FOR ALL SERIES

Due During Fiscal Total
Years Ending Total Total Principal and
June 30 Principal Due Interest Due Interest Due

2020 $ 490,000 b 348,762 $ 838.762
2021 510,000 330,707 840.707
2022 530,000 313,075 843,075
2023 355,000 295,800 850,800
2024 575,000 277810 8523810
2023 600,000 259,105 8359.105
2026 625,000 240,109 865.109
2027 660,000 221,185 881,185
2028 690,000 201,363 891,363
2029 725,000 179,782 904,782
2030 765,000 156,307 921.307
2031 805,000 130,794 935.794
2032 845,000 103,579 948.579
2033 290,000 74513 964.513
2034 940,000 43 413 983.413
2035 200,000 24313 224313
2036 210,000 17.907 227.907
2037 220,000 11,051 231,051
2038 230,000 3.738 233,738

$ 11,065,000 $ 3,233,313 s 14,298 313

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM BOND DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Bonds
Original Outstanding
Description Bonds Issued July 1, 2018
San Leon Municipal Utility District
Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds - Series 2012 $ 3,055,000 $ 1,995,000
San Leon Municipal Utility District
Unlimited Tax Bonds - Series 2013 7.000,000 6,533,000
San Leon Municipal Utility District
Unlimited Tax Bonds - Series 2017 3,000,000 3,000,000
TOTAL $ 13.055,000 § 11,530,000
Bond Authority: Tax Bonds
Amount Authorized by Voters $ 61,500,000
Amount Issued 16,660,000

Remaining to be Issued

$ 44840000

See Noic 3 for interest rates, interest payment dates and maturity dates.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

43 -



Current Year Transactions

Retirements Bonds
Outstanding
Bonds Sold Principal Interest June 30, 2019 Paying Agent
Branch Banking
and Trust Company
$ $ 220,000 3 64,090 $ 1,775,000 Charlotte, NC
Amegy Bank
National Association
155,000 214,113 6,380,000 Houston. Texas
Amegy Bank
National Association
90,000 87.806 2,910,000 Houston. Texas
$ -0 - $ 465,000 $ 366,009 $ 11,065,000

Debt Service Fund cash. investment and cash with tax office
balances as of June 30. 2019:

Average annual debt service payment (principal and interest) for remaining term

of all debt:

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-~ 44 -

$ 1454815
$ 752,543

—— o ——



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND - FIVE YEARS

Amounts
2019 2018 2017
REVENUES
Property Taxes b 936,834 $ 628.487 8 330,579
Water Service 1,352,900 1,173,498 1,115,885
Wastewater Service 1.029,799 920.195 895,413
Sireet Lighting 124 587 127.039 126,999
Fire Fighting Service 264,318 273,152 273,616
Solid Waste Service 561,140 572346 284,769
Penalty and Interest 34 444 33,242 35.419
Tap Connection and Inspection Fees 268,685 141.295 242,080
Miscellaneous Revenues and FEMA Reimbursements 127887 149 406 164.026
TOTAL REVENUES $§ 4.700.594 § 4.018.680 $ 3.688.786
EXPENDITURES
Personnel k) 929 969 $ 875,399 $ 910,236
Professional Fees 142,376 151.469 317.231
Contracted Services 881,267 875.615 595 863
Purchased Water 514,338 466.145 436,831
Udlities 116,562 126.693 121,567
Repairs and Maintenance 1,253 521 326,418 236,383
Street Lighting 73372 73.743 71,871
Other 668.056 1.080.906 758,297
Capital Qutlay 787.160 301,782
Debt Service:
Note Principal 29,478 38,388 38,100
Note Interest 553 1,978 3,401
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 4609492 $ 4.803.914 $ 3,791,564
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES h 91,102 $ (785234) §  (102,778)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Note Proceeds $ 5 8 33,913
Transfers In{Out) 731,483 266,123 233,139
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 731.483 $ 266,123 $ 267,052
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 8 822385 $ (519.111) § 164,274
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1.128 908 1.648.019 1,483,745
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 10951493 $ 1128908 $ 1648019

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

- 45 -




Percentagc of Total Revenues

2016 2015 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 375324 346,452 200% 157 % 149% 128% 123 %
1,061,850 902,065 28.8 292 303 36.0 322
909,500 797,213 21.9 22.9 243 30.8 285
122,871 121,421 2.7 32 34 4.2 4.3
264,013 260,986 5.6 6.8 7.4 8.9 93
11.9 14.2 7.7
33,124 26,804 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.0
131,095 150,305 5.7 35 6.6 4.4 54
53,778 196,878 2.7 3.7 4.4 1.8 7.0
$ 2951555 2,802,124 1000 % 1000 %  100.0 % _ 100.0 % _ 1000 %
§ 821,010 802,330 198 % 218 % 247 % 278 % 286 %
93,142 76,786 3.0 3.8 8.6 3.2 29
277,780 279,499 18.7 21.8 16.2 9.4 10.0
401,450 271,963 10.9 11.6 11.8 13.6 9.7
149,341 114,425 25 3.2 33 5.1 4.1
350,445 396,783 26.7 8.1 6.4 11.9 14.2
98,442 81,787 1.6 1.8 1.9 3 29
539,028 512,561 14.2 26.9 20.6 183 18.3
454,017 271,392 19.6 8.2 15.4 9.7
15,934 10,983 0.6 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.4
1,348 1,131 0.1
$ 3.201.937 2,819,640 98.0 % 1196 % 1028 % 1083 % _ 100.6 %
$  (250382) (17,516) 20 %  (19.6) % 2.8) % (8.3) % (0.6) %
$ 57.008
89.243
$ 57,008 89,243
$  (193374) 71,727
1,677,119 1,605,392
$ 1483745 1,677.119

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

=46 -



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

DEBT SERVICE FUND - FIVE YEARS

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Penalty and Interest
Miscellaneous Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Tax Collection Expenditures
Debt Service Principal
Debt Service Interest and Fees

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE
Long-Term Debt Issued

S (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE

TOTAL ACTIVE RETAIL WATER

CONNECTIONS

TOTAL ACTIVE RETAIL WASTEWATER

CONNECTIONS

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

il

Amount

2019 2018 2017
652,330 $ 843 259 667,937
57456 55,427 46,944
25.790 12,624 4.776
735,576 b 911,310 719.637
18.268 $ 12.000 14.185
465,000 360,000 350,000
366,724 321,908 305,517
849992 $ 693,908 669,702
(114.416) § 217,402 49933

0= 3 95.880 -0-
(114416) § 313,282 49955
1,761,561 1.448.279 1,398 324
1.647.145 $ 1.761.561 1.448.279
2,783 2,719
2,725 2,661




Percentage of Total Revenues

2016 2015 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
738,199 673.126 887 % 925 % 928 % 954 % 942
33358 40,435 78 6.1 6.5 43 5.7

2,281 772 3.5 1.4 0.7 0.3 0.1
773,838 714,333 1000 % _ 1000 % _ 1000 % __100.0 % __100.0
10,905 10.945 25 % 13 % 20 % 14 % 1.5
335,000 320,000 63.2 39.5 186 433 448
318,097 330,982 499 35.3 425 41.1 46.3
664,002 661,927 1156 % 761 % __931 % __858 % __926
109.836 52.406 (156)% 239 % 69 % 142 % 7.4

s sfh
109,836 52.406

1,288,488 1,236,082

1,398,324 1,288,488

2,809 2637 #
2,795 2536 #

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-48 -

%

%

Ya

%

Ya



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS
JUNE 30, 2019

District Mailing Address - San Leon Municipal Utlity District
443 24" Street
San Leon, TX 77539

District’s Telephone Number - (281) 339-1386
Expensc
Term of Fees of office Reimbursements
Office for the for the
(Elected or year ended year ended
Board Members Appointed) June 30, 2019 June 30. 2019 Title
Joe Manchaca 05/18 $ -0- § -0- President
05/22
(Elected)
Tyson Kennedy 05/18 $§ 1800 $ -0- Vice President
05/22
(Elected)
Keith Gossett 09/18 $ 23350 $ 288 Secretary
05720
(Appointed)
Kenneth Bishop 05/16 $ 2,700 § 232 Treasurer/
05/20 Investment
(Elected) Officer
Kelly Neason 05/18 $ 1,950 $ -0- Assistant
05/22 Secretary
(Elected)
Julie Hall 05/16 $ 300 $ -0- Resigned
09/18

No Director has any business or family relationships (as defined by the Texas Water Code) with major
landowners in the District, with the District’s developer or with any of the District’s consultants.

c

Submission date of most recent District Registration Form (TWC Sections 36.054 and 49.054):
February 2, 2019,

Limit on Fees of Office that a Director may receive during a fiscal year $7,200 as set by Board

Resolution (TWC Section 49.060) on August 13, 2005. Fees of Office are the amounts actually paid to
a Director during the District’s current fiscal year.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

wililin



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS

JUNE 34, 2019
Fees/
Compensation
for the fiscal
vear ended
Date Hired June 30, 2019 Title

Key Administrative Personnel:
Janice Hoffman 07/23/95 $ 80,086 Office

Manager
Andrew Miller 01/17/18 $ 78166 District

Manager
Ken Keller 04/96 $ 77.628 Field

Supervisor
Consultants:
Reid, Strickland & Gillette Prior to $ 23312 General Counsel
1992
McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC 06/20/95 $ 20,750 Audit Related
Linebarger Goggan Blair and Sampson. LLP 1992 $§ 18268 Delinquent
Tax Attorney

Costello. Inc. 05/16/18 $ 334297 Engineer
AEI Engineering 12/2110 § 10931 Prior Engineer
SAMCO Capital Markets 06/22/03 b 2.500 Financial

Advisor
Galveston County Tax Assessor 9/2002 $ 2,479 Tax Collector

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.

-50-



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
JUNE 30, 2019
(UNAUDITED)
Taxable Value by Tax Year
Taxpayer Type of Property 2018 2017
Centerpoint Energy Houston Utility $ 2229810 (a)
Halili Hajrulla Trustee Residence & Business 1,716,900 (a)
Halili, Hajrulla Residence 1,538,655 1,407,868
Wiggins, Matthew Jr. Residence 1,524,990 2,502,710
Jardina, Charles C. Residence 1,261,130 2,048,880
Moore, Clifford A. & Pat M. Residence 1,142,487 1,126,176
MP Apartments LLC Multi-Family Apt. 1,116,913 1,000,000
Cassius Limited Residence 1,040,370 1,120,980
Barrett, Stephen P. & Sheryl Residence 1.011,190 1,011,190
Shahroodi. Shahrokh Residence 1.007.050 (a)
Total $ 13,589.495 $ 10,217.804

Percent of Assessed Valuation

-52-

3.719

% 3.39 %




SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
ASSESSED VALUE BY CLASSIFICATION

Classification of Assessed Valuation (a)

Type of Property

Single Family Residence

Multi-Family Residence

Vacant Lots and Land Tracts

Qualified Open-Space Land

Rural Land, Non-Qualified Open Space
Commercial Real Property

0Oil and Gas

Gas Distribution System

Electric Company (Including Co-Op)
Telephone Company (Including Co-Op)
Pipeland Company

Commercial Personal Property
Industrial and Manufacturing Personal Property
Tangible Other Personal Mobile Home
Residential Inventory

Special Inventory Tax

Totally Exempt Property

Total Appraised Value

(a) Reflects classification of assessed valuation as sup
("GCAD") prior to adjustments and exemptions. Such value may

JUNE 30, 2019
(UNAUDITED)
2018 2017
Market Value % Market Value %
$ 349,109,271 78.44 $ 343,930,701 78.54
2.901,170 0.63 2,709,611 0.62
38,446,733 8.64 38,866,065 8.88
1,805,210 0.41 1,889,860 0.43
3,405,912 0.77 3,537,833 0.81
17,639,824 3.96 16,168,951 3.69
. 0.00 8,286 0.01
339,040 0.08 318.003 0.07
2,229,810 0.50 2.178,280 0.50
436,775 0.10 454 355 0.10
14,822 0.00 12,147 0.00
4.726,120 1.06 5,097,651 1.16
1,064,251 0.24 382,512 0.09
6,940,500 1.56 6,748,813 1.54
580,860 0.13 359,700 0.08
13,930 0.00 5,350 0.00
15,391,710 3.46 15,243,071 348
§ 445,045,938 1000 § 437,911,189 100.0

valuation, and any supplements or adjustments thereto, as supplied by GCAD.

plied by the Galveston Central Appraisal District
differ from the original certified assessed



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2019
(UNAUDITED)
% of
Overlapping Amount of
Taxing Body Amount As of Debt Overlapping Debt

Galveston County $ 247,913,720 7/31/2019 1.06 $ 2,627,885
Dickinson ISD 305,160,000 7/31/2019 8.52 25,999,632
College of the Mainland 104,430,000 7/31/2019 291 3,038,913

Total Overlapping Debt: $ 31.666,430

San Leon MUD 6/30/2019 $ 11,065,000
Total District and Overlapping Debt: § 42731430

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt % of A V.: 10.98%
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt per Capita: $ 4.674
2018 Tax Rate
Overlapping Entity Per $100 A V.
Galveston County $ 0.529831
Road & Flood 0.002067
Dickinson ISD 1.520000
College of the Mainland 0.212755
The Dustrict 0.450000

Total $ 2.714653

o



SAN LEON
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTIRCT

TAX RATE SUMMARY

August 2019

SAMCO CAPITAL MARKETS, INC.
6805 CAPITAL OF TEXAS HIGHWAY, SuiTe 350
Austiv, TEXAS 78731
(512) 914-0683
CLANE@SAMCOCAPITAL.COM
CHRISTINA M. LANE
MANAGING DIRECTOR




#—

Tay Incremen: Finance Levy.

2 - v qiificat
SARESTRIEN 2019 CERTIFIED TOTALS B0 RO
Property Count: 5,491 ~ARB Approved Totals 711612010 T:44:49PM
P = e
[Tand Value |
Homesis: 70.099,013
Nen Homesite: 54,183,557
Ag Market: 1.848.010
Timber Marken: 0 Total Land +) 136,230,580
[Tmprovement_ vaiue |
Homesite: 224 538,657
Nen Homesfe: 80,765,703  Total Improvements (*) 305.304.360
[Non Real CTount Vaiue |
Personal Propeny: 223 2,074,400
Mineral Property: 0 0
Autes: 0 0 Total Non Real {+} 8,074 .400
Market Value = 450,608,340
[_ﬁ.g Non Exempt Exempt i
Total Productivity Marxet: 1.248.010 &
Ag Use: 7.150 0 Productivity Loss {1 1,840,860
Timper Use: o] 0 Appraised Value = 448 668 .480
Productivity Loss: 1.940.860 0
Homestead Cap t-1 32,626,632
Assessed Value = 415,041,848
Totzl Exemptions Amount (=1 45.117.090
(Breakdown on Next Page)
Net Taxabile = 368824758
, 277
o= 3 / ;
(1 = / _/D 4 [ -3
;/ \ i ¥ ‘{ i
APPROXIMATE TOTAL LEVY = NET TAXABLE " (TAX RATE/ 100) '
1 664 661 41 = 369,924,758 * (0450000 / 100} B :
Tax Increment Finance Value: 0 — C?() ) 17[ 2 C . L:
0.00 e L\, I " f OL) .

MO7/636308

Page 1 cf 14

*

True Automation, Inc.

I
/1



QALVESTON COUNTY

Property Count: 5491

e P

2019 CERTIFIED TOTALS

As of Certification

7/19/2018 7:44:59PM

~Count ~ T s e R -@
11 ¥ .01 2,80
13 v] 122,690 122,690
10 0 111,000 111,000
8 (8] 56,000 66,000
17 s} 204,000 204,000
1 [u] 12,000 12,000
DVHS 23 0 4,128,465 4,120,465
DVHSS i 0 125,504 125,594
EX-XV 103 0 15,227,030 15,227,030
EX-XV (Prorated) 1 0 8,101 8,107
EX366 12 0 2640 2,640
HS 1,359 20,158,659 0 20,158,659
OVES 520 4,887,111 4] 4,887 111
ovess -] 50,000 0 £0,000
Totals 26,108,570 20,008,520 46,117,090
MO7/626309 Page 20f 14 True Autemation, Inc.

o



B
gALVESTON COUNTY

As of Certification

2019 CERTIFIED TOTALS
7 -SAN LEONT
Property Count: 183 der ARB Review Totzls ) 7118/2019  7:44:49PM
——
[Tand Value
Homesite: 2 401,760
Nor Homesite: 3,731,740
Ag Market: ¢
Timber Market: 0 Total Land ) 6.133.50C
| Improvement Value |
Homesite: 7.687 670
Naon Homesite: 7505890 Total Improvements +) 15,283,560
[ Non Real Gount Value |
Personal Fropeny: 3 41.650
Mineral Property: o] c
Autos: o] 0 Total Non Real 1+) 41,850
Market Value = 21.458.710
| Ae Non Exampt Exempt [
Toi! Productivity Markat 0 o]
Ag Use: 0 0  Productivity Loss i) 0
Timber Usa: 0 0 Appraised Value = 21.458.710
Productivity Loss! s} (4}
Homestead Cap (=) 965.356
Assessed Value = 20.493.354
Tota! Exemptions Amaunt 1= 1,177.810
|Breakdown on Next Page)
Net Taxable - 19,315,444
~ ﬂ/
b X Q5 /p
\_/ ’ Fx OF e
APPROXIMATE TOTAL LEVY = NET TAXABLE ~ (TAX RATE / 100) it Bt
36.619.50 = 18,315,484 (0.450000 / 100) e
Tax Increment Finance Value: o o i _7'

Tax Inerement Finance Levyt

MO7/636309

e o fé /é{

Page 30f 14

| 7
4

#}! ;’? S/} ,f]/—wl

True Autormatior. Inc.

-'7
e



#

#
GALVESTON QOUNTY 2019 CERTIFIED TOTALS i o arthcanan
MO7 - SAN LEON
Property Count: 163 Under ARB Review Totals 7/118/2018 7:44:59PM
T e s e
Exemption Breakdown
~DP 1 Q 10,000
pv1 1 12,000 12,000
Dvz 1 7,500 7.500
DVHS 1 234,036 234,036
HS 35 ] 794 374
oves 12 0 110,000
ovess 1 [¢] 10,008
Totals 924,374 253,536 1177910

MO7/636202 Pzge 4 of 14 True Autornation, Inc.



e e T
GALVESTON COUNTY 2019 CER

=

Property Count: 5,654
=SS
Homesite: 72,500,773
67,815,297
1,848,010
0 Total Land
[[Tmprovement = Vaiue |
Homesite: 232,226,327
88,361,503 Total Improvements
| L f T 2 = Valuer|
Personal Property: 226 8,116.080
Mineral Propery: v} 0
Autos: 0 0 Total Non Real
Market Value
[FRazgs s s v o s S Non Exempt ST T BT
Total Productivity Market 1,948,010 0
Ag Use: 7,150 0 Productivity Loss
Timber Use: 0 0 Appraised Value
Productivity Loss: 1,940,880 a
Homestead Cap
Assessed Value
Total Exemptions Amount
(Breakdown on Mext Page)
Met Taxable

APPROXIMATE TOTALLEVY = NET TAXABLE * (TAX RATE/ 100)
4751,580.91 = 380,240,202 * (0.450000 / 100)

Tax Increment Finance Value:
Tax Inerament Finance Levy: 0.00

MO7/63630¢ Page 5of 14

As of Certification

7/19/2019 7:44.49FPM

{%)

)

142,364,080

320,587,920

8,116,050
472,068,050

1,840,860
470,127,120

33,691,888
436,535,202
47,295,000

380,240,202

True Automation, Inc.

5



(PRERIRL R 2019 CERTIFIED TOTALS Al Cormionien
MO7 - SAN LEON
Property Count: 5,654 Grand Totals 7/18/2018 7:44:50PM
Flan=—a i e
Exemption Breakdown

112 ' ]

14 b 134,690

1 0 118,500

8 0 66,000

1T 0 204,000

DV4S 1 0 12,000

DVHS 24 0 4,363,501
DVHSS 1 0 125,584 125,594
EX-XV 103 0 15,227,030 15,227,030
EX-XV (Prorated) 1 0 8,101 8.101
EX366 12 0 2,640 2,640
HS 1,394 20,953,033 0 20,653.033
oves 532 4,897,111 0 4,987,411
oVess 7 60,000 0 60,000
Totals 27,032,944 20,262,056 47,295,600

MO7/636309 Page 6of 14 True Automation, Inc.



e T R AR T

(}AL\.{ESTON COUNTY 2019 CERTIF]ED TOTAI S As of Ceriification
MO07 - SAN LEON
Praperty Count: 5,491 ARB spproved Totals Tha/2018 7:44:59PM
—— e —aeERE—ey T _——_
State Category Breakdown
I_gmc‘ld‘ ~Bescription .- T i g O o AR New Vaiue. .

A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 2632 $5,758,700 $354,631,446 §292,287,021

B MULTIFAMILY RESIDENCE 14 $0 $1,683,500 $1,583,706

Cc1 VACANT LOTS AND LAND TRACTS 2,115 0 $37,837,863 $37,815,244

D1 QUALIFIED OPEN-SPACE LAND 15 114.7680 50 $1.948,010 £6,883

E RURAL LAND. NON QUALIFIED OFE 32 121.0402 $0 $3,006,304 $2,698,845

F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 137 51,562.870 $19,155,896 $19,085,745

42 GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 1 $0 $368 460 $368,460

J3 ELECTRIC COMPANY {(INCLUDING c 4 $0 $2,568,120 $2,566,120

J4 TELEPHONE COMPANY (INCLUDI 5 $0 $360,390 $360,380

Js PIPELAND COMPANY 1 80 $10,160 $19,160

L COMMERGIAL PERSONAL PROPE 1683 $0 54,865,330 54,865,330

L2 INDUSTRIAL AND MANUFACTURIN 8 %0 $882,560 $882,560

WAt TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MOB 451 $810,110 $7,508,640 $6,837,204

o RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY 24 $0 $533,750 §533,75C

5 SPEGIAL INVENTORY TAX 1 S0 $4.340 54,340

X TOTALLY EXEMPT PROPERTY 116 30 §15,237,771 $0
Totals £35.8092 $8,132,680 $450,609,340 $389,924,758

MO7/636308 Page 7 of 14 True Automation, Inc.



# = s e ]
(EALU_'ESTON COUNTY 2019 CERTIF[ED TOT i I S As of Certification
MO07 - SAN LEON
Under ARB Review Totals 7/18/2019 7:44:59PM

Property Count: 163
w
State Category Breakdown

- Taxable Value

et | sl

A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE $1,197,690 $16,527,800 $14,384,534
B MULTIFAMILY RESIDENCE $0 $1,346,610 $1,346,610
C1 VACANT LOTS AND LAND TRACTS 49 $0 $1,284,350 $1,284,350
E RURAL LAND, NON QUALIFIED OPE . 17.8900 $0 $678,560 $678,560
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY L $58,510 $1,531,120 $1,531,120
1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPE 3 §0 541,850 841,650
M1 TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MOB 8 $0 §48.620 548,820

Totals 17.8900 51,256,200 $21,468,710 $19,315,444

MO7/636309 Pzge Bof 14 True Automation, ine.

2]



e e

e e

GAYRTON SEUINTY 2019 CERTIFIED TOTALS Seathaicn
MO7 - SAN LEON
Grand Totals 7/19/2018  T:44:59PM

Property Count: 5,654
#—_—_

State Category Breakdown

s e

T Newvale T
A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE $6,957,380 §371,159,246 $306,671,558
B MULTIFAMILY RESIDENCE 1 80 $3,030,110 $2,930,316
Cc1 VACANT LOTS AND LAND TRACTS 2,164 30 $39,122,213 $35,099,584
D1 QUALIFIED OPEN-SPACE LAND 16 114.7690 S0 $1,948,010 56,883
E RURAL LAND, NON QUALIFIED OPE 34 138.0302 50 $3,684 664 $3,377.405
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 141 $1,621,380 $20,686,818 $20,626,865
J2 GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 1 $0 $368,460 $368,460
Jz ELECTRIC COMPANY (INCLUDING C 1 80 $2,566,120 52,566,120
J4 TELEPHONE COMPANY (INCLUDI 5 s0 $360,360 $350,390
Jé PIPELAND COMPANY 1 80 $19,180 $19,160
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPE 186 50 $4 006,980 54,806,980
L2 INDUSTRIAL AND MANUFACTURIN 8 S0 $6882,560 $882,560
M1 TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MOB 459 $810,110 $7.557,260 56,885,824
o] RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY 24 50 $533,750 $533,750
s SPECIAL INVENTORY TAX 1 50 $4,340 $4,340
X TOTALLY EXEMPT PROPERTY 116 50 $15,237,771 $0
Totals 253.7982 $9,388,880 $472,068,050 $380,240,202
MO7/636308 Page 8 cf 14 True Automation, Inc.

N



T ey

o
QBTN SRE 2019 CERTIFIED TOTALS s of Certiicasen
M07 - SAN LEON
Property Count: 5,491 ARB Approved Totals 7/18/2019 T:44:59PM
o me = T o e i ey
CAD State Category Breakdown
esenption s - C L e e TCOMNE 7T ACTRS T T New Value " Market vaiue  Taxabie Value .
Al REAL, RESIDENTIAL, SINGLE-FAMILY 2388 55,668,550 $337,606.825 $278,194.777
A2 REAL. RESIDENTIAL, MOEILE HOME 430 £70,150 $17.008.381 $14,076,004
A8 PARSONAGES 1 50 $16.,240 $16.240
B1 APARTMENTS 2 $0 $62,410 $50,811
B2 DUPLEXES 12 50 51,621,090 $1,532.895
c1 VACANT LOT 2114 50 $37,828,323 $37,806,704
ca VACANT LOT EXEMPT 1 $0 $8,540 $8,840
D1 QUALIFIED AG LAND 15 114.7680 $0 $1,948,010 $6,883
E1 FARM OR RANCH IMPROVEMENT 3z $0 $3,006,304 $2.698,845
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 137 51,562,870 $19,155,686 $19,095745
Jz GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 1 50 $368,480 $368,460
J3 ELECTRIC COMPANY 1 50 $2,566,120 $2,566,120
J4 TELEPHONE COMPANY 5 $0 $360,390 $360,320
J8 PIPELINE COMPANY 1 50 $18,160 $18,160
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPER 183 $0 £4,865,330 $4,865,330
L2 INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL PROPERTY & £0 $882,560 $882 560
M1 MOBILE HOMES 35 $721,560 $864,020 §811,484
M3 Converted code M3 415 $88,550 $6.639.620 $6,022,041
4 M4 1 50 $5,000 $3.678
o1 RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY VACANT L 24 50 $533,750 $633,750
s SPECIAL INVENTORY 1 S0 $4,340 $4,340
X 116 S0 $15,237.771 0
Totals 114.7690 $8,132,680 $450,608.340 $369,924,758
MO7/636308 Page 10 of 14 True Automation, Ine.

e



= # ]
QAL\{ESTDN COUNTY 201 9 CERT[FIED TOT ALS As of Certification
MO07 - SAN LEON
Property Caunt: 163 Under ARB Review Totals 7/18/2018  7:44:59PM
ﬂ e e
CAD State Category Breakdown
R RS e e e T TR YRS |
Al REAL, RESIDENTIAL, SINGLE-FAMILY 86 $1,197.680 516,107,300 $14,002,676
A2 REAL, RESIDENTIAL, MOBILE HOME 9 $0 $420,500 $321,858
B2 DUPLEXES 7 30 $1,346 610 1,246,610
C1 VACANT LOT 49 50 $1,284,350 $1,284,350
E1 FARM OR RANCH IMPROVEMENT 2 $0 $678,560 $678,560
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 4 $58,510 £1,531,120 $1,531.120
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPER 3 50 $41,650 541,650
M3 Converted code M3 8 50 548,620 $48,620
Totals 0.0000 $1,256,200 $21,458,710 $19,315,444
MO7/636309 Page 11 of 14 True Automation, Inc.

1



e e ————

= —— s
?&\{ESTON COUNTY 2019 CERTIFED TOT a I S As of Certification
M07 - SAN LEON
Property Count: 5,654 Grand Totals 711812019 7:44:59PM °
== = e e e ST s e e
CAD State Category Breakdown
~Deseriplion - .0 e o T e o e o “New Value . .”9"5‘“931“ e Tlm}“‘i]
REAL, RESIDENTIAL, SINGLE-FAMILY 2,464 $6,887,240 $353,714,125 $292,197.453
REAL, RESIDENTIAL, MOBILE HOME 439 $70,1580 517,428,881 $14,457,862
PARSONAGES 1 80 516,240 $16,240
APARTMENTS 2 50 $62,410 550,811
DUPLEXES 18 $0 $2,967,700 $2,879,505
VACANT LOT 2,163 $0 $35,113,673 $38,091,054
VACANT LOT EXEMPT 1 $0 38,540 $8,54C
QUALIFIED AG LAND 15 114.7680 $0 $1,948,010 $6,883
EARM OR RANCH IMPROVEMENT 34 80 53,684,864 $3,377,405
COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 141 $1,621.380 §$20,686,816 $20,626,865
GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 1 S0 $368,460 $368,480
ELECTRIC COMPANY 1 S0 $2,566,120 $2,566,120
TELEPHONE COMPANY ) S0 $360,380 $380,380
BIPELINE COMPANY 1 30 $18,180 $18,160
COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPER 196 S0 $4,906,980 $4,806,980
INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL PROPERTY 8 S0 $882,560 5882,560
MOBILE HOMES 35 §721,660 $664,020 5811,484
Converted code M3 423 $88,550 $6.688,240 $6.070,661
M4 1 S0 $5,000 $3,879
RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY VACANT L 24 50 §533,750 $533,750
SPECIAL INVENTORY 1 50 $4,340 $4,340
116 S0 $15,237,771 50
Totals 114.7690 $9.388,880 $472,068,050 $380,240.202
MO7/836309 Page 12 of 14 True Automation, Inc.

JZ-



For Entity :
Year:

State Code:
Owner ID

652908
546488
317485
545123
§15318
635079
658681
136081
461860
174872
565274
561372
514870
554503
566884
5568172
514112
358013
457701
581145

i “[op T P i

<ALL>

Taxpayer Name Market Value
CENTERFPOINT ENERGY HOU 566,120
HALILI HAJRULLA TRUSTEE $2,178,080
HALIL! HAJRULLA 870
WIGGINS MATTHEW JR $1,534,110
JARDINA CHARLES C $1,510,510
IN GOD WE TRUST INVESTMENTS LLC $1,329,010
GAZANIA INVESTMENTS LLC $1,185,737
MOORE CLIFFORD A & PAT M $1.185,430
HALILI RAZZ TRUST $1,157,910
SHAHROODI SHAHROKH $1,110,590
CASSIUS LIMITED $1,037,590
BARRETT STEPHEN P & SHERYL §1,011,180
HNF HOLDINGS CO LLC $1,011,010
STARSHIP CONROE LP $979,480
BRIERS RAYMOND LEE & STACY HITE $1,030,000
BRADY KEVIN & TINA $B76,730
ARNETT THOMAS WILLIAM $853,550
LORING JON E JR & SAMANTHA L $1,100,000
ECKHARDT GARY & DENESE $835,760
GALVESTON BAY INVESTORS LLC $831,360

Taxable Value

$2,566,120
$2,111,087
$1,603,521
$1,534,110
§1,454,430
§1,329,010
$1,185,737
$1,161,357
§1,157,910
$1,110,580
$1.037,590
$1,011,180
$1,011,010
$579,480
$927,000
$876,730
$653,550
$843,886
$8386,750
$831,360

True Automation, Inc.

%,



Water District Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet

\
San Leon MUD -

Water District Name

\

Y |

\Water District's Address. City. State. ZIP Code
. \ !

Date: 07/29/2019 02:38 PM

Phone (area code and number)

| Warer District's Website Address

r

GENERAL INFORMATION: Water Code Section 49.001 defines a water district as @éﬁct or _éuﬂto:iry created by ng}éﬂ Constitution.

Article XVI, Seetion 39 or Article IIL Sections 52(b)(1) and (2). but does not include: I A

Chapter 62. Acts of the 52nd Legislature. 1951 (Article 8280-141. Civil 8 ). of

A

+ any navigation district or port authority created under general or special law ‘ﬂ}g}'}ome n and reclamation district created by

Vernon's T¢
+ any conservation and reclamation district governed by Water Code Chgrkr 36,
the law creating the district states that Water Code Chapter 49 'Qgpli © d
Warer Code Sections 49,107(g) and 49.108(f) provide ;
Warer Code Section 49.001 that levy and collect 1axes
Qection 49.236. requiring a public hearing on a proposed 1ax rate and publishing aspecial hearing notice.

fet.

This worksheet is provided to assist water districts in daennin}ug their rollback

less a special law creating'the dismict or amending

as technical assistance and not legal advice. Water districts should consult legal/counsel for interpretations of law regarding fax rate preparation
and adoption. N .
SECTION 1: Rollback Tax Rate 7

The rollback tax rate is the highest rate the water
The rollback rate is the current vear's debt service and contract [ax
impose no more than 1.08 times the amount of M&O tax imposed by the water district
of a residence homestead in the water distriet.
with disabilities or those age 65 or older.

rates. plus the mainte
in‘the preceding

/

district may adopt withour authorizing qualified voters to petition for a rollback election.

year on the average appraised value
The average appraised value disregards dny homestead exemption available only to people

P

Activity

|

|

|

ce and operation (M&Q} rate that would i
i

|

i

i

7

1. 2018 average appraised value of residence homestead.

g $140,697)

2. 2018 general exemptions available for the average homestead {e.‘:clydl'mg age 65 or older or disabled

i_ $14.070

6. Highest M&O tax on average residence homestead v:;ém increase (Multiply Line 3 by 1.08).
7

. 2019 average appraised valuc of residence homesgeéd.

2O

(9 5150884

that Tak Code Sections 36.05 and 26.07 do not apply to taxing units created under
under Water Code rions 49.107 and 49.108. Water districts must follow Water Code

x rate. The information provided in this worksheet is offered

persons exemprions). yd | i

3. 2018 average taxable value of residence bomestead (Line 1 mipds Line 2). A‘P’ (R ~3176.627| >

4. 2018 adopted M&O tax rate (per $100 of value). / $0.270000/$100

2 2018 M&O tax on average residence homestead (hiultipj{l:rLinc 3 by Line 4. divide by 8100)- $341.89
$369.24

{82019 general exemptions available for the aversée homestead (Excluding age 65 or older or disabled
{persons exemptions). /’f

$15.088

9. 2019 average taxable value of residence ho‘plflﬁtead (Line 7 minus Line 8).

Afler S Zax g < §135.796|

S

'10. Highest 2019 M&O Tax Rate (Line 6 di;‘ided by Line 9. multiply by $100). j ) $0.271907/$100
'11. 2019 Debt Tax Rate. / $0.546121/5100
Hl. 2019 Contract Tax Rate. v $0.000000/5100
13, 2019 Rollback Tax Rate (Add Lides 10, 11, and 12). 1

10 petition forarollback | $0.818028/S100]

‘This is the highest rate that the wate/ district may adopt without authorizing voters

|election. /

| l

'SECTION 2: Taxing Unif/Representative Name & Signature

Enter the name of the person preparing the rollback tax rate as authorized by the

L

print here
Printed Name of Water District Representative

sign here

governing body of the water distriet.

Warer District Representative Date

Jut

Amount/Rate .

LY

>



SAN LEON

MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Comparison of Historical Assessed Valuations & Tax Rates

DRAFT

2019
Tax Rate
Assessed Valuation D/S M&O Total
2019 $386,342,885 §0.4500 $0.1800 £0.6300
2018 $358,730.890 $0.1800 $0.2700 $0.4500
2017 $339,550,009 502582 $0.1918 50.4500
2016 $268,254,303 50.2459 $0.2041 £0.4500
2015 $253,105,006 502622 $0.1878 $0.4500
2014 $227.066.477 50.3000 $0.1500 $0.4500
2013 $217.,581.976 $0.3000 $0.1500 $0.4500
2012 $211,497,268 $0.1500 $0.3000 504500
2011 $207,311,551 $0.1500 $0.3000 50.4500
2010 5199252641 $0.1500 $0.3000 50,4500
2009 5188,701,790 £0.1500 $0.3000 50.4500
2008 115,245,142 0.1500 0.3 0.4500
2007 201,461,691 0.1500 0.3000 0.4500
2006 195,004,710 0.1721 0.2624 0.4345
1005 183,542,200 0.1794 0.23553 0.4347
2004 169,027,501 0.1978 p.2513 0.4491
2003 158,702,073 02108 03397 0.4505
2002 132,303,786 02780 02100 0.4880
2001 126,325,921 02360 0.2160 0.4460
2000 112,917,354 0.0400 0.2470 02870
1999 108,838,012 0.0420 02450 0.2870
1998 105,701,374 0.2900 0.0000 0.2900
1987 104,240,045 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
LAST YEAR'S TAX: Total
_Avg TaxBill TaxRate
2018 Average Taxable Home Value: $126,627 $570 0.4500
$100,000 $450 0.4500
$200,000 $900 0.4500 Increase or
$300,000 $1,350 0.4500 (Decrease)
EXAMPLES OF THIS YEAR'S TAX RATE:
2019 Average Taxable HomeValue: $135,796 £856 0.6300 $285.65
$100,000 $630 0.6300 §180.00
MAXIMUM $200,600 §1,260 0.6300 $360.00
$300,000 £1,890 0.6300 $540.00
S135,796 842 0.6200 $272.11
$100,000 $620 0.6200 $170.00
IN-BETWEEN £200,000 $1,240 0.6200 $340.00
$300,000 §1,860 0.6200 $510.00
5135796 815 0.6000 $244.95
$100,000 $600 0.6000 $150.00
MINIMUM $200,000 $1,200 0.6000 $300.00
$300,000 $1.800 0.6000 $450.00
D/S Tax
|_Bill @ 100%
$611 $0.45000 /5100 A.V. §1,703,772 @ 58% Collections
$679 $0.50000 /S100 AV: 51,893,080 08% Collections
§742 S0.54610 /S1I00 AV: S$2,067.622 @ 98% Collections
[Estimated Maintenance and Operations Tax: i |
Avg. SF
M&O Tax
Bill @ 100%
§33¢9 $0.2500 /SIO0AV: 5946540 @ 98% Collections
5299 $0.2200 /S100 AV §832955 @ 98% Collections
5272 $0.2000 /$100 AV §757.232 @ 98% Collections
5244 $0.1800 /SI00 AV,  $68150% @ 98% Collections
5204 $0.1500 JS100 AV, $567.924 @ 98% Collections

2019 Maintenance and Operations Tax collections at 98% iere approx.

Estimated Total Tax Rate Examples:

[ bDrs M&O Total |
0.4500 0.1500 $0.6000
0.4500 0.1800 $0.6300

§ 948,202



DRAFT

SAN LEON
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Debt Service Fund Management Index

2019
Debt Service Tax $0.4500 /3100 A.V.
Maintenance & Operations Tax 0.1500 /5100 AV.
ESTIMATED Tax Rate $0.6000  /S100 A.V.
09/02/19  Estimared Debt Service Fund Balance (2) §794.252
Estimated Capitalized Interest (INCLUDED IN BOND ISSUE) £796.250
09/02/19  Projected Debt Service Fund Balance $1,590,502
PLUS: Interest Income, Estimated @ 1.00% 15,905
PLUS: Tax Collections
Certified A.V.: $386,342,885 X $0.4500 @ 98% 1,703,772
Uncertified A.V.: 0 X $04500 @ 98% 0 1,703.772
$386,342,885 : $3,310,179
LESS: 2020 Debt Service Requirement (INCLUDES $1,260,000 IN NEW DEBT PAYMENTS) (2,109,900)
09/02/20  Projected Debt Service Fund Balance TOTAL: §1,200,279
Percentage of coverage of next year Debt Service Requirements 57%
2021 Debt Service Requirements $2,111,515
Average Annual Debt Service £2,194,122

(a) Debt Service Fund Balance provided by the District.

H



M/\!

iy

GLAMOD JELOZ OB LD (00 LG e,
BLL'riz'ies 000009268 G26'026'€S SARACR] 050°p20cH 0% GLE'LYA'GLE

96§'0/2'6Z 000002 1 0000021 B R 958'969'02 B20'PI6 T Q050 06 Z00'E6Y (A
b8 2061 flRU'TL6'6 000092} 000002} [EAEA AT HE0" P96 E 00zs'0 LOE'280"E0) oz
hll GGLL ME'e09'22  100'007°L 000'002'1 009'026'cE BR0vesE 0gigo 106 E80'EY Lvoe
EA A . RIBOENZ O0DOsR'L 000°002'1 Zelven'ze eI o onzeo 108'280" €00 voE

WL Z6SL Pr2'090'CZ  Q00'08E'L 000°082'1 PrL0ZE LT 120'v96"¢ 00250 10E'280' 26k G0
“hEGIBYL oL'9GL'8L  00D'08E'L 000'092" 212'900°08 020'v05s 00750 L0E"290' €60 VRIS
%EL GHEL - gRe'zev'ZL  000'092'L 000092 | Fa0'z1L9 az0'ven'z 00250 LOE'Z00'Cop LH0E
v Lgal 098'8rl'sL  00D'08Z') 000'092' | 099'80% L1 az0'ves'z o0z80 106'200'C6Y aroa
HOLBLLL CEQ'PPEPL 000'Q9E'L oo0‘ose'y 7ZEQ'POL'9L G20'p08'2 0050 106" ze0°caY LbO2
Y689 201 POR'OMG'EL  0OD'CBZ'L 000082 POY'00R' VL BI0'p95'S DOIE'0 L0e'ze0°csy ovoe
woL' 148 aig'ate'zl  000'002'L 000'092' 1 945" 96V EL 220'v95°2 00250 108'200'06k 6E0Z
%00 200 ovs'zeeiar  ooo'od's a00'09z" s G EAL'ZL QTo'vas'z 00250 10E'2080'C6Y 2002
Shel poL 025'029'6 SLVLEY'L 000'092'+ 9LV'LET G6'GE L 0" puu'e 0080 10¢'290"E6p L0z
hOL LLG LOG'105'0 GZO'peY'L 000'092'| SE9'vEd Z66'960'0L W2O'PIG'E ] LOE'Z00"E6h %173
YLOE 105 POG'Z6V' L Q01168 000'092'1 i 16/'E86'0 HIO'POG'E 00260 LOE'Z90'E6y GE0Z
WG 0EY PEL LD WY LOF'L 000'092') ey L2 LBV A06L BEO'POG'R NoEs 0 LOR'Z90°'C6h PEOE
%ET 6EE CEVEME'S e8e'652'e 000'082' gel'eas 052'9LL 126°209'L BL0'VHSE OES0 LOE'Z00 £k £Eoe
wooeze £oV'Ee0'G BEO'BEL'Z 000'002'1 BEs'0LE 004194 0EL'BLTL HI0'PON'C DOEE 0 VOE'ZH0'E0Y rene
wHvolz Z0L'pLd'y 6BLG'222'2 000'08Z'L aea'eLe ee'ars LzareEa's 0Z0'vO5'2 oozso LOE"ZAN'EEY LE0Z
PR COSZLEY 600'602'2 000'09%'4 ang'ele Lav'SEL 2991099 B0'VIL'T 00250 L0E'Z80'CEr R0
%44 181 VEQ'LLO'Y [N A 000’00zt 862802 00E'S2L LiL'LEe BLO'VIS'E 00is0 10E'Ee0'eay GE0G
whad gl GrL'Lve'E GLO'BLY'Z o009z’ 205202 VEFELL a9L'628's BL0'VI5'z 0ozso LORZ0'C0P R0
W8 Gyl v 1Bs2'E a0 Ln'e 000'082'1 2g0'L02 GLO'00L orl'ozy's BL0'PIE'E 00240 LOE'E00'Cor LE08
9L 2EL 9L £O°0GL'Z 000092 | PaZ'661 60€' 163 LAPL00'S 620'PO5'E 000 10E'200'¢0k 8202
WIGELL LSYEPY'Z GUY'PEL'E 000'08Z'L 901261 692 E0b 081 'GLE 200925 ¥ GLOPISE 0050 106'200' e6r GT0G
Y9 ¥ 0B6'EL0'2 G59'H21' 2 aua'ouz'e ans'o6lL (R DEG'C6T GEO'ERL Y L6 L2 00250 LOR'Z80'E0k ¥eoe
%0662 POLO0L'L 86'1a1'e 000'092' agL'6a1 B92'08E 0bG'Z62 Gae'zen e Gro'azeE 0060 161'209'608 20
%8904 020'260'L GESBLLE 000092 1 5P L8k Aa6"0aE oLz'Lez Gua'eIee POG'VIEE 00260 z0)'ov2' Ly i
WEL'9D a2 oK' GLS'LLLE 000'09%' L a09'501 BUE"BLE p5'68Z 9oZEIS € Zeh'e01'E 00260 LEO'ENG'SER (144
itk o9 VEFEOM' L 00a°604°¢ 000'062" 4 209'E8L PRGGLE une'26e PELTIGE £06'000'2 anzeo 670'000'G0K 0z0%
e 1L 1624'r05' L GE9'Lhe syl GLA"0RE (K GRE (1) QLE°E8E'E aLL'shos 002¢0 (#) con'zhe'ooe GLoz
ShLb 0L 0LF 0LG 9) oLr'oLss o0tl'o 0600885 oz
20570 B60'095 68 e
BER 0 £0C've2'00e 10¢
(AT T4 4900901052 S0z
0RO LLV'090'LEE bioE
ook 0 QL6 LIS LT EL0E
0isL0 pap one'suz 2107

" o _— 0080 Jsguews o 1ee
TG0 IONVIVE  SINGWIUINDIH VORCDWILZZS  WeseiT DWAES  heot O NN (@) eV TIVAY %01 0 %00k vy NOLLYO T Vel

S HYEA LXAN OMNIONT ANIAYES 1830 AIMNENI paInsu] Jv pamsu| yov Buipunjey ANNIATY ANOONI SNOLLDATION Xl 0355358y SMIONE
40 % FALLVINANND 1oL ANV Td MM 2107 SAIHIB £102 63NAE Z10Z soj0g IWLOL INTILSIANL  XVL A¥ES LEAA sia A3L03MOke HYHA

EE(IGE] _G2104r0ud 1¥LOL
(ee0z-azoz)  z2i'voh'es "5/ [Orly oBnoAy “ouy 's)eylay &)
‘yaesajuy pazjeyjdes jo ek suo sapnjau| ) .—.n—éﬂ
“aisia Aq pepirold AIUNSNI P G3LVYH %05°C © 020216407 601108 'spuog Xu| POIUIIUN 000'09L°228
__sswifed jdeg (6631 pau|eq punj gid pue 189 0ILVNILSH {a)
i "I eq punj -......ﬂ.n:ﬂ:&.n&-ﬁ:_ la)

5 ﬁmicum ON V9D A4 pepinosd AY PRIRY u (B)  SUORAWNSSY UIMOID

S~ T -



&0

GO0 HLOZ MDD L 005 U
peP G 1SS 000'008'4£8 09¥'GEL'ES SEE'161'8E _00L'BELLS 0% _BOEBL0GHS

000'GE2'SL  00009E') ~ Topooeey 90E'60v'2L oz 0osKo LOE 200’568 G102
Y%lE'EELL gEP'ORZ'YE 000092} 00009z’ 9K OVE'SL ole'elz'e oogy o LOR'700'E6Y [
%L2'160L o0f'Lze'cL  000°002't 000'002'} 9941951 0L8'IE'e 008¥'0 LOE'Z80'E0F Lpoz
%Ll LG 060'20€'2L  000'00Z' 000'00z's 969'229'E} oLe'nz'e 0080 LOE'Z00'E0V avon
Y L0'S06 0ZEeOPLL  Q00'08Z'| 000'00z") 02660021 oLe'elz'e 00s0 10E'Z80'00¢ LA
%9604 50" vrboL 000°008"} 000'002") o506y 0L L 00812 0040 Loe'zao'sk Pvoz
%Haw2es 990'001'G ooo'00z'| 000'002'1 apo'opd' ok 0L'pIz'e 0080 106'280'¢00 troz
L TRTR 0Lz'L26' 000°092"| 000'092" | pLE'L8L'G a'eiz'e o0s'o 0E'280't6y (A4
BB 008 GrE'ING'L 000Nz 'L 000'092"1 eve'aze'0 oL'mee 00SF 0 LOE'200'E0¢ 1v0Z
%8G PG alp'aeg's ooD'ove'L 000002} oLY'E0R L og'ee'e 00410 \0E'2R0"ear w0z
Ybb Py 900'059's 000'09E" L aoa'one’| 909'016'8 ole'nz'z 065K0 HOE'Z00"C0 6R0Z
OE TLE PEL'L68'y 0000984 000’08z 9gL' 186’6 ou'eLe'z 00410 L0E'200'Cay geoz
“%OT 96E 90R'TEL'E GLVLER'E 000'082" | GLV' LR LPEOET'S DLBE'e 00%K0 LOE'Z80'C0D 1oz
%0L'L0Z LIVLIOE G20'vor'L 000'092'} SZ8'VEL A60'A0S"Y 0LA'RIE'Z 0050 10£'2080'€6p 8€0e
WEOLS) T'LeL'T 004 LOK'S aoo'092' | B8OV IEE FLYRLLE OL'BLE'E (] 108'200°E6Y GE0Z
WS POL pEY'68SL aErier't 000'08Z°} ey LEE LEB'BYOE omne'z 005H0 0L 290°c8Y ve0zZ
WLHGG Lii'azg 98L'0ese'E 000°092'} SEL'CEL A TH) 06V 190 DHHZE 0580 1OC'290°26Y cez
oK e 629’890 geo'oez'z 000'002") 8eg'LE 001192 9uZ'80L't (UK A nogr o L0E'280'CEY 602
LAWK 06£'800 6L5'222'2 0000zt BEB'CLE Loe'arl GLO'LLLE om'ee'e 008K 0 LORZ00'26p [{irs
%0l or SPO'EGR 6BO'60E'T 000'092') gBs'cle Lap'sel VIVTOLE 018'812'C 0USKo LOE'Z80'E6E 0k
908'6E veZ'eon PRG'EBL'Z 000'092'} 262902 908'5eL 192'0L08 ua'siE'e 0030 10E'260'C6P 8207
441186 218259 6LO'02L'Z 000'002's 906'202 T AYA BEC'EEQ'E 0Lg'8IE'e oosk'o LOE'380'E6Y 208
“Havie 200's14 goLLet'z ooo'onz't 200'102 619'004 2eLa20'z olg'eie'e 00sK0 LOE'280'eaY Lete
Y006 206461 COD'0RI'Z 000'002' | T BOE' 16O 495'008'C omgeee 009w o LOE'200'28F 9208
L2 GGO'BA0 CGE'VEL'T 0000021 204261 GOZ'E0V 081642 0s2'v20'e 0oz 0050 0826020k 5202
D HE 09E'500 GU9'REL'Z 000'082'| 904'061 GL¥'PEE 0£5'262 GE0'vEL'E D2 008K 0 LOE'Z00'C0F ¥Z0T
el 62 GZ4'02Y GO6'LEL'E 000'092'} 26160l 602008 0bG'262 06L'2pL'E L5 2L0'T 008p'0 161'200'69k £z0z
Yl b PE BOZ'0RL YEOHLL'E a00'08z'1 agy'L8L 506008 012’162 Pra'6re'e phLDLE'L wsro zav'orz'Lik 2202
E AR 001'6E6 GES'LLLZ oa0'0ez's S09'sHL GO 9LE 0bs'68ez Gla'ppoe oLy'szd’l 00810 LE0'EKE'SER 1202
vl LS SPI'6LE} 006'60L 2 npa‘ose' | qpa'entL PES ELE 004262 () GpoGeee ERO'EEL LS D0sKo 620'000'908 0202
p L6 62 6L {a) zG2'vGLE 008¢'0 () gRe'zre'nnc 6102
0agLo 068°004'06C Lt4
2062'0 660°006'6EE Li0z
BSYZ0 £0C'peZ'e02 oz
22020 900'504 €82 sioe
000E'0 LLP'ODO'LZE vige
0000 ALG6'185'L4T £102
0ogL o pZY'aNE's02 Z10z
— 00EL0 LGU'LLE'L0Z LLOE
TONUIS 1990 30WvivE SINOWIUND3Y A9 DW0SLZeS  %eIoLCOWWES  %est B WS %OVt @y =anavivay %0L0 %00k EIRE] NOILYT VA (o7

SHVEA LNEN ONIaNG I0IAUIS LA3d aayunsni painsu| SV poinau] WoY fupungey ANNIATY ANOONI SNOLLOFTIOD WL 385388y ONICNE
40 % IANLYINAND TWLOL ANV MM L10Z SIS £10Z SUIAS ZIL0Z 80108 WL0L INLSAANT  XVL ANES 1830 s/a qaL0arokd UvVIA

JunLnd (3103 0kd VLOL
leeczgeoz)  zev'vor'zs 'Si0) [UnuLY O0EIEAY ‘auj 'sjeilep [e)jded 09WYS Ag pa)
jsoleju) pozjjeydes jo teod auo sepnjou) (] .—-u_éﬂ
‘Joinsia Aq popjasid AIHNSNI ' A3LYY %09't @ 020Z/61.0Z 901105 ‘spuog Xey peyuwiiun 000'06L'228

‘suewhed weg (g8377) vuL[Rg puny B/Q Pue 129k AILYINILED (o)
‘nalbjeq ncEzP_uu\. snajaesd sapnjouy (q)

f ‘w)eph G 10} yMoiB 56 SOINSSE 1aY 0D __wn pepiroid Ny pejjnan (e) SUONCINSEY A0 SIS MNELENE QMY TINGONT A0 NOLLTOU
N ...JJIJ{! e el = ; " 5

¥, " s




Water District
Notice of Public Hearing on Tax Rate

The San Leon Municipal Utility District will hold a public hearing on a proposed tax rate for the tax year 2019
on September 18, 2019 at 6:30 PM at San Leon Volunteer Fire Department, 337 12th Street, San Leon, Texas.
Your individual taxes may increase or decrease, depending on the change in the taxable value of your property
in relation to the change in taxable value of all other property and the tax rate that is adopted.

For the proposal: Joe Manchaca Kelly Neason
Keith Gossett Ken Bishop

Against the proposal: None

Present and not voting: None

Absent: Tyson Kennedy

The following table compares taxes on an average residence homestead in this taxing unit last year o taxes
proposed on the average residence homestead this year.

Last Year This Year

Total tax rate (per $100 of value) so.:zgg?gmo $0§3§:}2{£1 00
Difference in rates per $100 of value $0.180000
Percentage increase/decrease in rates (+/-) 40.00%
Average residence homestead appraised value $140,697 $150,884
General homestead exemptions available

(excluding 65 years of age or older or $14.070 $15,088

disabled person's exemptions)
Average residence homestead taxable v alue $126,627 $135,796
Tax on average residence homestead $569.82 $855.51
Annual increase/decrease in taxes if proposed

tax rate is adopted(+/-)and percentage of $285.69

increase (+/-) 50.14%

NOTICE OF TAXPAYERS' RIGHT TO ROLLBACK ELECTION

If taxes on the average residence homestead increase by more than eight percent, the qualified voters of the
water district by petition may require that an election be held to determine whether to reduce the operation and
maintenance tax rate to the rollback tax rate under Section 49.236(d), Water Code.

The San Leon Municipal Utility District proposes to use the tax increase for the purpose of paying debt service
on bonds approved by the voters in 2019 for a new wastewater plant and other system improvements.

-0



2019 Water District Tax Calculations

SAN LEON MUD August 1, 2019

Data Entry Page

0,6300~/f51 00

1. The Districts PROPOSED 2019 Total Tax Rate 3
2. 2019 average appraised value of residence homestead.
(TCAD Certification, page 2, Item K). $ 150,884 .~
3. 2019 average taxable value of residence homestead.
(TCAD Certification, page 2. Item L). s 135796
4. 2018 average appraised value of residence homestead.
(TCAD Certification, page 2, item M). $ 140,697 oA
5. 2018 average taxable value of residence homestead.
(TCAD Certification, page 2, ltem N). $ 126,627 \/
6. The district's 2018 Total Tax Rate. $ 0.4500 /$100
7 The district's 2018 Maintenance & Operation Tax Rate. 3 0.2700 /$100

LTo0o®

12.

13.
14.

Complete lines 8 thru 14 ONLY if you have qualified debt or contract service.

2019 Net Taxable Value (TCAD Certification, pg 1, bottom) $ 386,342,885
2019 Total Qualified Contract Service $ 0.00
. 2019 Total Qualified Debt Service $ 2,109,900.00
 SEE NOTE2 BELOW. Total amount to be applied against
above Debt and Contract Service from sources other than
2019 tax levy (e.g. from fund reserves). § 371,357.01
Your Final Calculated Debt Rate is: $ 0.4500 /$100

NOTE1: Ifline 12 displays "NEG#", then the amount entered on line 11 is too high.

Use the following ONLY if you wish a specified debt rate.

NOTE2: if you have a specific TARGET DEBT RATE, enter that rate on line 13 and enter
the amount that appears in line 14 into line 11. If you have done this correctly, line 12
will now equal line 13. If line 14 displays "NEG#", then your target debt rate is higher

than the law permits; you may not use that target rate. A ~\
2019 Target Debt Rate $ :' 0.4500 /1$100
Amount you need to enter into line 11 x\@x’



2019 Water District Tax Calculations
SAN LEON MUD

August 1, 2019

NOTE: This worksheet provides the numbers you will need for your Notice, but it is not in
the format required for publicaton. An example of the notice is provided on page 45 of the
Comptroliers 2019 Truth in Taxation Guide. Details regarding this notice are discussed in

"Part C. Water Districts”, on page 25 of the guide.

Notice of Public Hearing Notice Calculations

1. 2018 average appraised value of residence homestead $
2. homestead (excluding senior citizen's or disabled person’s
exemptions) - $

3. 2018 average taxable value of residence homestead
(line 1 minus line 2) =
4. 2018 adopted TOTAL tax rate (per $100 of value) X
5. 2018 Total tax on average residence homestead
(multiply line 3 by line 4, divide by $100) =
6. 2019 average appraised value of residence homestead
7. 2019 general exemptions available for the average
homestead (excluding senior citizen's or disabled person’s

8. 2019 average taxable value of residence homestead

(line 8 minus line 9) =
0. 2019 proposed TOTAL tax rate (per $100 of value) X
10. 2019 Total tax on average residence homestead

(multiply line 8 by line 9, divide by $100) =%
11. Difference in Rates per $100 value $
12. Percentage increase/decrease in rates (+/-)

€«

'
L] A &

1
e n

14, percentage of increase

f
!

13. Annual increase/decrease in taxes if proposed tax rate is adopte $/

140,697

14,070

126,627
0.4500 /$100

569.82
150,884

15,088

135,796
0.6300 /5100

855.51
_~5.1800/$100
/" 40.00% T
285.69
50.13%

b



2019 Water District Tax Calculations

SAN LEON MUD

10.

11.
12.
13.

Rollback Worksheet
2018 average appraised value of residence homestead
2018 general exemptions available for the average homestead
(exciuding senior citizen's or disabled person’s exemptions)
2018 average taxable value of residence homestead
(line 1 minus line 2)
2018 adopted M&O tax rate (per $100 of value)
2018 M&O tax on average residence homestead
(multiply line 3 by line 4, divide by $100)
Highest M&O tax on average residence homestead with increase
(multiply line 5 by 1.08)
2019 average appraised value of residence homestead
2019 general exemptions available for the average homestead
(excluding senior citizen's or disabled person’'s exemptions)
2019 average taxable value of residence homestead
(line 7 minus line 8)
Highest 2019 M&0O Tax Rate
(line 6 divided by line 8, multiply by 100)
2019 Debt Tax Rate
2019 Contract Tax Rate
2019 Rollback Tax Rate
(add lines 10, 11, and 12)

&

August 1, 2019

140,697
14,070

126,627
0.2700 /$100

341.88

369.24
150,884

16,088
135,796
0.2719 /$100
0.4500 /$100

0.0000 /3100

0.7219 /3100



PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED OCTOBER , 2019
Rating: Moody’s Investors Service
NEW ISSUE BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY See "MUNICIPAL BOND RATINGS AND INSURANCE"

2

In the opinion of Orrick. Herrington & Sutcliffe. LLP, Special Tax Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court
decisions, and assuming. among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, In the further opinion of Special
Tax Counsel. interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. Special Tax Counsel expresses
no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the amount, accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. See

“TAX MATTERS” herein,

Tl $22,750,000
i SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
(A Political Subdivision of the State of Texas Located in Galveston County, Texas)
UNLIMITED TAX BONDS, SERIES 2019
Dated: November 1,2019 Due: September 1, as shown below

Interest on the herein described bonds (the “Bonds”) will accrue from November 1. 2019 and is payable March 1. 2020 and cach September 1 and March
1 (each an “Interest Payment Date™), thereafter until the earlier of maturity or redemption, and will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed
of twelve 30-day months. The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form only, without coupons, in denominations of $3.000 or any integral multiple
thereof, and when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC™),
New York. New York, acting as securities depository for the Bonds until DTC resigns or is discharged. The Bonds initially will be available to purchasers
in book-entry form only, So long as Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, principal of and interest on the Bonds will
be payable by the paying agent to DTC, which will be solely responsible for making such payment to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. The initial
Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is ZB, National Association. dba Amegy Bank, Houston. Texas (the “Paying Agent”). The Bonds are obligations
solely of the San Leon Municipal Utility District (the “District”) and are not obligations of Texas City, Texas: Galveston County, Texas: the State of
Texas; or any entity other than the District.

MATURITIES
(Due September 1) CUSIP Prefix: 798465
Initial Initial

Principal Interest Reoffering CUSIP Principal Interest Reoffering CUSIP
Amount Rate (a) Due Yield (b) Suffix Amount Rate (a) Due Yield (b) Suffix
$520,000 2020 §705.000 2035*

355,000 2021 740,000 2036%

375,000 2022 780,000 2037+

395.000 2023 815,000 2038*

4135.000 2024 860,000 2039*

435,000 2025 900,000 2040*

450,000 2026 945.000 2041%

480,000 2027+ 995,000 2042*

500,000 2028* 1,045.000 2043*

525,000 2029* 1,095,000 2044%

333.000 2030* 1,150,000 2045%

580,000 2031* 1,210,000 2046*

610,000 2032* 1,270,000 2047*

640,000 2033% 1.330.000 2048

670,000 2034% 1,400.000 2049*

% Optional Redemption Provisions: The District reserves the right to redeem, prior to maturity, in integral multiples of $5.000, those Bonds maturing September |, 2027

through 2049, both inclusive, in whole or from time to time in part, on September 1, 2026, and on any date thereafter at a price of par plus accrued interest from the most
recent interest payment date to the date fixed for redemption.  The Bends maturing September 1, 2027 through September 1, 2048 may be subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption. See "THE BONDS - Redemption Provisions".

(a) After requesting competitive bids for purchase of the Bonds, the District has accepted the lowest bid to purchase the Bonds, bearing interest as shown, at a price of
9% of par plus acerued interest to the date of delivery, resulting in a net effective interest rate to the District of Y.
(b) The initial reoffering vields indicated represent the lower of the yields resulting when priced to maturity or the first call date. The initial vields at which the Bonds will be

priced will be established by and will be the sole responsibility of the Initial Purchaser (as herein defined) The vields may be changed at any time at the discretion of the
Initial Purchaser. Accrued interest from November 1, 2019 to the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Imitial Purchaser is to be added to the price.

The Bonds. when issued, will constitute valid and legally binding obligations of the District and will be payable from the proceeds of an annual ad
valorem tax, without legal limitation as to rate or amount, levied against taxable property within the District (as defined in the Bond Order). See "THE
BONDS - Source of Payment." THE BONDS ARE SUBJECT TO SPECIAL INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS DESCRIBED HEREIN. Bond
purchasers arc encouraged to read this entire Official Statement prior to making an investment decision. including particularly the section titled
“INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS.”



The Bonds are offered by the Initial Purchaser subject to prior sale, when. as and if issued by the District and accepted by the Initial Purchaser, subject,
among other things to the approval of the Initial Bond by the Attorney General of Texas and the approval of certain legal matters by Baker Williams
Matthiesen LLP and Reid. Strickland & Gillette, LLP, Co-Bond Counsel (collectively, “Bond Counsel”) and Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP,

Houston, Texas, (“Special Tax Counsel”). In addition, certain legal matters will be passed upon for the District by Johnson Petrov LLP. Houston, Texas.
Disclosure Counsel. Delivery of the Bonds is expected on or about November 20, 2019. in Houston, Texas.

Selling: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 at Noon, local time
at 443 24" Street, San Leon, Texas 77539



TABLE OF CONTENTS

el

USE OF INFORMATION IN OFFICIAL STATEMENT .. -
SALE AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE BONDS... R T |
Award of the Bonds...
Prices and Marketablllw
Securities Laws. ..o
MUNICIPAL BOND RATINGS J\ND lNSURANCF ......
OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY ...
THE DISTRICT...
THE BONDS ...
INVESTMENT (,ONSIDERATIONS
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
INTRODUCTION. ..
THE BONDS ..
General Descnpnun .....
Redemption Provisions ..
Termination of Book- Emry-()nly Sys'r.em
Source of Payment....

e el el = - B =T R S S P

Payment Record .. I
Funds. Y =40
Aulhont)r fur ]ssumce K PSRN w12
Registration and Transl'er ....... =12

Replacement of Paying Agent .
Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds ...
Issuance of Additional Debt. ..
Remedies in Event of Default.......
Legal Investment and Eli gl‘mi:ty !.o Secure

Public Funds in Texas.. BTy |
Defeasance .. P . ]
Specific Tax Covennnn .......... 15
Additional Covenants... w1
Amendment to the Bqnd Order 15
Alteration of Boundaries .. 15

Approval of Bonds ..o o 15

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM ... .. .16
ANNEXATION AND CONSOLIDATION ... 18
USE AND DISTRIBUTION OF BOND PROCEEDS .. .19
INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS o .20

General ..,

Humcam.s and Suhsldencc
Hurricane Harvey ...
Downturn in the Huus lng Market
Impact on District Tax Rates... "
Tax Collections and I'oreclnsm'e Remed 1es
Registered Owners' Remedies....
Bankruptey Limitation to Reglstered Owners Rights ]
The Effect of Financial Institutions Act of 1989

on Tax Collections of the District ... «22
Marketability ... 58 22
Continuing Compham.e wuh Certaln Covenants 222
Future Debt ..o ; S ST =
Approval of Bonds RSO -

DISTRICT MAP....... 24

THE DISTRICT.... , 25
General... 25
Lucauon 25
Managemem nf !.he Dismu 25
Development ... .27

Future Dﬂ\relopmcm......,_........

Annexation of the District... 27
THE SYSTEM...ccosuanmsssrsssons .27
GIanEral s aniin %
Water System ... 27
Wastewater System .. .28
Drainage System ... <29
100-year Fload Plain ....... 29
Future Debt .. .29

Water and Wastewatcr O'peranans.
Water and Wastewater Operating Statmem..,,.,...._,,_............___..31

PROJECTED DEBT SERVICE REQU]REMBNTS i R
FINANCIAL STATEMENT ... s R
Unlimited Tax Bonds Authorized but Umissued. ... 33
Outstanding Bonds ... T 11

Cash and Investment Balances
Invesiment Authnmy and investmem Practlce
of the District... e R e P
Current lnvesn'nems
Estimated Overlappmg Debt Statement .....
Ove:’sappmg Taxes .. ; vt
TAX DATA .
Classifi catl on of Assessed Valuzmon
Tax Collections ..
District Tax Rates,_..
Tax Rate Limitation ..............
Maintenance Tax...
Top Taxpayers....
Tax Adequacy for DEbt Servu;e
TAXING PROCEDURES. ..
Authority to Levy l‘axcs
Property Tax Code and County W|dc Appralsal Dlsmct............ 3
Property Subject to Taxation by the District...
Valuation of Property for Taxation............... ’
District and Taxpayer Remedies ..
Levy and Collection of Taxes ...

Districts’ Rug'ms in the Event of Tﬂ\t De! mquencles 40
LEGAL MATTERS ... R e 1
Legal Opinions .. i
Legal Review... L4l

No Matenal Advarse Change ................ .42
No-Litigation Certificate ..

TAX MATTERS .
Qualified Tax- htcmpt Ohhgauons

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INF ORMA TTON .
Annual Reports .. A RS S TR 44
Material Event Nonces R e s R 44
Availability of lnfnmaunn from MSRB
Compliance with Prior Undertakings...

OTHER INFORMATION ... e
Registration and Quam' sauou ar Bonds for Sale,
Authenticity of Financial Information...

Forward Looking Statements ..... e
OFFICIAL STATEMENT .. ...... TR .
Preparation ... A6
Financial Advisor.. 46
Consultants.... e o e e e
Updating the OlTlcla] Statcmcm Dun ng
Underwriting Period... i i 3O
Certification as to Omcml Statemcnt AT
Official Statement "Deemed Final" . A7

PHOTOGRAPHS-
APPENDIX A - District - Audited Financial Statements
APPENDIX B - Special Tax Counsel Opinion

Assess



USE OF INFORMATION IN OFFICIAL STATEMENT

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any
representations other than those contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the District or the Initial Purchaser.

This Official Statement does not alone constitute, and is not authorized by the District for use in connection with, an
offer to sell or the solicitation of any offer to buy in any state in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or
in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful
to make such offer or solicitation.

All of the summaries of the statutes, orders, contracts, records, and engineering and other related reports set forth in
the Official Statement are made subject to all of the provisions of such documents. These summaries do not purport
to be complete statements of such provisions, and reference is made to such documents, copies of which are
available from SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc. for further information.

This Official Statement contains, in part, estimates, assumptions and matters of opinion which are not intended as
statements of fact, and no representation is made as to the correctness of such estimates, assumptions, or matters of
opinion, or as to the likelihood that they will be realized. Any information and expressions of opinion herein
contained are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this "Official Statement" nor any sale
made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of
the District or the other matters described herein since the date hereof. However, the District has agreed to keep this
"Official Statement” current by amendment or sticker to reflect material changes in the affairs of the District, and to
the extent that information actually comes to its attention, other matters described in the "Official Statement" until
delivery of the Bonds to the Initial Purchaser and thereafter only as specified in "OFFICIAL STATEMENT -
Updating the Official Statement During Underwriting Period" and “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION.”

SALE AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE BONDS
Award of the Bonds

After requesting competitive bids for the Bonds, the District has accepted the bid of (the
"Initial Purchaser") to purchase the Bonds at the interest rates shown on page | of this Official Statement at a price of

% of par plus accrued interest to date of delivery. No assurance can be given that any trading market will be
developed for the Bonds after their sale by the District to the Initial Purchaser. The District has no control over the price
at which the Bonds are subsequently sold, and the initial yields at which the Bonds are priced and reoffered are
established by and are the sole responsibility of the Initial Purchaser.

Prices and Marketability

The delivery of the Bonds is conditioned upon the receipt by the District of a certificate executed and delivered by
the Initial Purchaser on or before the date of delivery of the Bonds stating the prices at which a substantial amount of
the Bonds of each maturity has been sold to the public. For this purpose, the term "public" shall not include any
person who is a bond house, broker or similar person acting in the capacity of underwriter or wholesaler. Otherwise,
the District has no understanding with the Initial Purchaser regarding the reoffering yields or prices of the Bonds.
Information concerning reoffering yields or prices is the sole responsibility of the Initial Purchaser.

The prices and other terms with respect to the offering and sale of the Bonds may be changed from time to time by
the Initial Purchaser after the Bonds are released for sale, and the Bonds may be offered and sold at prices other than
the initial offering prices, including sales to dealers who may sell the Bonds into investment accounts. In connection
with the offering of the Bonds, the Initial Purchaser may over - allot or effect transactions which stabilize or maintain
the market prices of the Bonds at levels above those which might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such
stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

(78



The District has no control over trading of the Bonds in the secondary market. Moreover, there is no guarantee that
a secondary market will be made in the Bonds. In such a secondary market, the difference between the bid and asked
price of utility district bonds may be greater than the difference between the bid and asked price of bonds of
comparable maturity and quality issued by more traditional municipal entities, as bonds of such entities are more
generally bought, sold or traded in the secondary market.

Securities Laws

No registration statement relating to the offer and sale of the Bonds has been filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Act of 133, as amended, in reliance upon the exemptions provided thereunder. The
Bonds have not been registered or qualified under the Securities Act of Texas in reliance upon various exemptions
contained therein; nor have the Bonds been registered or qualified under the securities laws of any other
"jurisdiction”. The District assumes no responsibility for registration of the Bonds under the securities laws of any
other jurisdiction in which the Bonds may be offered, sold or otherwise transferred. This disclaimer of responsibility
for registration or qualification for sale or other disposition of the Bonds shall not be construed as an interpretation
of any kind with regard to the availability of any exemption from securities registration or qualification provisions in
such other jurisdiction.

MUNICIPAL BOND RATINGS AND INSURANCE

Municipal Bond Rating and Insurance... The District has made application to Moody's Investors Service (“Moody’s”) for
a municipal bond rating in connection with the Bonds. On August 31, 2017 Moody’s released a rating of A3 on the
District’s Series 2017 bonds. The District’s 2013 bond issue had an underlying rating of BBB+ from Standard & Poor’s
(“S&P) and was insured by Assured Guaranty which has a current S&P rating of AA.

The District has also made application to two bond insurance companies for a guaranty insurance policy insuring the timely
payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The premium for such insurance and any associated rating fees will be
paid by the Initial Purchaser. The purchase of insurance by the initial purchaser is at bidder's option and bidder’s risk.

An explanation of the significance of a rating may be obtained from the company furnishing the rating. The rating reflects
only the respective view of such organization, and the District makes no representation as to the appropriateness of the rating,
There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will not be revised downward or
withdrawn entirely by such rating company, if, in the judgment of such company circumstances so warrant. Any such
downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.



OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY

The following material is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information and financial statements appearing
elsewhere in this Official Statement. The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of this
entire Official Statement. No person is authorized to detach this summary from this Official Statement or to
otherwise use it without the entire Official Statement.

THE DISTRICT

THE ISSUEY . ooversyissiovssibasabiiovidiis San Leon Municipal Utility District (the "District"), a political subdivision of the
State of Texas, was created by an act of the 59™ Legislature of the State of Texas
on May 26, 1965, pursuant to House Bill 1082 Chapter 520 (Vernon’s Texas Civil
Statutes) and by Order of the Texas Water Rights Commission, now the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ) as a conservation and reclamation
district under the provisions of Section 59, Article XV1 of the Constitution of the
State of Texas. The District operates under the provisions of Chapters 49 and 51
of the Texas Water Code. The District lies within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of
Texas City. The District has approximately 3,200 acres currently within the
boundaries of the District. See “THE DISTRICT — General.”

LGN s vosrmssrissrsmsasasisirommisndi The District is located in Galveston County approximately two miles east of State
Highway 146 on West Galveston Bay, north of Texas City and east of Bacliff. The
District is bounded on the north and east by West Galveston Bay, on the west by
Houston Lighting and Power Company’s P.H. Robinson Power Plant inlet channels
and on the south by Dickinson Bay. The District is also approximately 10 miles
from the City of Dickinson. The District is on the east side of Interstate Highway
45 approximately 35 miles south of the central business district of the City of
Houston and 15 miles north of the central business district of the City of Galveston.
See “THE DISTRI606CT.”

Development within
The DISHICL.....oceeosseeerereerreneren. Development of the District began in the 1970s.  As of June 30, 2019, there were
2,606 active single-family home connections in the District. In addition to the
single-family connections, there are approximately 50 meters in use at mobile
home and RV parks, 79 commercial meters and 36 multi-family meters. These
meters represent approximately 558 Equivalent Single-Family connections.

The District has approximately six miles of property fronting Galveston Bay.
Development along the Bay has been and currently is high-end, well-kept home
sites many of which are weekend/vacation homes. The remainder of the District
consists of smaller homes including various mobile home parks and permanent
recreation vehicles. There is no zoning in the District, and therefore, there is no
pattern to development of home sites in type, value or maintenance. Of the homes
which currently have been designated as homesteads, the average market value as
shown on the 2019 tax roll of the District prepared by the Galveston Central
Appraisal District is approximately $150,884.

Commercial development in the District includes fish and shrimp processing
companies, oil production, neighborhood grocery stores, restaurants & bars,
marinas, boat repair facilities RV Parks and various other retail and service
establishments. See “TAX DATA — Top Taxpayers.” Fire projection is provided
by the San Leon Volunteer Fire Department, which also provided “Emergency
Medical” and “First Responder” services for the San Leon community. A hospital
is located in Texas City which is approximately ten minutes away. Schools for the
District are provided by the Dickinson Independent School District. See “THE
DISTRICT™.



Source of Payment

Payment Record

Authority for

Use of Proceeds

Bonds Authorized But

...............................

THE BONDS

The Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $22,750,000 mature annually in
varying amounts on September 1 of each year from 2020 through 2049. Interest
accrues from November 1, 2019 at the rates per annum set forth on the cover page
hereof and is payable March 1, 2020 and each September | and March 1 thereafter
until maturity or earlier redemption. The Bonds are offered in fully registered form
in integral multiples of $5,000 for any one maturity. See "THE BONDS — General
Description.”

Bonds maturing in the years 2027 through 2049, inclusive, are subject to optional
redemption, in whole or from time to time in part, at the option of the District on
September 1, 2026, and on any date thereafter at par plus accrued interest from the
most recent interest payment date to the date of redemption. See “THE BONDS —
Redemption Provisions™.

Principal and interest on the Bonds are payable from the proceeds of a continuing
direct annual ad valorem tax levied upon all taxable property within the District,
which under Texas law is not limited as to rate or amount. The Bonds are
obligations solely of the San Leon Municipal Utility District and are not
obligations of the State of Texas; Galveston County, Texas; Texas City, Texas
or any other political subdivision or entity other than the District. See "THE
BONDS - Source of Payment."

The District has never defaulted on the payment of any bond obligation. See
“FINANCIAL STATEMENT — Outstanding Bonds™.

The Bonds are issued pursuant to Article XVI, Section 50 of the Texas
Constitution and the general laws of the State of Texas, including particularly
Chapters 49 and 51 of the Texas Water Code, as amended, an order of the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality (*TCEQ") approving the issuance of the
Bonds, and pursuant to an order (the “Bond Order”) adopted by the Board of
Directors of the District. See “THE BONDS - Authority for Issuance.”

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used for: (1) wastewater treatment plant
expansion to 1.90 MGD; (2) 48" effluent outfall line; and (3) to finance certain
engineering and legal costs. In addition, proceeds of the Bonds will be used to pay
certain costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds. See “USE AND
DISTRIBUTION OF BOND PROCEEDS.”

The Bonds are the first installment from the $39,840,000 in bonds authorized at an
election held within the District on May 4, 2019 for the purpose or purposes of
construction and acquisition of water, sewer and drainage facilities and
improvements. After the sale of the Bonds, $17,090,00 in bonds will remain from
the May 4, 2019 issuance and $5,000,000 in bonds from the $15,000,000 will
remain authorized but unissued from the May 14, 2011 election.



Municipal Bond Ratings
and INSUrANCe...ieseeissrssenessns

Tax Exemption .....ocooveweensinnnsnss

General Counsel &
Co-Bond Counsel ..........cc.ccuve

Co-Bond Counsel .....c.oevveeeenins
Special Tax Counsel....oouiens
Disclosure Counsel....cocriiainns
Financial AdVISOT ....covevenvnniiins

District Engineer..........ccouiunn

In connection with the sale of the Bonds, the District has made application to
Moody’s Investors Service Inc. for a municipal bond rating. On August 31,
2017, Moody’s Investors Service Inc. released an A3 rating on District’s 2017
bonds. The District’s 2013 bond issue had an underlying rating of BBB+ from
Standard & Poor's (“S&P) and was insured by Assured Guaranty which has a
current S&P rating of AA. The District has also made application to a guaranty
insurance company insuring the timely payment of the principal of and interest on the
Bonds. The premium for such insurance and any associated rating fees will be
paid by the Initial Purchaser. The purchase of insurance by the Initial
Purchaser is at the bidder’s option and at the bidder’s risk.

In the opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP, Special Tax Counsel,
based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court
decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain
representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds
is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section
103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, In the further opinion of Special
Tax Counsel, interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. Special Tax Counsel
expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the
ownership or disposition of, or the amount, accrual or receipt of interest on, the
Bonds. See “TAX MATTERS” herein.

Reid. Strickland & Gillette, LLP, Baytown, Texas.
Baker Williams Matthiesen LLP, Houston Texas.
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP, Houston Texas.
Johnson Petrov LLP, Houston, Texas.

SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc., Austin, Texas.

Costello Engineering & Surveying, Houston, Texas.

INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS

The purchase and ownership of the Bonds involve certain investment considerations, and all prospective purchasers

are urged to examine carefully

the Official Statement, including particularly the section captioned "INVESTMENT

CONSIDERATIONS," with respect to the investment security of the Bonds and other factors deseribed therein.



SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(Unaudited as of September 1, 2019)

2019 Assessed Valuation as of January 1, 2019 (100% of estimated market value) ......c........

. $386,342,885 (a)

Gross Debt Outstanding (after issuance of the Bonds) e e 3 33,325,000 (b)
Ratio of Gross Debt to 2019 Assessed Valuation as of January 1, BT misammumesmmsimsnises 8.63%
2019 Tax Rate
DIEBE SEIVICE 1.vvovuessreesseissssessmmmrssssssssssssssessasssiommssatas s LSS s $0.45
Maintenance & OPEIAtION ......vusieeseusseussusirasiasssssmssmssesseisis it $0.18
Tt covssusisssssarione .. $0.63
Debt Service FURd BAANCE ........csserrersesissssmrismssseisesmssisssrssssstissssasssiatsse s ssss s sansamiaiosnpassssss $1,957,414  (c)
Average percentage of current tax collections - Tax Years 2013/2018 .cccviriiimmnniann: 93.49%
Average percentage of total tax collections - Tax Years 2013/2018 oo 97.93%
*The District is on a June 30 fiscal year end.
Projected Average Annual Debt Service Requirement (2019/2033) of the
Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds ("Projected Average Requirement' .. e eecemsenensrensess $2,375,263
Tax rate required to pay Projected Average Requirement based upon
7019 Assessed Valuation at 95% collections as of January 1, 2019 cocnrrrinrorsornsnssnsaseras $0.65/8$100 A.V.
Projected Maximum Annual Debt Service Requirement (2033) of the
Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds ("Projected Maximum Requirement”).....coiuerveiisinnes $2,466,888

Tax rate required to pay Projected Maximum Requirement based upon

2019 Assessed Valuation at 95% collections as of January 1, 2019w

Status of water and sewer connections as of August 2019:

$0.68/8100 A.V.

SNGIE FAIMLY CONMECHONS .. vvvvvessusssssessasssssoossssssssssssssssssssess st R 2,606
Multi-Residential fmefers] CONMECIONS .......coov.vussmmsismsssinsisiis s s 36
Commercial Multi /meters] (Mobile Home & RV PATKS)..ociiviviviassisssssianssinarimmsasssassruss 50
COMMETCIAl CONNECHIONS. 111rvrensnvsersensssrsrsrsssrenssnsenssssebississsasisasanssia st sss st senss st s s 79
Other (District, IITIGAtION) ...cuvvrvirieresin s it 50
Estimated population ...........c.cuumerimismmsmmisssstsmmassssisnssnsnssess i 10,329 (d)

(a) Certified Taxable Assessed Value within the District on January 1, 2019 as provided by the Galveston Central Appraisal District

("GCAD™). See "TAXING PROCEDURES."
(b) Includes the Bonds. See “FINANCIAL STATEMENT — Outstanding Bonds.”

(¢) After the sale of the bonds. Included in the sale of the Bonds is 12 months of capitalized interest cost estimated at 5% of the principal
amount of the Bonds (est. $1,137.500) and will be deposited to the Debt Service Fund upon closing. Neither Texas Law nor the Bond

Order requires that the District maintain any particular sum in the Debt Service Fund.

(d) Based on 3.5 residents per completed gingle-family, multi-residential and commercial-multi (RV/Maobile Home) equivalent single-family
connections (ESFCs). The 36 multi-residential connections equate to 48 ESFCs, the 50 commercial-multi equate to 297 ESFC’s and the

2,606 single-family connections equate (o 2.606 ESFCs.



OFFICIAL STATEMENT
relating to
$22,750,000

SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
(A Political Subdivision of the State of Texas Located in Galveston County, Texas)
Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2019

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement provides certain information in connection with the issuance by San Leon Municipal Utility
District (the “District™) of its $22,750,000 Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2019 (the “Bonds™).

The Bonds are issued pursuant to Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution and the general laws of the State
of Texas, including Chapters 49 and 51 of the Texas Water Code, as amended, pursuant to an order (the “Bond
Order™) adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on the date of the sale of the Bonds, and pursuant to an
approving order of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (the “TCEQ").

Unless otherwise indicated, capitalized terms used in this Official Statement have the same meaning assigned to such
terms in the Bond Order.

Included in this Official Statement are descriptions of the Bonds and certain information about the District and its
finances. ALL DESCRIPTIONS OF DOCUMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN ARE SUMMARIES ONLY AND
ARE QUALIFIED IN THEIR ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO EACH SUCH DOCUMENT. Copies of such
documents may be obtained from the Bond Counsel, Baker Williams Matthiesen LLP, 5005 Woodway Dr., Suite
201, Houston, Texas 77056 or during the offering period from the District’s Financial Advisor, SAMCO Capital
Markets, Inc., Attn: Christina M. Lane, 6805 Capital of Texas Highway, Suite 350, Austin, Texas 78731, upon
payment of reasonable copying, mailing and handling charges.

THE BONDS
General Description

The Bonds will bear interest from November 1, 2019 and will mature on September 1 of the years and in the
principal amounts, and will bear interest at the rates per annum, set forth on the cover page hereof. Interest on the
Bonds will be paid on March 1, 2020 and September 1 and March 1 (each an “Interest Payment Date”) thereafter
until maturity or earlier redemption and will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day
months. The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form only, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof, and when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and
nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York. New York, acting as securities depository for the
Bonds until DTC resigns or is discharged. The Bonds initially will be available to purchasers in book-entry form
only. So long as Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, principal of and interest
on the Bonds will be payable by the paying agent to DTC, which will be solely responsible for making such payment
to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. The initial paying agent/registrar for the Bonds is ZB, National Association,
dba Amegy Bank, Houston, Texas (“Paying Agent”).

Redemption Provisions

Optional Redemption...The Bonds maturing on and after September 1, 2027, are subject to redemption prior to
maturity at the option of the District, in whole or from time to time in part, on September 1, 2026, or on any date
thereafter. at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest from the most recent
payment date to the date fixed for redemption.



Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption...In addition to being subject to optional redemption, as provided above, the
Bonds maturing September 1, and September 1, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption
prior to maturity in the following amounts, on the following dates and at a price of par plus accrued interest to the
redemption date from amounts required to be deposited in the Debt Service Fund:

Bonds Maturing September 1, Bonds Maturing September 1,
Mandatory Principal Mandatory Principal
Redemption Date Amount Redemption Date Amount

The principal amount of the Bonds required to be redeemed pursuant to the operation of the mandatory sinking fund
redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option of the District, by the principal amount of any Bonds of the
stated maturity which, at least 50 days prior 0 a mandatory redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the
District, at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of purchase
thereof, and delivered to the Paying Agent for cancellation, (2) shall have been purchased and cancelled by the
Paying Agent at the request of the District, with monies in the Debt Service Fund at a price not exceeding the
principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof, or (3) shall have been redeemed
pursuant to the optional redemption provisions and not theretofore credited against a mandatory sinking fund
redemption requirement,

Notice of Redemption...The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give written notice of redemption, by first class mail,
overnight delivery, email, or other comparably secure means, not less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption
date, to each registered securities depository (and to each national information service that disseminates redemption
notices) known to the Paying Agent/Registrar, but neither the failure to give such notice nor any defect therein shall
affect the sufficiency of notice given to the Registered Owner as hereinabove stated. The Paying Agent/Registrar
may provide written notice of redemption to DTC by facsimile.

The Bonds of a denomination larger than $5,000 may be redeemed in part ($5,000 or any multiple thereof). Any
Bond to be partially redeemed must be surrendered in exchange for one or more new Bonds of the same maturity for
the unredeemed portion of the principal of the Bonds so surrendered. In the event of redemption of less than all of
the Bonds, the particular Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the District, if less than all of the Bonds of a
particular maturity are to be redeemed, the Paying Agent is required to select the Bonds of such maturity to be
redeemed by lot.

Termination of Book-Entry-Only System

The Bonds are subject to the book-entry-only system administered by DTC. See “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY
SYSTEM.” In the event that the book-entry-only system is discontinued by DTC or the District, the following
provisions will be applicable to the Bonds.

Payment ...Principal of the Bonds will be payable at maturity to the registered owners as shown by the registration
books maintained by the Paying Agent upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds to the Paying Agent at the
designated office for payment of the Paying Agent in Houston, Texas (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”).
Interest on the Bonds will be payable by check or draft, dated as of the applicable interest payment date, sent by the
Paying Agent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registered owners at their respective addresses
shown on such records, or by such other method acceptable to the Paying Agent requested by a registered owner at the
risk and expense of such registered owner. If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall
be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent is located are required or authorized by law or executive order to close,
then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day
on which banking institutions are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall for all purposes be
deemed to have been made on the original date payment was due.



Registration... 1f the book-entry-only system is discontinued, the Bonds may be transferred and re-registered on the
registration books of the Paying Agent only upon presentation and surrender thereof to the Paying Agent at the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office. A Bond also may be exchanged for a Bond or Bonds of like maturity and
interest and having a like aggregate principal amount or maturity amount, as the case may be, upon presentation and
surrender at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office. All Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange must be
endorsed for assignment by the execution by the registered owner or his duly authorized agent of an assignment form
on the Bonds or other instruction of transfer acceptable to the Paying Agent. Transfer and exchange for Bonds will
be without expense or service charge to the registered owner, except for any tax or other governmental charges
required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange. A new Bond or Bonds, in lieu of the Bond being
transferred or exchanged, will be delivered by the Paying Agent to the registered owner, at the Designated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent or by United States mail, first-class, postage prepaid. To the extent
reasonably possible, new Bonds issued in an exchange or transfer of Bonds will be delivered to the registered owner
not more than three (3) business days after the receipt of the Bonds to be canceled in the exchange or transfer in the
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

Limitation on Transfer of Bonds.. Neither the District nor the Paying Agent shall be required to make any transfer,
convetsion or exchange to an assignee of the registered owner of the Bonds (i) during the period commencing on the
close of business on the 15 calendar day of the month preceding each Interest Payment Date (the “Record Date™)
and ending with the opening of business on the next following principal or Interest Payment Date, or (i) with respect
to any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within forty-five (45) days of the date fixed for redemption;
provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the
uncalled balance of a Bond.

Replacement Bonds...If a Bond is mutilated, the Paying Agent will provide a replacement Bond in exchange for the
mutilated Bond. If a Bond is destroyed, lost or stolen, the Paying Agent will provide a replacement Bond upon (i)
the filing by the registered owner with the Paying Agent of evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent of the
destruction, loss or theft of the Bond and the authenticity of the registered owner’s ownership, and (ii) the furnishing
to the Paying Agent of indemnification in an amount satisfactory to hold the District and the Paying Agent harmless.
All expenses and charges associated with such indemnity and with the preparation, execution and delivery of a
replacement Bond must be borne by the registered owner. The provisions of the Bond Order relating to the
replacement Bonds are exclusive and to the extent lawful, preclude all other rights and remedies with respect to the
replacement and payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds.

Source of Payment

While the Bonds or any part of the principal thereof or interest thereon remain outstanding and unpaid, the District
covenants to levy and annually assess and collect in due time, form and manner, and at the same time as other
District taxes are assessed, levied and collected, in each year, beginning with the current year, a continuing direct
annual ad valorem tax, without legal limit as to rate or amount, upon all taxable property in the District sufficient to
pay the interest on the Bonds as the same becomes due and to pay each instaliment of the principal of the Bonds as
the same matures, with full allowance being made for delinquencies and cost of collection. In the Bond Order, the
District covenants that said taxes are irrevocably pledged to the payment of the interest and principal of the Bonds.
The Bonds are obligations of the District and are not the obligations of the State of Texas; Galveston County, Texas;
or Texas City, Texas; or any other political subdivision or any entity other than the District.

Payment Record

This will be the first installment of bonds voted on the May 4, 2019 from a total authorization of $39,840,000. In
addition, the District has remaining authorization of $5,000,000 of bonds voted on in May 14, 2011. Also, in 2012
the District issued its $3,054,999.50 Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds.

Funds

In the Bond Order, the Debt Service Fund is created and established, and the proceeds from all taxes levied, assessed

and collected for and on account of the Bonds authorized by the Bond Order shall be deposited, as collected, in such
fund.



Upon the receipt by the District of the purchase price for the Bonds, the accrued interest on the Bonds shall be
deposited into the Debt Service Fund upon receipt. The remaining proceeds of sale of the Bonds, including interest
earnings thereon, after payment of certain issuance costs shall be deposited into the Capital Projects Fund, to be used
for the purposes described in the Bond Order. See “USE AND DISTRIBUTION OF BOND PROCEEDS” for a
more complete description of the use of Bond proceeds and the projects related thereto.

Authority for Issuance

At a bond election held within the District on May 4, 2019, the voters of the District authorized the issuance of
$39.840,000 principal amount of unlimited tax bonds for the purpose or purposes of constructing or otherwise
acquiring a waterworks system, sanitary sewer system, and drainage system for the District. There are also
$5,000,000 in authorization remaining from the District’s May 14, 2011 election.  See “Issuance of Additional
Debt” below,

By adoption of an order dated 2019, the TCEQ authorized the District to sell the Bonds subject to certain
restrictions, including restrictions on the use of Bond proceeds as summarized in “USE AND DISTRIBUTION OF
BOND PROCEEDS”.

The Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to an order of the TCEQ, the terms and conditions of the Bond Order;
Article XVI. Section 59 of the Constitution of the State of Texas, Chapters 49 and 51 of the Texas Water Code, as
amended, and general laws of the State of Texas relating to the issuance of bonds by political subdivisions of the
State of Texas.

Before the Bonds can be issued, the Attorney General of Texas must initially pass upon the legality of certain related
matters. The Attorney General of Texas does not guarantee or pass upon the safety of the Bonds as an investment or
upon the adequacy of the information contained in this Official Statement.

Registration and Transfer

So long as the Bonds remain outstanding, the Paying Agent shall keep the register at its designated corporate trust
office and, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent shall provide for the
registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with the terms of the Bond Order.

Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the presentation and surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate
trust office of the Paying Agent, duly endorsed for transfer, or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the
registered owner or his authorized representative in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent. To the extent possible
and under reasonable circumstances, upon due presentation of any Bond in proper form for transfer, the Paying
Agent has been directed by the District to authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor, within three (3) business
days after such presentation, a new Bond or Bonds, registered in the name of the transferee or transferees, in
authorized denominations and of the same maturity and aggregate principal amount and paying interest at the same
rate as the Bond or Bonds so presented.

All Bonds shall be exchangeable upon presentation and surrender thereof at the designated corporate trust office of
the Paying Agent for a Bond of the same maturity and interest rate and in any authorized denomination in an
aggregate amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the Bond or Bonds presented for exchange. The Paying
Agent is authorized to authenticate and deliver exchange Bonds. Each exchange Bond delivered shall be entitled to
the benefits and security of the Bond Order to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such exchange
Bond is delivered.

Neither the District nor the Paying Agent shall be required to transfer or to exchange any Bond during the period
beginning on a Record Date and ending the next succeeding Interest Payment Date or to transfer or exchange any
Bond for a period of forty-five (45) days next preceding the selection of Bonds for redemption or to transfer or
exchange any Bond called for redemption.



The District or the Paying Agent may require the registered owner of any Bond to pay a sum sufficient to cover any
tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connections with the transfer or exchange of such Bond(s).
Any fee or charge of the Paying Agent for such transfer or exchange shall be paid by the District.

Replacement of Paying Agent

Provision is made in the Bond Order for replacement of the Paying Agent by the District. If the Paying Agent is
replaced by the District the new Paying Agent shall act in the same capacity as the previous Paying Agent. Any
Paying Agent selected by the District shall be a national or state banking institution, a corporation organized and
doing business under the laws of the United States of America or of any State, authorized under such laws to exercise
trust powers, and subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority, to act as Paying Agent for the
Bonds.

Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds

Upon presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent of a mutilated Bond, the Paying Agent shall authenticate and
deliver in exchange therefor a replacement Bond of like maturity, interest rate and principal amount, bearing a
number not contemporaneously outstanding. If any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taken, the
District, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence of notice or knowledge that such
Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall, upon receipt of certain documentation from the registered
owner requested by the District or the Paying Agent and an indemnity bond, and such other security or indemnity as
is satisfactory to the District and the Paying Agent to hold them harmless, and satisfaction by the registered owner of
any other reasonable requirements of the District and the Paying Agent, execute and the Paying Agent shall
authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of like maturity, interest rate and principal amount bearing a number not
contemporaneously outstanding.

Registered owners of lost, stolen or destroyed Bonds will be required to pay the District’s cost to replace such Bonds
(including, but not limited to the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent). In addition, the District or the Paying
Agent may require the registered owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that
may be imposed.

Issuance of Additional Debt

The District may issue additional bonds, with the approval of the TCEQ, necessary to provide and maintain
improvements and facilities consistent with the purposes for which the District was created. See “THE DISTRICT -
General.” The District’s voters authorized at an election on May 4, 2019 the issuance of $39,840,000 of unlimited
tax bonds. The District also has $3,000,000 is bonds from the $15,000,000 authorized but unissued from the May
14, 2011 election. Any additional bonds sold would be on parity with or subordinate to the Bonds. Following the
issuance of the Bonds, the District will have $22,090,000 of unlimited tax bonds authorized but unissued.

The Bond Order imposes no limitation on the amount of additional parity bonds which may be authorized for
issuance by the District’s voters or the amount ultimately issued by the District. See “INVESTMENT
CONSIDERATIONS - Future Debt.”

The District is also authorized by statute to engage in fire-fighting activities, including the issuance of bonds payable
from taxes for such purpose. Before the District could issue fire-fighting bonds payable from taxes, the following
actions would be required: (a) authorization of a detailed master plan and bonds for such purpose by the qualified
voters in the District; (b) approval of the master plan and issuance of bonds by the TCEQ; and (c) approval of such
bonds by the Attorney General of Texas. The District passed a fire protection plan with mandatory fees by vote of
its citizens in 2012, but no additional bonding authority was included, and no bonds were issued. Issuance of bonds
for fire-fighting activities could dilute the investment security for the Bonds.

Remedies in Event of Default

Other than a writ of mandamus and other relief authorized by law, the Bond Order does not expressly provide a
specific remedy for a default. Although a registered owner could presumably obtain a judgment against the District
for a default in the payment of principal or interest, such judgement could not be satisfied by execution against any
property of the District. If the District defaults, a registered owner could petition for a writ of mandamus issued by a
court of competent jurisdiction requiring the District and the District’s officials to observe and perform the



covenants, obligations or conditions prescribed in the Bond Order. There is no acceleration of maturity of the Bonds
in the event of default and consequently the remedy of mandamus might need to be enforced on a periodic basis.
The enforceability of the rights and remedies of the Registered Owners may further be limited by a State of Texas
stature reasonably required to attain an important public purpose or by laws relating to bankruptcy, reorganization or
other similar laws of general application affecting the rights of creditors of political subdivisions, such as the
District. See “INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS - Registered Owners’ Remedies, and - Bankruptey Limitation
to Registered Owners’ Rights.”

Legal Investment and Eligibility to Secure Public Funds in Texas
The following is quoted from Section 49.186 of the Texas Water Code, and is applicable to the District:

(a) “All bonds, notes, and other obligations issued by a district shall be legal and authorized investments for all
banks. trust companies, building and loan associations, savings and loan associations, insurance companies
of all kinds and types, fiduciaries, and trustees, and for all interest and sinking funds and other public funds
of the state, and all agencies, subdivisions, and instrumentalities of the state, including all counties, cities,
towns, villages, school districts, and all other kinds and types of districts, public agencies, and bodies
politic.” .

(b) “A district’s bonds, notes, and other obligations are eligible and lawful security for all deposits of public
funds of the state, and all agencies, subdivisions, and instrumentalities of the state, including all counties,
cities, towns, villages, school districts, and all other kinds and types of districts, public agencies, and bodies
politic, to the extent of the market value of the bonds, notes, and other obligations when accompanied by
any unmatured interest coupons attached to them.”

The Public Funds Collateral Act (Chapter 2257, Texas Government Code) also provides that bonds of the
District (including the Bonds) are eligible as collateral for public funds.

The District makes no representation that the Bonds will be acceptable to banks, savings and loan associations or
public entities for investment purposes or 10 secure deposits of public funds. The District has made no investigation
of other laws, regulations or investment criteria which might apply to or otherwise limit the availability of the Bonds
for investment or collateral purposes. Prospective purchasers are urged to carefully evaluate the investment quality
of the Bonds and as to the acceptability of the Bonds for investment or collateral purposes.

Defeasance

The Bond Order provides that the District may discharge its obligations to the Registered Owners of any or all of the
Bonds to pay principal, interest and redemption price thereon in any manner permitted by law. Under current Texas
law, such discharge may be accomplished either (i) by depositing with the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the
State of Texas a sum of money equal to the principal of, premium, if any, and all interest to accrue on the Bonds to
maturity or redemption or (ii) by depositing with any place of payment (paying agent) of the Bonds or other
obligations of the District payable from revenues, or from ad valorem taxes or both, or with a commercial bank or
trust company designated in the proceedings authorizing such discharge, amounts sufficient to provide for the
payment and/or redemption of the Bonds; such deposits may be invested and reinvested only in (a) direct non-
callable obligations of the United States of America, (b) non-callable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of
the United States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or
instrumentality and that, on the date the governing body of the District adopts or approves the proceedings
authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment
rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, and (c) non-callable obligations of a state or an agency or a county,
municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the governing
body of the District adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to
investment quality by a nationally recognized investment firm not less than AAA or its equivalent. The foregoing
obligations may be in book-entry form and shall mature and/or bear interest payable at such times and in such
amounts as will be sufficient to provide for the scheduled payment and/or redemption of the Bonds. If any such
Bonds are to be redeemed prior to their respective dates of maturity, provision must have been made for giving
notice of redemption as provided in the Bond Order.

Upon such deposit as described above, such Bonds shall no longer be regarded as outstanding or unpaid. After firm
banking and financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment or redemption of the Bonds have been made
as described above, all rights of the District to initiate proceedings to call the Bonds for redemption or take any other



action amending the terms of the Bonds are extinguished; however, the right to call the Bonds for redemption is not
extinguished if the District: (i) in the proceedings providing for the firm banking and financial arrangements,
expressly reserves the right to call the Bonds for redemption; (ii) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the
owners of the Bonds immediately following the making of the firm banking and financial arrangements; and (iii)
directs that notice of the reservation be included in any redemption notices that it authorizes.

There is no assurance that the current law will not be changed in the future in a manner which would permit
investments other than those described above to be made with amounts deposited to defease the Bonds. Because the
Bond Order does not contractually limit such investments, registered owners may be deemed to have consented to
defeasance with such other investments, notwithstanding the fact that such investments may not be of the same
investment quality of those currently permitted under Texas law.

Specific Tax Covenants

In the Bond Order the District has covenanted with respect to among other matters, the use of the proceeds of the
Bonds and the use of facilities financed therewith by persons other than state or local governmental units, and the
manner in which the proceeds of the Bonds are to be invested. The District may cease to comply with any such
covenant if it has received a written opinion of a nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that regulations or
rulings hereafter promulgated modify or expand provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code™), so that such covenant is ineffective or inapplicable or compliance with such covenant adversely affects the
exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds under Section 103 of the Code.

Additional Covenants

The District has additionally covenanted in the Bond Order that, to the extent it has the authority to do so, it will (i)
maintain the System in good condition and working order, ordinary wear and tear and obsolescence excepted, and
operate the System in an efficient manner and at a reasonable cost, (i) maintain insurance on the System of a kind
and in an amount which usually would be carried by municipal corporations and political subdivisions in Texas
engaged in a similar type of business, but considering any governmental immunities to which the District may be
entitled, and (iii) keep accurate records and accounts and employ an independent certified public accountant to audit
and report on its financial affairs at the close of each fiscal year, such audits to be in accordance with applicable law,
rules and regulations and open to inspection in the office of the District.

Amendment to Bond Order

The Bond Order contains provisions to the effect that the District may, without the consent of or notice to any
registered owners of the Bonds, amend, change or modify the Bond Order as may be required (a) by the provisions
of the Bond Order, (b) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission in the
Bond Order, or (c) in connection with any other change that does not in any respect materially and adversely affect
the interest of the registered owners of the Bonds. Except for such amendments, changes or modifications, the
District shall not amend, change or medify the Bond Order in any manner without the consent of 51% the registered

owners in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds.
Alteration of Boundaries

In certain circumstances under Texas law, the District may alter its boundaries to: (1) upon satisfying certain
conditions, annex additional territory; and (2) exclude land subject to taxation within the District that is not served by
District facilities if the District simultaneously annexes land of equal acreage and value that may be practicably
served by District facilities. No representation is made concerning the likelihood that the District would effect any
additional changes in its boundaries.

Approval of the Bonds
The Attorney General of Texas must approve the legality of the Bonds prior to their delivery. The Attorney General

of Texas does not pass upon or guarantee the quality of the Bonds as an investment, nor does he pass upon the
adequacy or accuracy of the information contained in this Official Statement.



BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The Bonds will be available only in book-entry form. Consequently, purchasers of ownership interests in the Bonds
will not receive certificates representing their respective interests in the Bonds. This section describes how
ownership of the Bonds is to be transferred and how the payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds are to be
paid to and accredited by Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), while the Bonds are
registered in its nominee name. The information in this section concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System
has been provided by DTC for use in disclosure documents such as this Official Statement. The Underwriters and
the District believe the source of such information to be reliable, but take no responsibility for the accuracy or
completeness thereof.

The District cannot and does not give any assurance that (1) DTC will distribute payments of debt service on the
Bonds, or redemption or other notices, to DTC Participants, (2) DTC Participants or others will distribute debt
service payments paid to DTC or its nominee (as the registered owner of the Bonds), or redemption or other notices,
to the Beneficial Owners, or that they will do so on a timely basis, or (3) DTC will serve and act in the manner
described in this Official Statement. The current rules applicable to DTC are on file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and the current procedures of DTC to be followed in dealing with DTC Participants
are on file with DTC.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered
in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. One fully-registered security certificate will be issued for each issue of the Bonds, each in the
aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal
Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a
“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC
holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and
municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct
Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales
and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities
certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC
is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect
Participants”). DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC ecan be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a
credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security (“Beneficial
Owner™) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive
written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or
Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests
in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in
Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of
DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee
do not affect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the
Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited,

16



which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for
keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of
significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the
Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the
Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices 1o Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided
directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being redeemed, DTC’s
practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Bonds unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede &
Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record
date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal, interest payments, premium, if any, and redemption proceeds on the Bonds, will be made to Cede & Co,,
or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC'’s practice is to credit
Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as
is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will
be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent/Registrar, or the District, subject to any
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds,
distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC) is the responsibility of District or Paying Agent/Registrar, disbursement of such payments to
Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners
will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Bonds purchased, through its Participant, to the Paying
Agent/Registrar, and shall effect delivery of such Bonds by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Participant’s
interest in the Bonds, on DTC’s records, to the Paying Agent/Registrar. The requirement for physical delivery of
Ronds in connection with a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are
transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Bonds to the
Paying Agent/Registrar’s DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable
notice to the District or the Paying Agent/Registrar as set forth in the Order. Under such circumstances, in the event
that a successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor
securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that
the District believes to be reliable, but the District takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.



ANNEXATION AND CONSOLIDATION

Annexation

Chapter 42, Local Government Code, provides that, within the limits described therein, the unincorporated area
contiguous to the corporate limits of any city comprises that city’s extraterritorial jurisdiction. The size of
extraterritorial jurisdiction depends in part on the city’s population. With certain exceptions, a city may annex
territory only within the confines of its extraterritorial jurisdiction, When a city annexes additional territory, the
city’s extraterritorial jurisdiction expands in conformity with such annexation. Under existing Texas law, since the
District lies within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Texas City the District may be annexed by such city.
No representation is made that the city will ever annex the District. Moreovet, no representation is made concerning

the ability of the annexing city to make debt service payments should annexation of the District occur.

Annexation of territory by a city is a policy-making matter within the discretion of the governing body of the city and
therefore, the District makes no representation that the city will annex the District and assume its debt or that the city
and the District would dissolve the District, nor does the District make any representation concerning the ability of
the city to pay debt service on the District’s bonds if annexation and dissolution were to occur.

Texas law has changed as of September 1, 2019, and the City of Texas City can no longer annex any part of the San
Leon Municipal Utility District without a positive vote of the District’s residents. No such vote is anticipated.

Consolidation

A district (such as the District) has the legal authority to consolidate with other districts and, in connection therewith,
to provide for the consolidation of its assets. such as cash and the utility system, with the water, wastewater, and
drainage systems of the district(s) with which it is consolidating as well as its liabilities (which would include the
Bonds). No representation is made concerning the likelihood of consolidation.

[The rest of this page intentionally left blank.]



USE AND DISTRIBUTION OF BOND PROCEEDS

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used for (i) wastewater treatment plant expansion to 1.90 MGD; and (ii) certain
engineering and technical fees. In addition, proceeds of the Bonds will be used to pay certain costs associated with
the issuance of the Bonds.

The presently estimated use and distribution of Bond proceeds is set forth below. Of the proceeds to be received
from the sale of the Bonds, $19,736,500 is estimated to be required for construction costs, and $13,013,500 is
estimated to be required for non-construction costs.

Construction Costs: Amount
|. Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 1.90 MGD $16,625,000
2. 48” Effluent Outfall Line 462,500
3. Contingencies (10%) 1,709,000
4. Engineering/Technical Services 940,000
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS $19,736,500
Non-Construction Costs: Amount
A. Legal Fees (2.50%) 568,750
B. Fiscal Advisor Fees (2%) 455,000
C. Capitalized Interest (12 months @ 5%) 1,137,500
D. Bond Discount (3%) 682.500
E. Bond Issuance Expense 53,375
F. Bond Application Cost 50,000
G. Attorney General Fee (0.10% or $9,500 max.) 9,500
E. TCEQ Bond Issuance Fee (0.25%) 56.875
TOTAL NON-CONSTRUCTION COSTS $3,013,500
TOTAL BOND ISSUE REQUIREMENT $22,750,000

[The rest of this page intentionally left blank.]



INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS
General

The Bonds, which are obligations of the District and are not obligations of the State of Texas; Galveston County, Texas;
Texas City; or any other political subdivision, will be secured by a continuing direct annual ad valorem tax, without legal
limitation as to rate or amount, on all taxable property located within the District. (See "THE BONDS - Source of
Payment.") The ultimate security for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds depends on the ability of the
District to collect from the property owners within the District all taxes levied against the property, or in the event of
foreclosure, on the value of the taxable property with respect (o faxes levied by the District and by other taxing
authorities. The collection by the District of delinquent taxes owed to it and the en forcement by the registered owners of
the District's obligation to collect sufficient taxes may be a costly and lengthy process. Furthermore, the District cannot
and does not make any representations that continued development of property within the District will accumulate or
maintain taxable values sufficient to justify continued payment by property owners or that there will be a market for the
property. See "Registered Owners' Remedies" below.

Hurricanes and Subsidence

Hurricanes can cause increased flooding, particularly in coastal areas such as the area where the District is located.
Hurricanes can also cause windstorm and other damage, including erosion of property fronting on Galveston Bay, and
hurricane induced flooding can submerge roadways connecting coastal areas such as the District with inland areas, thus
preventing evacuations of persons or property. If a hurricane (or any other natural disaster) destroyed all or part of the
improvements with the District within the District, the assessed value of property within the District could be
substantially reduced, with a corresponding decrease in tax revenues or increase in the tax rate. Further, there can be no
assurance that a casualty loss will be covered by insurance (certain casualties, including flood, are usually excepted
unless specific insurance is purchased), that any insurance company will fulfill its obligation to provide insurance
proceeds, or that insurance proceeds will be used to rebuild or repair any damaged improvements within the District.
Even if insurance proceeds are available and improvements are rebuilt, there could be a lengthy period in which assessed
values within the District would be adversely affected. The Gulf Coast region in which the District is located is subject
to occasional destructive weather. There can be no assurance the District will not endure damage from future
meteorological events.

Land subsidence (a sinking of the surface of the land relative to sea level) has occurred in many areas in the Houston-
Galveston area, including the District, and any future subsidence could increase flooding risks. These factors could
cause property values in the District to fall and could adversely affect the District’s ability to collect taxes to pay interest
and principal on the Bonds.

Hurricane Harvey

Hurricane Harvey struck the Houston area on August 26, 2017. resulting in historic levels of rainfall. However,
according to the District's operator, the District's System did not sustain any material damage and there was no
interruption of water and sewer service. Further, according to the District's Operator and Engineer, after
investigation, although the District experienced street flooding, there was no apparent material wind or water damage
to homes or commercial improvements within the District. Hurricane Harvey could have a material impact on the
Houston region's economy. The District cannot predict what impact, if any, Hurricane Harvey will have on the
assessed value of homes and commercial improvements within the District.

Downturn in the Housing Market

Nationally, there has been a significant downturn in new housing construction, resulting in a decline in housing
market values. The Houston area, which includes Galveston County, has experienced reduced levels of home
construction. The District cannot predict what impact, if any, a continued downturn in the local and national housing
and financial markets may have on the Houston area market and specifically, the District

Impact on Distriet Tax Rates
Assuming no further development or construction of taxable improvements, the value of the land and improvements
currently within the District will be the major determinant of the ability or willingness of property owners within the

District to pay their taxes. The 2019 assessed valuation of the District is $386,342,885 (see "FINANCIAL
STATEMENT"). After issuance of the Bonds, the Projected Maximum Annual Debt Service Requirement is estimated

20



to be $2.466,888 (2033) and the Projected Average Annual Debt Service Requirement is estimated to be $2,375,263
(2020 through 2037, inclusive). Based on the 2019 assessed valuation and no use of funds on hand, a tax rate of $0.68
per $100 assessed valuation, at a 95% collection rate would be necessary to pay the Projected Maximum Annual Debt
Service Requirement of $2,466,888 and a tax rate of $0.65 per $100 assessed valuation at a 95% collection rate would
be necessary to pay the Projected Average Annual Debt Service Requirement of $2,375,263. See "PROJECTED
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS" and "TAX DATA - Tax Adequacy for Debt Service."

Tax Collections and Foreclosure Remedies

The District has a right to seek judicial foreclosure on a tax lien, but such remedy may prove to be costly and time
consuming and, since the future market or resale market, if any, of the taxable real property within the District is
uncertain, there can be no assurance that such property could be sold and delinquent taxes paid. Registered owners of
the Bonds are entitled under Texas law to a writ of mandamus to compel the District to perform its obligations. Such
remedy would have to be exercised upon each separate default and may prove costly, time consuming and difficult to
enforce. Furthermore, there is no trust indenture or trustee, and all legal actions would have to be taken on the initiative
of, and be financed by, registered owners to enforce such remedies. The rights and remedies of the registered owners
and the enforceability of the Bonds may also be limited by bankruptcy, reorganization and other similar laws affecting
the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

The District’s ability to foreclose its tax lien or collect penalties or interest on delinquent taxes may be limited on
property owned by a financial institution which is under receivership by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
pursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance Act 12 US.C. 1825, as amended. See “INVESTMENT
CONSIDERATIONS.”

Registered Owners' Remedies

In the event of default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds, the registered owners have the right to
seck a writ of mandamus, requiring the District to levy adequate taxes each year to make such payments. Except for
mandamus, the Bond Order does not specifically provide for remedies to protect and enforce the interest of the
registered owners. There is no acceleration of maturity of the Bonds in the event of default and, consequently, the
remedy of mandamus may have to be relied upon from year to year. Although the registered owners could obtain a
judgment against the District, such a judgment could not be enforced by direct levy and execution against the District's
property. Further, the registered owners cannot themselves foreclose on property within the District or sell property
within the District in order to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The enforceability of the rights and
remedies of the registered owners may further be limited by laws relating to bankruptcy, reorganization or other similar
laws of general application affecting the rights of creditors of political subdivisions such as the District.

Bankruptcy Limitation to Registered Owners' Rights

The enforceability of the rights and remedies of registered owners of the Bonds may be limited by laws relating to
bankruptey, reorganization or other similar laws of general application affecting the rights of creditors of political
subdivisions such as the District. Subject to the requirements of Texas law discussed below, a political subdivision such
as the District may voluntarily file a petition for relief from creditors under Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, 11
USC sections 901-946. The filing of such petition would automatically stay the enforcement of Registered Owners'
remedies, including mandamus and the foreclosure of tax liens upon property within the District discussed above, The
automatic stay would remain in effect until the federal bankruptcy judge hearing the case dismisses the petition, enters an
order granting relief from the stay or otherwise allows creditors to proceed against the petitioning political subdivision.
A political subdivision, such as the District, may qualify as a debtor eligible to proceed in a Chapter 9 case only if it (1)
is generally authorized to file for federal bankruptcy protection by applicable state law, (2) is insolvent or unable to meet
its debts as they mature, (3) desires to effect a plan to adjust such debts, and (4) has either obtained the agreement of or
negotiated in good faith with its creditors or is unable to negotiate with its creditors because negotiations are
impracticable. Under Texas law, a water control and improvement district, such as the District, must obtain the approval
of the TCEQ as a condition to seeking relief under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. The TCEQ is required to investigate the
financial condition of a financially troubled district and authorize such district to proceed under federal bankruptcy law
only if such district has fully exercised its rights and powers under Texas law and remains unable to meet its debts and
other obligations as they mature.

Notwithstanding noncompliance by a district with Texas law requirements, a district could file a voluntary bankruptcy

petition under Chapter 9, thereby involving the protection of the automatic stay until the bankruptcy court, after a

21



hearing, dismisses the petition. A federal bankruptcy court is a court of equity and federal bankruptcy judges have
considerable discretion in the conduct of bankruptcy proceedings and in determining the decision of whether to grant the
petitioning district relief from its creditors. While such a decision might be applicable, the concomitant delay and loss of
remedies to the registered owners could potentially and adversely impair the value of the registered owner's claim.

If a petitioning district were allowed to proceed voluntarily under Chapter 9 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code, it could
file a plan for an adjustment of its debts. If such a plan were confirmed by the bankruptcy court, it could, among other
things, affect a registered owner by reducing or eliminating the amount of indebtedness, deferring or rearranging the
debt service schedule, reducing or eliminating the interest rate, modifying or abrogating collateral or security
arrangements, substituting (in whole or in part) other securities, and otherwise compromising and modifying the rights
and remedies of the registered owner's claim against a district.

Marketability

The District has no understanding with the Initial Purchaser regarding the reoffering yields or prices of the Bonds and
has no control over trading of the Bonds in the secondary market. Moreover, there is no assurance that a secondary
market will be made in the Bonds. If there is a secondary market, the difference between the bid and asked price for the
Bonds may be greater than the difference between the bid and asked price of bonds of comparable maturity and quality
issued by more traditional issuers as such bonds are more generally bought, sold or traded in the secondary market.

Continuing Compliance with Certain Covenants

Failure of the District to comply with certain covenants contained in the Bond Order on a continuing basis prior to the
maturity of the Bonds could result in interest on the Bonds becoming taxable retroactively to the date of original
issuance. See “CONTINUING DISCLOUSRE OF INFORMATION".

Future Debt

The District reserves in the Bond Order the right to issue the remaining $22.090.000 authorized but unissued bonds (see
SUNLIMITED TAX BONDS AUTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED"), and such additional bonds as may hereafter be
approved by both the Board of Directors and voters of the District. The District has also reserved the right to issue
certain other additional bonds, special project bonds, refunding bonds, inferior lien bonds, and other obligations
described in the Bond Order. All the remaining $22,090,000 bonds, which have heretofore been authorized by the
voters of the District, may be issued by the District, with the approval of the TCEQ, from time to time as improvement
needs arise. 1f the District does issue future bonds or other debt obligations, such issuance could increase gross
debt/property valuation ratios and might adversely affect the investment security of the Bonds. See “THE BONDS -
Issuance of Additional Debt.”

The District contains 3,200 acres total. Approximately 60% of the District acreage is composed of large acreage
Farm Home Tracts, of which the majority of the Tracts are not fully developed. The District currently has
approximately 2,821 connections. The connections are estimated to increase to 4,000 by the year 2030 based on
historical population growth and available undeveloped lands within the District. The District has previously
constructed utilities provide service to all of the farm home tracts; however, much of the area is developed to its full
capacity and utilities may need to be rehabilitated and additional plant capacity may be needed for full development.

Approval of the Bonds

As required by law, engineering plans, specifications and estimates of construction COSts for the facilities and
services to be purchased or constructed by the District with the proceeds of the Bonds have been approved, subject
to certain conditions, by the TCEQ. See “USE AND DISTRIBUTION OF BOND PROCEEDS”. In addition, the
Attorney General of Texas must approve the legality of the Bonds prior to their delivery. Neither the TCEQ nor the
Attorney General of Texas passes upon or guarantees the security of the Bonds as an investment, nor have the
foregoing authorities passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of the information contained in this Official Statement.

-3
2



DISTRICT MAP



THE DISTRICT
General

San Leon Municipal Utility District (the "District"), is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, created by an act
of the 59 Legislature of the State of Texas on May 26, 1965, pursuant to House Bill 1082 Chapter 520 (Vernon’s
Texas Civil Statutes) and by Order of the Texas Water Rights Commission, now the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (“TCEQ) as a conservation and reclamation district under the provisions of Section 59,
Article XV1 of the Constitution of the State of Texas. The District operates under the provisions of Chapters 49 and
51 of the Texas Water Code. The District operates as a water control and improvement district pursuant to the
provisions of Chapters 49 and 51 of the Texas Water Code, as amended, and other general statutes of the State of
Texas applicable to water control and improvement districts. The District is subject to the continuing supervision of
the TCEQ and is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Texas City, Texas and within the
boundaries of Dickinson Independent School District.

At the time of creation, the District contained 5,050 acres of land within its boundaries. Subsequently, on November
19, 1973, the District excluded 1,850 acres of land from its boundaries to Houston Lighting. The current acreage in
the District is 3,200.

The District has the statutory authority, among other things, to purchase, construct, operate and maintain all works,
improvements, facilities and plants necessary for the supply and distribution of water; and the collection,
transportation, and treatment of wastewater. The District may issue bonds and other forms of indebtedness to
purchase or construct such facilities. The District may also provide solid waste collection and disposal service and is
empowered to establish, operate and maintain a fire department, independently or with one or more other
conservation and reclamation districts, if approved by the voters of the District and the TCEQ. The District
contracts for waste collection and disposal services. Fire protection and emergency services are provided to the
District by the San Leon Volunteer Fire Department, The District is also empowered to operate and maintain certain
recreational facilities within the District, but to date has not done so.

Location

The District is located in Galveston County approximately two miles east of State Highway 146 on West Galveston
Bay, north of Texas City and east of Bacliff. The District is bounded on the north and east by West Galveston Bay,
on the west by the former Houston Lighting and Power Company inlet channels and on the south by Dickinson Bay.
The District is also approximately 10 miles from the City of Dickinson. The District is on the east side of Interstate
Highway 45 approximately 35 miles south of the central business district of the City of Houston and 15 miles north
of the central business district of the City of Galveston. The District lies entirely within Galveston County.

Management of the District
Board of Directors
The District is governed by a board, consisting of five directors, which has control over and management

supervision of all affairs of the District. Directors’ are elected to staggered four-year terms with elections held
in May in each even numbered year. All of the directors own property in the Distriet.

Length of Term

Name Position Service Expires May
Joe Manchaca President 13 years 2022
Tyson Kennedy Vice President 13 years 2022
Keith Gossett Secretary 1 year 2020
Kenneth Bishop Treasurer/Invest. Officer 11 years 2020
Kelly Neason Asst, Secretary 3 years 2022

24



District Management

The District provides its own utility system management, operating and bookkeeping services. The District
employs the following individuals in the following capacities.

District Manager: Andrew Miller
Office Manager: Janice Hoffman
Field Supervisor: Ken Keller

In addition, the District employs six licensed operators and two in training, as well as, two other personnel.

The District does provide a Pension Plan for its employees. Please see Note 9 in the District’s June 30, 2018
Audit attached included in this document.

Consultants
Tax Assessor/Collector

Land and improvements in the District are being appraised by the Galveston County Appraisal District. The
Tax Assessor/Collector is appointed by the Board of Directors of the District. The Galveston County Tax
Assessor/Collector, Ms. Cheryl E. Johnson, currently serves the District in this capacity under contract.
Engineer
The District's consulting engineer is Costello Engineering & Surveying (the "Engineer").
Auditor
The District’s audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016 were prepared by McCall Gibson
Swedlund Barfoot PLLC. See APPENDIX A for a copy of the District’s year end June 30, 2016 audited
financial statements.
Financial Advisor
SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc. serves as the District's financial advisor (the "Financial Advisor"). The fee for
services rendered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds is based on the percentage of the Bonds issued,
sold and delivered and. therefore, such fee is contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds.
General Counsel & Co-Bond Counsel

The District has engaged Reid, Strickland & Gillette, LLP, Baytown, Texas, as General Counsel & Co-Bond
Counsel in connection with the issuance of the District’s Bonds. The fees of Co-Bond Counsel are contingent
upon the sale of and delivery of the Bonds.
Co-Bond Counsel

The District has engaged Baker Williams Matthiesen LLP, Houston, Texas, as Co-Bond Counsel in connection
with the issuance of the District’s Bonds, The fees of Co-Bond Counsel are contingent upon the sale of and
delivery of the Bonds.

Special Tax Counsel

The District has engaged Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP, Houston, Texas, as Special Tax Counsel to the
District. The fees paid to Special Tax Counsel are contingent upon the sale of and delivery of the Bonds.

Disclosure Counsel

The District has employed Johnson Petrov LLP, Houston, Texas, as disclosure counsel.

(]
h



Development

Development of the District began in the 1970s. Water, sewer and drainage facilities are available to serve all the
land in the District of land in the District. As of June 30, 2019, there were 2,606 active single-family home
connections in the District. In addition to the single-family connections, there are approximately 50 meters in use at
mobile home and RV parks, 79 commercial meters and 36 multi-residential meters. These meters serve
approximately 558 Equivalent Single-Family connections.

The District has approximately six miles of property fronting Galveston Bay. Development along the Bay has been
and currently is high-end, well-kept home sites many of which are weekend/vacation homes. The remainder of the
District consists of smaller homes including various mobile home parks and permanent recreation vehicles. There is
no zoning in the District, and therefore, there is no pattern to development of home sites in type, value or
maintenance. Of the homes which currently have been designated as homesteads, the average market value as shown
on the 2019 tax roll of the District prepared by the Galveston Central Appraisal District is approximately $135,796.

Commercial development in the District includes fish and shrimp processing companies, oil production,
neighborhood grocery stores, restaurants, marinas, boat repair facilities RV Parks and various other retail and service
establishments. See “TAX DATA — Principal Taxpayers.” Fire projection is provided by the San Leon Volunteer
Fire Department, which also provided “Emergency Medical” and “First Responder” services for the San Leon
community. A hospital is located in Texas City which is approximately ten minutes away. Schools for the District
are provided by the Dickinson Independent School District.

Future Development

The District contains 3.200 acres total. Approximately 60% of the District acreage is composed of large acreage
farm home tracts, of which the majority of the tracts are not fully developed. The District currently has
approximately 2,800 connections. The connections are estimated to increase to 4,000 by the year 2030 based on
historical population growth and available undeveloped lands within the District. The District has previously
constructed utilities to serve all of the farm home tracts: however, much of the area is not developed to its full
capacity and utilities may need to be rehabilitated and plant capacity may need to be added for full development.

Annexation of the District

The District lies within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Texas City. The District has approximately
3200 acres currently within the boundaries of the District. See “EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION AND
ANNEXATION" for a discussion of the ability of the City of Texas City to annex the District.

THE SYSTEM

General

The water and wastewater facilities, the purchase, acquisition and construction of which have been financed by the
District with the proceeds of previous bonds issuances, have been designed in accordance with accepted engineering
practices and the recommendation of certain governmental agencies having regulatory or supervisory jurisdiction over
construction and operation of such facilities, including, among others, the TCEQ. According to the Engineer, the design
of all such facilities has been approved by all governmental agencies, which have jurisdiction over the District.

Operation of the District’s waterworks and wastewater facilities is subject to regulation by, among others, the
Environmental Protection Agency and the TCEQ. In many cases, regulations promulgated by these agencies have
become effective only recently and are subject to further development and revision.

Water System

The District’s primary water supply is surface water provided by the Gulf Coast Water Authority (the “Authority”) with
groundwater as a backup. Groundwater is obtained from one water well located within the District to supplement the
supply from the Gulf Coast Water Authority during times of emergency. The District is within the jurisdictional
boundaries of the Gulf Coast Water Authority. The Authority combined all of the wells within its boundaries in an
aggregated permit. The District is authorized to withdraw 2.1 million gallons for the calendar year 10/1/2018 to

26



9/30/2019, as part of the combined total aggregated permit. This permit for the water well is renewed on an annual basis
and is maintained by the District.

The District currently owns and operates one water supply plant, Water Plant No. |. The water supply plant currently
serves the District up to 1.5 million gallons per day of surface water from the Authority and one well for back up. The
District’s existing water supply plant has capacity to serve approximately 3,392 ESFCs and is capable of serving the
existing development of 3,274 ESFC connections within the District. No funds from this bond sale will be used to
construct any development or facility expansion. The District is projected to have 4,000 connections (4,609 ESFC) by
2030.

Surface Water Supply Contract: On May 13, 1985, the District executed an agreement with the Galveston County
Water Authority, presently known as the Gulf Coast Water Authority (the “Authority”™). This agreement was amended
on June 1, 1998. The Authority represents that a supply of surface water is available to the District through the
Mainland System. The District acknowledged that because the water to be supplied under the terms of this Agreement
will be supplied by means of the Authority’s Industrial Division to the Mainland System, the Authority must comply
with certain provisions of the Industrial Division Customer Contracts and certain Water Supply Contracts.

With the 1998 contract amendment and upon the occurrence of the commencement date, participants in the “South
Project” became participants in the facilities. The South Project added approximately 25 Million Gallons Per Day
(MGD) capacity in the water plant, the South Line, the Galveston Line, the Highway 6 Line, the Alta Loma Pump
Station. the 39-Inch Line and the Alta Loma Wells. The actual commencement date was June 1, 2001.

The District’s current reserved capacity is 1,785,000 gallons per day of the total capacity in the Mainland Project. The
District’s “take or pay” quantity is 546,000 gallons per day. On March 1, 2003, the District executed a Mainland Project

2011 Expansion Feasibility Study Financing Agreement with the Authority. The District has expressed an interest in
acquiring 694 gallons per minute additional capacity in the expansion of the plant.

The Authority agreed to furnish, install, operate and maintain at or near the point of delivery the necessary equipment
and devices of a standard type for measuring the quantity of water delivered to the District. The Authority has the
responsibility for reading the measurement devices and maintaining a journal or record book of such readings and the
District has access to such journals, The District has the right to request calibration of the meter no more than once
every 180 days.

Charges to the District include its share of the Mainland System Raw Charges, Operation Charges, Capital Charges and
at times water charges. On September 26, 2006, the contract was ratified for the acceptance of surplus water at a lower
rate. During the fiscal year (2017), the District recorded $471 251 in water costs attributable to the contract. The term
of this agreement extends through December 31, 5022. The District intends to extend the contract under the terms of
renewal. The Authority is the supplier of water in the entire area.

Wastewater System

The existing Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) has a capacity of 950,000 gallons per day (gpd) and is sufficient to
handle 3.393 connections or 3773 ESFCs, based on 280 gpd per connection. The District has a significantly lower
usage of approximately 210 gpd/connection and even lower during dry weather periods. While the District has averaged
approximately 80% of the WWTP's capacity for the past 24 months, approximately 25% of the capacity used is due to
Inflow and Infiltration (I&I). The current permit expires May 13, 2024. While this capacity is adequate to serve the
existing District development, the results of the combined growth and 1&I issues has made it necessary to expand the
facilities to provide proper treatment and management of sanitary flows. The funds from this bond sale will be used to
expand the treatment facilities to twice its current capacity to 1,950,000 gpd and includes a new 48-inch treated effluent
pipe to convey flow to the outfall point in Salt Bayou. The line is oversized to accommodate for storm surges (higher
water surface elevations over land due to hurricanes) that would impede normal discharge flow.

The District has an extensive sanitary sewer collection system that provides service to all property within the District
boundaries. As the development within the District continues, rehabilitation of the sanitary collection system will
proceed once the treatment plant is complete, as appropriate funding has been authorized by the residents of San Leon.



Drainage System

The drainage of the entire District is distributed through various manmade ditches, underground lines and drainage
channels that flow to Dickinson Bay and Galveston Bay and are maintained by Galveston County. When a rainfall event
oceurs, the rain flows overland to the ditches. From the western edge of the District boundary, the area drains south and
east toward Dickinson Bay. The northern side of the District drains north toward Galveston Bay., And the far eastern
portion of the District continues to drain eastward to Galveston Bay.

100-year Flood Plain

According to Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Insurance Rate Maps (Panel No. 485470 0035C, Panel
No. 485470 0099C, Panel No. 485470 0100 and Panel No. 485470 0105C, all dated May 2. 1983), approximately
2,100 acres of the District’s 3,200 acres, most of which are adjacent to Galveston Bay and Dickinson Bay, are
located within the 100 year flood plain. Galveston County Flood Plain Management requires all new construction or
substantial improvements of non-residential and residential structures within its unincorporated areas to have the
lowest floor to be elevated to or above the level of the 100-year flood elevation or 18 inches above natural ground,
whichever is higher. The District has not verified that the homes and improvements on any property have been
constructed at or above the minimum slab and elevation requirements. The construction of houses and other
improvements at or above the minimum slab and elevation requirements does not assure that such structures will not
flood under catastrophic events such as major hurricanes. See “INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS — Hurricanes
and Subsidence.”

Future Debt

The District reserves in the Bond Order the right to issue the remaining $22.090.000 authorized but unissued bonds (see
“UNLIMITED TAX BONDS AUTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED"), and such additional bonds as may hereafter be
approved by both the Board of Directors and voters of the District. The District has also reserved the right to issue
certain other additional bonds, special project bonds, refunding bonds, inferior lien bonds, and other obligations
described in the Bond Order. All the remaining $22,090,000 bonds, which have heretofore been authorized by the
voters of the District, may be issued by the District, with the approval of the TCEQ, from time to time as improvement
needs arise. If the District does issue future bonds or other debt obligations, such issuance could increase gross
debt/property valuation ratios and might adversely affect the investment security of the Bonds. See “THE BONDS —
Issuance of Additional Debt.”

Approximately 60% of the District acreage is composed of large acreage Farm Home Tracts, of which the majority
of the Tracts are not fully developed. The District currently has approximately 2,800 connections. The connections
are estimated to increase to 4,000 by the year 2045 based on historical population growth and available undeveloped
lands within the District. The District has previously constructed utilities to serve all of the Farm Home Tracts;
however, much of the areas are not developed to their full capacity and utilities may need to be rehabilitated, and
additional plant capacity added, once full development is achieved which may require the issuance of additional

bonds.

[The rest of this page intentionally left blank.]

28



Water and Wastewater Operations
Rate and Fee Schedule

The Board of Directors establishes rates and fees for water and sewer se
following schedule sets forth the rates and fees for the District’s water an

September 2018.

Water (Monthly Billing

Single-Family & Multi-Residential:

Base Rate 5/8" Meter (includes 2,000 gallons).......ceuuee

3,000 t0 4,999 .....ccrvriinisiinminiasenenns
5,000 10 7,999 ...ccvmemmrmnseniminsnsnsnins
8,000 to 10,999 ....cceriiciisisssnrens
11,000 t0 24,999 ....ccociimmmmnurasnnns
25,000 10 44,999 ...
45,000 10 75,999 ...covveinicinsiniin

N S S gy

Commercial and/or Commercial Multi:

Base Rate (includes 2,000 gAllONS) ...covuivuimirissmmmmmimisisssmsensissssansssmnessens

3,000 t04,999.....ccnniciiininniinnns

5,000 10 7,999 cccovvveiuusiimismsismmmssenssssssssnsssrussonssasassasssssassiass st s
8,000 10 10,999 .covurivusummmmmmmmssssassssanssssssssssissssssmasessisssssissss s iiisasassusesmassass
11,000 0 24,999 ...cvmcmiuiiimmininimsinmsessssssasssess st msssss s sas s smnsans s nsasents
25,000 10 44,999 ...ccovinuiismmniimrmsmisss s s
45,000 10 75,999 ..couruimmmirremmmnissssesseessassresiassisasssarsssssassassstis s
OVET 75,000 1 o.vevreeeeeersesiessassessssnmaresesess e ssssss s ss s ssss s sasness

Wastewater (Monthly Billing)

Single-Family & Multi-Residential:

Base Rate (includes 2,000 gallons) .......ccveeeviense

3,000 10 4,999 ....oicininnssiminivanin
5.00010 7,999
8.000 10 10,999.....cccmmmsisirsaionians
Over 11,000 .....c0mmmimeiinins

Commercial and/or Commercial Multi:

Base Rate (includes 2,000 gAllONS) ....ovvemmnriunmmmimssssissimissiissmminsmssnsnssies

3,000 10 4,999 ..ceereieireniiierennns

b
8,000 10 10,999 .....ouumiuuiriminmsremsssssssssasenissssss i e
OVEE 11,000 ....oiviviiciaseinisnisscssssnessssese s s e a b s s bbb R RS s

rvice, subject to change from time to time. The
d sewer service, which have been in effect since

$20.00
$5.50 per 1,000 gallons
$5.75 per 1,000 gallons
$6.00 per 1,000 gallons
$6.25 per 1,000 gallons
$6.50 per 1,000 gallons
$6.75 per 1,000 gallons
$7.00 per 1,000 gallons

$25.00
$6.75 per 1,000 gallons
$7.00 per 1,000 gallons
§7.25 per 1,000 gallons
$7.50 per 1,000 gallons
$7.75 per 1,000 gallons
$8.00 per 1,000 gallons
$8.25 per 1,000 gallons

$20.00
$4.50 per 1,000 gallons
$4.75 per 1,000 gallons
$5.00 per 1,000 gallons
$5.25 per 1,000 gallons

$20.00
$4.50 per 1,000 gallons
$5.00 per 1,000 gallons
$5.50 per 1,000 gallons
$6.00 per 1,000 gallons



Water and Wastewater Operating Statement

The following statement sets forth in condensed form the historical operations of the District's water and sewer system.
12Such summary has been prepared upon information obtained from the District’s audited financial statements and
records. Reference is made to such statements for further and more complete information. See “APPENDIX A —
Audited Financial Statement.

Fiscal Year End
08/31/19(b)  06/30/19 (a) 06/30/18(a) 06/30/17(a) 06/30/16(a)

REVENUE

Property Taxes $40,394 $936,834 $628,487 $550,579 $375,324
Water Service 224,838 1,352,900 1,173,498 1,115,885 1,061,850
Wastewater Service 174.847 1,029,799 920,195 895413 909,500
Street Lighting 21,220 124,587 127,059 126,999 122,871
Fire Fighting 44,664 264,318 273,152 273,616 264,013
Solid Waste Service 95,518 561,140 572,346 284,769 0
Penalty and Interest 5,669 34,444 33,242 35,419 33,124
Tap Connection & Inspection Fees 39,500 268,685 141,295 242,080 131,095
Miscellaneous Revenues &

FEMA Reimbursements 7.668 127.887 149.406 164,026 53.778
TOTAL REVENUES § 654318 $4.700,594 $4,018,680 $3,688,786 $2,951,555
EXPENDITURES

Service Operations:
Personnel § 144,538 $929,969 $875,399 $910,236 $821,010
Professional Fees 76,355 142,376 151.469 317,231 93,142
Contracted Services 1,723 881,267 875,615 595,865 277,780
Purchased Water 87,148 514,338 466,145 436,831 401,450
Utilities 20,739 116,562 126,693 121,567 149,341
Repairs & Maintenance 52,503 1,253,521 326,418 236,383 350,445
Street Lighting 11,607 73,272 73,743 71,871 08.442
Other 55,679 668,056 1,080,906 758,297 539,028
Capital Outlay (d) 0 787,160 301,782 454,017
Note Principal Paid in Full 0 29,478 38.388 38.100 15,934
Note Interest Paid in Full 553 1.978 3.401 1.348
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $450,294 $4.609,492 $4.803,914 £3.791.564 $3,201.937
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)
OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES $ 204.024 $91.102 (§785.234) ($102.778) ($250.382)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)
Note Proceeds $ 33913 $ 57,008
Transfers In (Out) s 0 £731.483 (d) $ 266,123 $ 233.139
NET CHANGE IN FUND BAL. $822,585 ($519,111) $164,274 ($193,374)
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of Year $1.951.493 $1.128.908 $1.648.019  $1.483.745 $1.677.119
End of Year $1,951,493 $1,128908  $1.648,019 $1,483,745
(a) Audited.

(b) Unaudited for fiscal year 2020 beginning July 1 (two mouths of operations),

() Asof August 31, 2019, approximately $60,000 was expended from the general fund and was reimbursed from the existing from bond proceeds.

(d) The income statement for July 31, 2019 includes approximately $731.483 in expenses which were reimbursed from the existing Capital Projects
Fund.

30



DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
$22,750,000
Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2019

Issue Dated: November 1, 2017
First Interest Payment Due: March 1, 2020

Outstanding Projected
Bonds Series 2019 Total

Ending Principal Interest (a) Principal Debt Service
31-Dec Total (Due 09/01) (Due 03/01) _ (Due 9/01) Total & Interest Requirement
2019 847,625 - - - & - 847.625
2020 849,900 520,000 379,167 568,750 947917 1,467,917 2,317.817
2021 851,515 355,000 555,750 555,750 1,111,500 1,466,500 2,318,015
2022 859,635 375,000 546,875 546,875 1,093,750 1,468,750 2,328,385
2023 861,965 395,000 537,500 537,500 1,075,000 1,470,000 2,331,965
2024 868,655 415,000 527,625 527,625 1,055,250 1,470,250 2,338,905
2025 874,555 435,000 517,250 517,250 1,034,500 1,469.500 2,344,055
2026 890,663 455,000 506,375 506,375 1,012,750 1,467.750 2,358,413
2027 901,706 480,000 495,000 495,000 990,000 1.470,000 2,371,706
2028 916,019 500,000 483,000 483,000 966,000 1,466,000 2.382.019
2029 933,544 525,000 470,500 470,500 941,000 1,466,000 2,399,544
2030 949,069 555,000 457,375 457,375 914,750 1,469,750 2.418.819
2031 962,519 580,000 443,500 443,500 887,000 1,467,000 2,429,519
2032 979,638 610,000 429,000 429,000 858,000 1,468,000 2,447,638
2033 999 388 640,000 413,750 413,750 827.500 1,467,500 2,466,888
2034 227438 670,000 397,750 397,750 795,500 1,465,500 1,692,938
2035 231,188 705,000 381,000 381,000 762,000 1,467,000 1,698,188
2036 234,625 740,000 363,375 363,375 726,750 1,466,750 1,701,375
2037 237475 780,000 344,875 344 875 689,750 1.469,750 1,707,225
2038 815,000 325,375 325,375 650,750 1,465.750 1,465,750
2039 860,000 305,000 305,000 610,000 1,470,000 1.470,000
2040 900,000 283,500 283,500 567,000 1,467,000 1.467.000
2041 945,000 261,000 261,000 522,000 1,467,000 1.467.000
2042 995,000 237,375 237,375 474,750 1,469,750 1.469.750
2043 1,045,000 212,500 212,500 425,000 1,470,000 1.470,000
2044 1,095.000 186,375 186,375 372,750 1,467,750 1,467,750
2045 1,150,000 159,000 159,000 318,000 1,468,000 1,468,000
2046 1.210,000 130,250 130,250 260,500 1,470,500 1,470,500
2047 1,270,000 100,000 100,000 200,000 1,470,000 1,470,000
2048 1,330,000 68.250 68,250 136,500 1,466,500 1,466,500
2049 1,400,000 35,000 35,000 70,000 1,470,000 1,470,000
$14.477,119 $22.750,000 $10,553,292 $10,7425375 $21.296.167 $44,046,167 $58,523,286

(a) Interest at 5% for illustrative purposes only.



FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(Unaudited as of September 1, 2019)

Assessed Value

2019 Assessed Valuation (100% of estimated market value as of January 1,2019) .cccccnnenn $386.342,885 (a)
Gross Debt OUISTANAINE. ....cvssrssmrsosssresissinssmrsssssnsessorsssssismssmsseasessisssssisissassssssssssnsss isbus s sinisnssass $33,325,000 (b)
Debt Service FUNA BAIANCE ....cureurrersensrissessiessmssmssssssiismssisstsan s s s s s sassssss $1,957.414 (c)
Ratio of Gross Debt to 2019 Assessed Valuation as of January 1, 2019 wc..cooovvmmmnrcismminssnienss 8.63%

Estimated Population as of August 2019: 10,329(d)

{a) Certified Taxable Assessed Value within the District on January 1, 2019 as provided by the Galveston County Appraisal District
("GCAD™). See “TAXING PROCEDURES™.

(b) After issuance of the Bonds, See “DERT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS”.

{¢) Afier the sale of the bonds. Included in the sale of Bonds is 12 months of capitalized interest cost estimated at 5% of the principal amount
of the Bonds (est. $1,137,500) and will be deposited to the Debt Service Fund upon closing, Neither Texas law nor the Bond Order requires
that the District maintain any particular sum in the Debt Service Fund,

(¢) (Based on 3,5 residents per completed single-family, multi-residential and commercial-multi (RV/Mobile Home) equivalent single-family
connections (ESFCs). The 36 multi-residential connections equate 1o 48 ESFCs. the 50 commercial-multi equate to 297 ESFC’s and the
2,606 single-family connections equate Lo 2,606 ESFCs,

Unlimited Tax Bonds Authorized but Unissued

Date Issued

Authorization Purpose Authorized to Date Unissued
01/12/1974  Water, Wastewater, Drainage $2,300,000 $2,300,000 0
06/21/1975  Water, Wastewater, Drainage $360,000 $360,000 0
01/06/1996 Water, Wastewater, Drainage $1,150,000 $1,150,000 0
11/06/2001  Water, Wastewater, Drainage $2,850,000 $2,850,000 0
05/14/2011  Water, Wastewater, Drainage $15.000,000 $10,000,000 $5,000,000
05/14/2011  Water, Wastewater, Drainage $39.840.000 $£22.750,000(a) $17.090.,000
Total $61,500,000 $39,410,000 (a) $22,090,000

(a) Including the Bonds.
Outstanding Bonds
Principal
Original Amount

A. Dated Principal Outstanding

Date Series Purpose Amount 09/02/2019

03/14/2012 2012 Refunding Bonds $3,055.000 $1,550,000

03/01/2013 2013 Water, Wastewater, Drainage $7,000,000 $6,210,000

09/01/2017 2017 Water, Wastewater, Drainage $3,000,000 $2,815,000

11/01/2019 2019 Water, Wastewater, Drainage $22,750.000 (a) $22.750.000 (a)
Total 35,805,000 £33,325,000

(a) The Bonds.

32



Cash and Investment Balances (Unaudited as of August 31, 2019)

Operating Fund $2,301,975
Debt Service Fund $1,957414 (a)
Capital Projects Fund $1,030.453

(a) Afier the sale of the bonds. Included in the sale of Bonds is 12 months of capitalized interest cost estimated at 5% of the principal amount
of the Bonds (est. $1.137.500) and will be deposited to the Debt Service Fund upon closing. Neither Texas law nor the Bond Order
requires the District to maintain any particular sum in the Debt Service Fund.

Investment Authority and Investment Practices of the District

The District has adopted an Investment Policy (the “Policy”) as required by the Public Funds Investment Act,
Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (the “Act”). The District’s goal is to preserve principal and maintain
liquidity in a diversified portfolio while securing a competitive yield on its portfolio. Funds of the District are to be
invested only in accordance with the Policy. The Policy states that the funds of the District may be invested in short
term obligations of the U.S. or its agencies or instrumentalities, in certificates of deposits insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and secured by collateral authorized by the Act, and in TexPool and
TexStar, which are public funds investment pools rated in the highest rating category by a nationally recognized
rating service. The District does not currently own, nor does it anticipate, the inclusion of long-term securities or
derivative products in the portfolio.

Current Investments

The District’s funds are currently invested in TexPool, TexStar and Certificates of Deposit at various financial
institutions. This investment portfolio is generally representative of the District's investment practices although the
District has in the past or may in the future also invest in authorized Government Securities. State law requires the
District to mark its investments to market price each calendar quarter and upon the conclusion of each fiscal year, for
the purpose of compliance with applicable accounting policies concerning the contents of the District's audited
financial statements. The District currently marks its investments to market price monthly.

[The rest of this page intentionally left blank.]

33



Estimated Overlapping Debt Statement

Other governmental entities whose boundaries overlap the District have outstanding bonds payable from ad valorem
taxes. The following statement of direct and estimated overlapping ad valorem tax debt was developed, from several
sources, including information contained in the "Texas Municipal Report," published by the Municipal Advisory
Council of Texas. Except for the amount relating to the District, the District has not independently verified the accuracy
or completeness of such information, and no person is entitled to rely upon such information as being accurate or
complete. Furthermore, certain of the entities listed below may have issued additional bonds since the dates stated in
this table, and such entities may have programs requiring the issuance of substantial amounts of additional bonds, the
amount of which cannot be determined. Political subdivisions overlapping the District are authorized by Texas law to
levy and collect ad valorem taxes for operation, maintenance and/or general revenue purposes in addition to taxes of
debt service and the tax burden for operation, maintenance and/or general purposes is not included in these figures.

% of Amount of
Gross Debt Amount Overlpg. Overlpg.
Taxing Body Amount As of Debt Debt

College of the Mainland $103,935,000 08/31/19 2.91% $3,024,509
Galveston County $247,913,720 08/31/19 1.06% $2,627.885
Dickinson ISD $305,160,000 08/31/19 8.52% $25.999.632

TOTAL ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT $31,652,026
The District (a) 09/02/19 100.00% $33,325,000

TOTAL ESTIMATED DIRECT AND

OVERLAPPING NET DEBT $64.977.026
Ratio of Direct & Overlapping Net Debt

10 2019 Assessed Valuation as of January 1, 2019 16.82%
(a) After issuance of the Bonds.
Overlapping Taxes for 2018
2018 Tax
Rate Per $100
Overlapping Entity Assessed Valuation

Galveston County $0.529831
Road & Flood 0.002067
Dickinson Independent School District 1.520000
College of the Mainland (a) 0.212755
The District 0.450000

Total $2.714653

34



TAX DATA

Classification of Assessed Valuation (a)

2019 2018

—Type Property Amount ) Amount %
Single-Family Residence ~ $306,671,555 78.79 $281,076,954 7838
Multi-Family Residence 2,930,316 0.75 2,779.917 0.78
Vacant Lots & Land Tracts 39,099,59410 10.05 38,417,009 10.71
Qualified Open-Space Land 6,883 0.00 6,759 0.00
Rural Land, Non-Qualified

Open Space 3,377,405 0.87 3,048,390 0.85
Commercial Real Property 20,626,865 5.30 17.573,452 4.90
Gas Distribution System 368.460 0.09 339,040 0.10
Electric Co. (Including Co-Op) 2,566,120 0.66 2,229.810 0.62
Telephone Co. (Inc. Co-Op) 360,390 0.09 436,775 0.12
Pipeline Company 19,160 0.00 14,822 0.00
Commercial Personal Prop. 4,906,980 1.26 4,726,120 132
Industrial & Manufacturing PP 882,560 0.23 1,064,251 0.30
Tangible Other Pers.

Mobile Home 6,885,824 1.77 6,299,123 1.76
Residential Inventory 533,750 0.14 580,860 0.16
Special Inventory 4.340 0.00 13.930 0.00
Total Appraised Value $389.240,202  100,00% $358,607,212  100.00%

(@) Reflects classification of assessed valuation as supplied by the Galveston Central Appraisal District ("GCAD") prior to adjustments and
exemptions, Such value may differ from the original certified assessed valuation, and any supplements or adjustments thereto, as supplied
by GCAD.

(b) 1In 2017 the GCAD upgraded and changed their software. The reports for previous years from the older software did not completely match
with the categories currently used in the new software program,

Tax Collections

The following statement of tax collections reflects the historical tax collection experience of the District. Such
summary has been prepared for inclusion herein based upon information from District audits and records of the
District Tax Assessor/Collector. Reference is made to such audits and records for further and more complete
information. See "Classification of Assessed Valuation" above.

Assessed Tax Current Total Fiscal Year

Valuation Rate  Tax Levy Amount %  Amount Y% Ending
2013 217,173,442 0.45 977,280 917,144  93.85 970,565 99.32  06/30/14
2014 226,892,748 0.45 1,021,017 958,610 93.94 1,012,976 9922  06/30/15
2015 253,141,196 045 1,139,135 1,051,995 92.42 1,127,822 09.90 06/30/16
2016 267,779,796 045 1,205,009 1,136,938 94.18 1,188,941 08.72  06/30/17
2017 339,750,351 0.45 1,528,877 1,426,536 93.31 1,490,824 97.67 06/30/18
2018 358,607,212 0.45 1,613,732 1,504,882 93.25 1,514,978  95.05 06/30/19 (a)
2019 386,342,885 0.63 2,433,960 06/30/20

(a) The 2018 tax collections through July 31, 2019. The District’s fiseal year end is June 30.

District Tax Rates

Tax Rate Per $100 A.V. 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Debt Service $0.45 $0.18 $0.2582 $0.2459 $0.2622 $0.30
Maintenance $0.18 __$0.27 $0.1918 $0.2041 $0.1878 $0.15

Total $0.63 $0.45 $0.4500 $0.4500 $0.4500 $0.45

Tax Rate Limitation
The District's tax rate for debt service on the Bonds is legally unlimited as to rate or amount.

35



Maintenance Tax

The Board of Directors of the District has the statutory authority to levy and collect a continuing direct ad valorem tax
for planning, maintaining, repairing and operating of the District's improvements, if such maintenance tax is authorized
by a vote of the District's electors. Such tax is in addition to debt service taxes, which the District is authorized to levy
for paying principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds, the Bonds, and any tax bonds which may be issued in the
future. At an election held within the District on August 14, 1999, voters of the District authorized the levy of a
maintenance tax not to exceed $0.30 per $100 of assessed valuation of taxable property within the District. As shown
above under “District Tax Rates,” the District levied a maintenance and operations tax of $0.18 per $100 assessed
valuation for tax year 2019.

Top Taxpayers

The following list of principal taxpayers was provided by Galveston County Appraisal District based on the 2019 and
2018 tax rolls of the District, which reflect ownership as of January 1, of each year shown.

Taxpayer Type of Property 2019 2018
Centerpoint Energy Inc. Utility $2.566,120 $2,229.810
Halili, Hajrulla Trustee Residence & Business 2,111,097 1,716,900
Halili - Residence Residence 1,693,521 1,538,655
Wiggins - Residence Residence 1,534,110 1,524,990
Jardina - Residence Residence 1,454,430 1,261,130
In God We Trust Investments LLC Residence 7777 1,329,010 (a)
Gazania Invetments LLC 2772 1,185,737 (a)
Moore - Residence Residence 1,161,357 1,142,487
Halili Razz Trust 299727 1,157.910 (a)
Shahroodi — Residence ?77? 27777 1,110,590 1,007,050
MP Apartments LLC Multi-Family Apts (a) 1,116,913
Cassius Limited 277777 (a) 1,040,370
Barrett — Residence Residence (a) 1,011,190
Total $15,303.882 $13,589.495
Percent of Assessed Valuation 3.97% 3.79%

(a)Nol a top ten taxpayer in respective year.

Tax Adequacy for Debt Service

The calculations shown below are solely for purposes of illustration only and are based on the certified assessed
value for 2019 as of January 1, 2019 and utilize tax rates adequate to service the District's total projected debt
service requirements, including the Bonds. No available debt service funds are reflected in these computations. See
"INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS — Factors Affecting Taxable Values and Tax Payments - Impact on District
Tax Rates."

Projected Average Annual Debt Service Requirements on
the Bonds (2020 through 2033) ... s $2,375,263

$0.65 Tax Rate on 2019 Assessed Valuation as of January 1, 2019 of
$386,342,885 @ 95% COIlECtiONS PrOAUCES ..vovueesnussmssmmssmsrersessinissnsessessssssssss nssssssias $2,385,667

Projected Maximum Annual Debt Service Requirements on
1he BONAS (2034) .vucvivivesesesrensesssmmsssnsmsirensirsnsasssssnssssssssssssssuss 1o st st s 48assbsgsassassssssessssss $2,466.888

$0.68 Tax Rate on 2019 Assessed Valuation as of January 1, 2019 of
$386,342,885 @ 95% collections Produces .........cocviiimimimniiiimin e $2,495,775

36



TAXING PROCEDURES
Authority to Levy Taxes

The Board is authorized to levy a continuing direct ad valorem tax on all taxable property within the District in an
amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, and any additional bonds payable from taxes which
the District may hereafter issue (see "INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS - Future Debt") and to pay the expenses of
assessing and collecting such taxes. The District agrees in the Bond Order to levy such a tax from year-to-year as
described more fully herein under "THE BONDS — Source of Payment." Under Texas law, the Board is also authorized
to levy and collect a continuing direct annual ad valorem tax for the operation and maintenance of the District and its
water and wastewater system and for the payment of certain contractual obligations if authorized by its voters. See
"TAX DATA - Tax Rate Limitation".

Property Tax Code and County-Wide Appraisal District

The Texas Property Tax Code (the "Property Tax Code") specifies the taxing procedures of all political subdivisions
of the State of Texas, including the District. Provisions of the Property Tax Code are complex and are not fully
summarized herein,

The Property Tax Code requires, among other matters, county-wide appraisal and equalization of taxable property
values and establishes in each county of the State of Texas an appraisal district with the responsibility for recording and
appraising property for all taxing units within a county and an appraisal review board with the responsibility for
reviewing and equalizing the values established by the appraisal district. The Galveston Central Appraisal District (the
"Appraisal District” or “GCAD”) has the responsibility for appraising property for all taxing units within Galveston
County, including the District. Such appraisal values are subject to review and change by the Galveston Central
Appraisal Review Board (the "Appraisal Review Board"). The appraisal roll as approved by the Appraisal Review
Board must be used by the District in establishing its tax roll and tax rate.

Property Subject to Taxation by the District

General: Except for certain exemptions provided by Texas law, all real property, tangible personal property held or
used for the production of income, mobile homes and certain categories of intangible personal property with a tax situs
in the District are subject to taxation by the District; however, no effort is expected to be made by the Appraisal District
to include on a tax roll tangible or intangible personal property not devoted to commercial or industrial use. Principal
categories of exempt property include, but are not limited to: property owned by the State of Texas or its political
subdivisions if the property is used for public purposes: property exempt from ad valorem taxation by federal law;
income producing tangible personal property or mineral interest with a taxable value of less than $500; certain property
used for the control of air, water or land pollution; solar and wind powered energy devices; certain household goods,
wares and merchandise in transit; certain farm products owned by the producer; certain property of charitable
organizations, youth development organizations, religious organizations, and qualified schools; designated historical
sites; and most individually owned automobiles.

Property owned by a disabled veteran or a veteran who died while on active duty has been granted an exemption up to
$3,000 of assessed value. Partially exempt to between $5,000 and $12,000 of assessed value, depending upon the
disability rating of the veteran, is property owned by a disabled veteran or spouse or certain children. House Bill 3613,
enacted by the 81% Texas Legislature during its Regular Session, added Section 11.131 to the Texas Tax Code.
Section 1 of this law states that a disabled veteran who receives from the United States Department of Veterans
Affairs or its successor 100% disability compensation due to a service-connected disability and a rating of 100%
disabled or of individual unemployability is entitled to an exemption from taxation of the total appraised value of the
veteran’s residence homestead,

Also exempt, if approved by the Board or through a process of petition and referendum by the District’s voters, are
residential homesteads of person sixty-five (65) years or older, qualifying surviving spouses of persons sixty-five (65)
years or older and of certain disabled persons to the extent of $3,000 of appraised value or more. The District’s tax
assessor/collector is authorized by statute to disregard such exemptions for the elderly and disabled if granting the
exemptions would impair the District’s obligation to pay tax supported debt incurred prior to adoption of the exemptions
by the District.

37



Residential Homestead Exemptions: The Property Tax Code authorizes the governing body of each political
subdivision in the State of Texas to exempt up to twenty (20%) percent of the appraised value of residential homesteads
from ad valorem taxation. Where ad valorem taxes have previously been pledged for the payment of debt, the governing
body of a political subdivision may continue to levy and collect taxes against the exempt value of the homesteads until
the debt is discharged, if the cessation of the levy would impair the obligations of the contract by which the debt was
created. In 1989 the District adopted a 10% general homestead exemption.

Tax Abatement: Galveston County may designate all or a part of the area within the District as a reinvestment zone.
Thereafter, Galveston County and the District may enter into tax abatement agreements with owners of real property
within such zone. The tax abatement agreements may exempt from ad valorem taxation by the applicable taxing
jurisdiction for a period of up to ten years, all or any part of the increase in the assessed valuation of property covered by
the agreement over its assessed valuation in the year in which the agreement is executed, on the condition that the
property owner make specified improvement or repairs to the property in conformity with a comprehensive plan. To

date, none of the area within the District has been designated as a reinvestment zone and the District has not executed
any abatement agreements.

Freeport Goods and Goods-in-Transit Exemptions:

A “Freeport Exemption” applies to goods, wares, ores, and merchandise other than oil, gas, and petroleum products
(defined as liquid and gaseous materials immediately derived from reefing petroleum or natural gas), and to aireraft or
repair parts used by a certified air carrier acquired in or imported into Texas which are destined to be forwarded outside
of Texas and which are detained in Texas for assembling, storing, such property in transit and negate such exemption,
the District does not have such an option. A “Goods-in-Transit” Exemption is applicable to the same categories of
tangible personal property which are covered by the Freeport Exemption, if, for tax year 2012 and prior applicable
years, such property is acquired in or imported into Texas for assembling, storing, manufacturing, processing, or
fabricating purposes and is subsequently forwarded to another location inside or outside of Texas not later than 175 days
after acquisition or importation, and the location where said property is detained during that period is not directly or
indirectly owned or under the control of the property owner. For tax year 2012 and subsequent years, such Goods-in-
Transit Exemption is limited to tangible personal property acquired in or imported into Texas for public warehouse
facilities in Texas that are not in any way owned or controlled by the owner of such property for the account of the
person who acquired or imported such property. A property owner who received the Goods-in-Transit Exemption is not
eligible to receive the Freeport Exemption for the same property. Local taxing units such as the District may, by official
action and after public hearing, tax goods-in-transit personal property. A taxing unit must exercise its option to tax
goods-in transit property before January 1 of the first tax year in which it proposes to tax the property at the time and in
the manner prescribed by applicable law. The District has not taken any action which would allow taxation of all such
goods-in-transit personal property for tax year 2012 and prior years,

Valuation of Property for Taxation

Generally, property in the District must be appraised by the GCAD at market value as of January | of each year. Once
an appraisal roll is prepared and formally approved by the Appraisal Review Board, it is used by the District in
establishing its tax rolls and tax rate. Assessments under the Property Tax Code are to be based on one hundred percent
(100%) of market value, as such is defined in the Property Tax Code.

The Property Tax Code permits land designated for agricultural use, open space or timberland to be appraised at its
value based on the land’s capacity to produce agricultural or timber products rather than at its market value. The
Property Tax Code permits, under cerfain circumstances, that residential real property inventory held by a person in the
trade or business be valued at the price that such property would bring if sold as a unit to a purchaser who would
continue the business. Landowners wishing to avail themselves of the agricultural use. open space or timberland
designation or residential real property inventory designation must apply for the designation, and the appraiser is
required by the Property Tax Code to act on each claimant's right to the designation individually. A claimant may waive
the special valuation as to taxation by some political subdivisions while claiming it as to another. If a claimant receives
the agricultural use designation and later loses it by changing the use of the property or selling it to an unqualified owner,
the District can collect taxes based on the new use, including taxes for the previous three years for agricultural use and
taxes for the previous five years for open space land and timberland.

38



The Property Tax Code requires the GCAD to implement a plan for periodic reappraisal of property. The plan must
provide for appraisal of all real property in the GCAD at least once every three years. It is not known what frequency of
reappraisal will be utilized by the GCAD or whether reappraisals will be conducted on a zone or county-wide basis. The
District, however, at its expense has the right to obtain from the GCAD a current estimate of appraised values within the
District or an estimate of any new property or improvements within the District. While such current estimate of
appraised values may serve to indicate the rate and extent of growth of taxable values within the District, it cannot be
used for establishing a tax rate within the District until such time as the GCAD chooses formally to include such values
on its appraisal roll.

District and Taxpayer Remedies

Under certain circumstances, taxpayers and taxing units (such as the District) may appeal the orders of the Appraisal
Review Board by filing a timely petition of review in State district court. In such event, the value of the property in
question will be determined by the court or by a jury if requested by any party. Additionally, taxing units may bring suit
against the GCAD to compel compliance with the Property Tax Code.

The Property Tax Code sets forth notice and hearing procedures for certain tax rate increases by the District and
provides for taxpayer referenda, which could result in the repeal of certain tax increases. The Property Tax Code also
establishes a procedure for notice to property owners of reappraisals reflecting increased property value, appraisals
which are higher than renditions, and appraisals of property not previously on an appraisal roll.

Levy and Collection of Taxes

The District is responsible for the levy and collection of its taxes unless it elects to transfer the collection functions to
another governmental entity. Each year the rate of taxation is set by the Board based upon (a) the valuation of property
within the District as of the preceding January land (b) the amount required to be raised for debt service, maintenance
purposes, and authorized contractual obligations. Taxes are due or when billed and become delinquent after January 31
of the following year. A delinquent tax incurs a penalty of six percent (6%) of the amount of the tax for the first
calendar month it is delinguent, plus one percent (1%) for each additional month or portion of a month the tax remains
unpaid prior to July 1 of the year in which it becomes delinquent. If the tax is not paid by July 1 of the year in which it
becomes delinquent, the tax incurs a total penalty of twelve percent (12%) regardless of the number of months the tax
has been delinquent. The delinquent tax also accrues interest at a rate of one percent (1%) for each month or portion of
a month it remains unpaid. In addition, if the District engages an attorney for the collection of delinquent taxes, the
Board may impose a further penalty not to exceed 20% on all taxes, penalty and interest unpaid on July 1. The Property
Tax Code also makes provision for the split payment of taxes, discounts for early payment and the postponement of the
delinquency date of taxes under certain circumstances. Additionally, the owner of a residential homestead property that
is a person sixty-five (65) years of age or older is entitled by law to pay current taxes on a residential homestead in
installments or to defer the payment of taxes without penalty during the time of ownership.

Rollback of Operation and Maintenance Tax Rate

Under current law, the qualified voters of the District have the right to petition for a rollback of the District’s
operation and maintenance tax rate only if the total tax bill on the average residenice homestead increases by more
than 8% over the previous year. If a rollback election is called and passes, the rollback tax rate is the current year’s
debt service and contract tax rates plus 1.08 times the previous year’s operation and maintenance tax rate. Thus,
debt service and contract tax rates cannot be changed by a rollback election.

During the 86th Regular Legislative Session, Senate Bill 2 ("SB 2") was passed and signed by the Governor, with an
effective date of January 1, 2020, which effectively restricts increases in the District's operation and maintenance tax
rates by requiring rollback elections to reduce the operation and maintenance tax component of the District's total tax
rate (collectively, the debt service tax rate, maintenance and operations tax rate and contract tax rate are the "total tax
rate"). See "SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION" for a description of the District's current total tax rate. SB
2 requires a reduction in the operation and maintenance tax component of the District's total tax rate if the District's
total tax rate surpasses the thresholds for specific classes of districts in SB 2. Debt service and contract tax rates
cannot be reduced by a rollback election held within any of the districts described below.

SB 2 classifies districts differently based on the current operation and maintenance tax rate or on the percentage of

build-out that the District has completed. Districts that have adopted an operation and maintenance tax rate for the
current year that is 2.5 cents or less per $100 of taxable value are classified as "Low Tax Rate Districts." Districts

39



that have financed, completed, and issued bonds to pay for all improvements and facilities necessary to serve at least
95% of the projected build-out of the district, are classified as "Developed Districts." Districts that do not meet
either of the classifications previously discussed are classified herein as "Other Districts." The impact each
classification has on the ability of a district to increase its maintenance and operations tax rate pursuant to SB 2 is
described for each classification below.

Low Tax Rate Districts

Low Tax Rate Districts that adopt a total tax rate that would impose more than 1.08 times the amount of the total tax
imposed by such district in the preceding tax year on a residence homestead appraised at the average appraised value
of a residence homestead, subject to certain homestead exemptions, are required to hold a rollback election within
the district to determine whether to approve the adopted total tax rate. If the adopted total tax rate is not approved at
the election. the total tax rate for a Low Tax Rate District is the current year's debt service and contract tax rate plus
1.08 times the previous year's operation and maintenance tax rate.

Developed Districts

Developed Districts that adopt a total tax rate that would impose more than 1.035 times the amount of the total tax
imposed by the district in the preceding tax year on a residence homestead appraised at the average appraised value
of a residence homestead, subject to certain homestead exemptions for the preceding tax year, plus any unused
increment rates. as calculated and described in Section 26.013 of the Tax Code, are required to hold a rollback
election within the district to determine whether to approve the adopted total tax rate. If the adopted total tax rate is
not approved at the election, the total tax rate for a Developed District is the current year's debt service and contract
tax rate plus 1.035 times the previous year's operation and maintenance tax rate plus any unused increment rates. In
addition, if any part of a Developed District lies within an area declared for disaster by the Governor of Texas or
President of the United States, alternative procedures and rate limitations may apply for a temporary period. If a
district qualifies as both a Low Tax Rate District and a Developed District, the district will be subject to the
operation and maintenance tax threshold applicable to Low Tax Rate Districts.

Other Districts

Districts that do not meet the classification of a Low Tax Rate District or a Developed District are classified as Other
Districts. The qualified voters of these districts, upon the Other District's adoption of a total tax rate that would
impose more than 1.08 times the amount of the total tax rate imposed by such district in the preceding tax year on a
residence homestead appraised at the average appraised value of a residence homestead, subject to certain homestead
exemptions, are authorized to petition for an election to reduce the operation and maintenance tax rate. 1f a rollback
election is called and passes, the total tax rate for Other Districts is the current year's debt service and contract tax
rate plus 1.08 times the previous year's operation and maintenance tax rate.

The District

A determination as to a district’s status as a Low Tax Rate District, Developed District or Other District will be made
on an annual basis, at the time a district sets its tax rate, beginning with the 2020 tax rate. The District cannat give
any assurances as to what its classification will be at any point in time or whether the District's future tax rates will
result in a total tax rate that will reclassify the District into a new classification and new rollback election calculation.

District's Rights In The Event Of Tax Delinquencies

Taxes levied by the District are a personal obligation of the owner of the property as of January 1 of the year for which
the tax is imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all state and local
taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed for the year on the property. The lien exists in favor of the State of
Texas and each local taxing unit, including the District, having power to tax the property. The District's tax lien isona
parity with tax liens of such other taxing units (see "FINANCIAL STATEMENT — Overlapping Taxes"). A tax lien on
real property takes priority over the claim of most creditors and other holders of liens on the property encumbered by the
tax lien, whether or not the debt or lien existed before the attachment of the tax lien; however, whether a lien of the
United States is on a parity with or takes priority over a tax lien of the District is determined by applicable federal law.
Personal property under certain circumstances is subject to seizure and sale for the payment of delinquent taxes, penalty,
and interest.

40



At any time after taxes on property become delinquent, the District may file suit to foreclose the lien securing payment
of the tax, to enforce personal liability for the tax, or both. In filing a suit to foreclose a tax lien on real property, the
District must join other taxing units that have claims for delinquent taxes against all or part of the same property.
Collection of delinquent taxes may be adversely affected by the amount of taxes owed to other taxing units, by the
effects of market conditions on the foreclosure sale price, by taxpayer redemption rights or by bankruptcy proceeding
which restrict the collection of taxpayer debts. See "INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS - General - Tax Collections
and Foreclosure Remedies."

LEGAL MATTERS
Legal Opinions

The District will furnish to the Initial Purchaser a transcript of certain certified proceedings incident to the issuance and
authorization of the Bonds. including a certified copy of the approving opinion of the Attorney General of Texas, as
recorded in the Bond Register of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, to the effect that the
Attorney General has examined a transcript of proceedings authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, and that based upon
such examination, the Bonds are valid and binding obligations of the District payable from the proceeds of an annual ad
valorem tax, levied without limitation as to rate or amount, upon all taxable property within the District. The District
will also furnish the approving legal opinion of Baker Williams Matthiesen LLP, Houston, Texas, and Reid Strickland
& Gillette, LLP, Baytown, Texas, Bond Counsel, to the effect that, based upon an examination of such transcript, the
Bonds are valid and binding obligations of the District under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, except to
the extent that enforcement of the rights and remedies of the registered owners of the Bonds may be limited by laws
relating to bankruptcy, reorganization, or other similar laws of general application affecting the rights of creditors of
political subdivisions such as the District. The District will also deliver the legal opinion of Special Tax Counsel to the
effect that interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under the statutes,
regulations, published rulings and court decisions existing on the date of such opinion, assuming compliance by the
District with certain covenants relating to the use and investment of the proceeds of the Bonds. See “Tax Matters”
below. The legal opinion of Bond Counsel will further state that the Bonds are payable, both as to principal and interest,
from the levy of ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate or amount, upon all taxable property within the District.
Errors or omissions in the printing of such legal opinion on the Bonds shall not affect the validity of the Bonds nor
constitute cause for the failure or refusal by the Initial Purchaser to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds.

The legal fees to be paid to Bond Counsel and Special Tax Counsel for services rendered in connection with the
issuance of the Bonds are based upon a percentage of bonds actually issued, sold and delivered, and therefore such fees
are contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the professional judgment
of the attorneys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues explicitly addressed therein. In rendering a legal opinion,
the attorney does not become an insurer or guarantor of the expression of professional judgment, of the transaction
opined upon, or of the future performance of the parties to the transaction, nor does the rendering of an opinion
guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction.

Legal Review

Bond Counsel has reviewed the information appearing in this Official Statement under the caption "THE DISTRICT
- General," "THE BONDS (other than *Book-Entry Only)." "TAXING PROCEDURES," "LEGAL MATTERS,"
and “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION,” (other than information regarding “Compliance with
Prior Undertakings™) and Special Tax Counsel has reviewed the information appearing under “TAX MATTERS”,
each solely to determine whether such information fairly summarizes matters of law and the provisions of the
documents referred to therein. Bond Counsel has not, however, independently verified any of the factual information
contained in this Official Statement nor has it conducted an investigation of the affairs of the District or the
developers for the purpose of passing upon the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement. No person is
entitled to rely upon Bond Counsel's limited participation as an assumption of responsibility for or an expression of
opinion of any kind with regard to the accuracy or completeness of any information contained herein.

41



No Material Adverse Change

The obligations of the Initial Purchaser to take and pay for the Bonds, and of the District to deliver the Bonds, are
subject to the condition that, up to the time of delivery of and receipt of payment for the Bonds, there shall have been
no material adverse change in the condition (financial or otherwise) of the District subsequent to the date of sale
from that set forth or contemplated in the Preliminary Official Statement, as it may have been supplemented or
amended through the date of sale.

No-Litigation Certificate

The District will furnish the Initial Purchaser a certificate, dated as of the date of delivery of the Bonds, executed by both
the President or Vice President and Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Board, to the effect that no litigation of any
nature has been filed or is to their knowledge then pending or threatened, either in state or federal courts, contesting or
attaching the Bonds; restraining or enjoining the issuance, execution or delivery of the Bonds; affecting the provisions
made for the payment of or security for the Bonds; in any manner questioning the authority or proceedings for the
issuance, execution or delivery of the Bonds; or affecting the validity of the Bonds.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP, Special Tax Counsel (“Special Tax Counsel”), based upon an
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy
of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™).
Special Tax Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes
of the federal minimum taxes. A complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Special Tax Counsel is set forth
in Appendix B hereto.

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at maturity of such
Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the term of such Bonds), the
difference constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each
Beneficial Owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds is the first price at which a
substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar
persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers). The original issue
discount with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the basis
of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates).
The accruing original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss
upon disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds, Beneficial Owners of the
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with
original issue discount, including the treatment of Beneficial Owners who do not purchase such Bonds in the original
offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to the public.

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than their principal amount
payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) (“Premium Bonds™) will be treated as having
amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond premium in the case of obligations,
like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a Beneficial Owner’s basis in a Premium Bond, will be
reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such Beneficial Owner. Beneficial
Owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable
bond premium in their particular circumstances.

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for
federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds. The District has made certain
representations and covenanted to comply with certain restrictions, conditions and requirements designed to ensure
that interest on the Bonds will not be included in federal gross income. Inaccuracy of these representations or failure
to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal
income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Special Tax Counsel
assumes the accuracy of these representations and compliance with these covenants. Special Tax Counsel has not
undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events occurring (or



not occurring), or any other matters coming to Special Tax Counsel’s attention after the date of issuance of the
Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds. Accordingly, the opinion of
Special Tax Counsel is not intended to, and may not, be relied upon in connection with any such actions, events or
matters.

Although Special Tax Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the
Bonds may otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner’s federal, state or local tax liability. The nature and extent of these
other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax status of the Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial Owner’s
other items of income or deduction. Special Tax Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax
consequences.

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court decisions may cause
interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to federal income taxation or otherwise
prevent Beneficial Owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. Prospective
purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential impact of any pending or
proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Special Tax Counsel is expected to
express no opinion.

The opinion of Special Tax Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not directly addressed
by such authorities, and represents Special Tax Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment of the Bonds for
federal income tax purposes. It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or the courts. Furthermore,
Special Tax Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about the future activities of the District
or about the effect of future changes in the Code, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the
enforcement thereof by the IRS. The District has covenanted, however, to comply with the requirements of the
Code.

Special Tax Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and, unless
separately engaged, Special Tax Counsel is not obligated to defend the District or the Beneficial Owners regarding
the tax-exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit examination by the IRS. Under current procedures,
parties other than the District and its appointed counsel, including the Beneficial Owners, would have little, if any,
right to participate in the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with
an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with wh ich
the District legitimately disagrees, may not be practicable. Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to
selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax
issues may affect the market price for, or the marketability of, the Bonds, and may cause the District or the
Beneficial Owners to incur significant expense.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In the Bond Order, the District has made the following agreement for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners
of the Bonds. The District is required to observe the agreement for so long as it remains obligated to advance funds
to pay the Bonds subject to amendment to or repeal of same as set forth below. Under the agreement, the District
will be obligated to provide certain financial information and operating data annually, and timely notice of specified
events, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”). At such time as the aggregate outstanding bonds
of the District do not exceed $10,000,000, including the outstanding amount of the Bonds, the District is then
required to provide, and so agrees to provide only (i) financial information and operating data which is customarily
prepared by the District and is publicly available and (ii) notice within 10 business days after the occurrence of one
or more of the 16 listed events described below. See “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION—Listed
Event Notices”, The MSRB has established the Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA?™) system for access
to such information.

Annual Reports

The District will provide certain updated financial information and operating data, which is customarily prepared by
the District and publicly available, annually to MSRB. The financial information and operating data which will be
provided with respect to the District is found in APPENDIX A (the District’s Audited Financial Statements). The
District will update and provide this information to MSRB within six months after the end of each of its fiscal years
ending in or after 2020. Any information concerning the District so provided shall be prepared in accordance with

43



generally accepted auditing standards or other such principles as the District may be required to employ from time to
time pursuant to state law or regulation, and audited if the audit report is completed within the period during which it
must be provided. If the audit report of the District is not complete within such period, then the District shall
provide unaudited financial statements for the applicable entity and fiscal year to MSRB within such six-month
period and audited financial statements when the audit report becomes available.

The District may provide such information in full text or may incorporate by reference certain other publicly
available documents, as permitted by SEC Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”). The updated information will include audited
financial statements, if the District commissions an audit and the audit is completed by the required time. If the audit
of such financial statements is not complete within such period, then the District will provide unaudited financial
information and operating data which is customarily prepared by the District by the required time and audited
financial statements when and if such audited financial statements become available. Any such financial statements
will be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in the Bond Order or such other accounting
principles as the District may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation.

The District’s current fiscal year end is June 30. Accordingly, it must provide updated information by December 31
in each year, unless the District changes its fiscal year. If the District changes its fiscal year, it will notify MSRB of
the change.

Listed Event Notices

The District will provide timely notices of certain events to the MSRB, but in no event will such notices be provided
to the MSRB in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of an event. The District will provide notice of any
of the following events with respect to the Bonds: (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment
related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (4)
unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity
providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701 TEB) or other material
notices or determinations with respect to the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, or other events affecting the tax exempt
status of the Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of beneficial owners of the Bonds, if material; (8) bond calls, if
material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Bonds, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the District or
other obligated person within the meaning of CFR § 240.15¢2-12 (the “Rule™); (13) consummation of a merger,
consolidation, or acquisition involving the District, or other obligated person within the meaning of the Rule or the
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the District, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into
a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of an definitive agreement relating to any such
actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and (14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the
change of name of a trustee, if material; (15) incurrence of financial obligation of the District, if material; (16)
default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events under terms of a
financial obligation of the District, any of which reflect financial difficulties. In addition, the District will provide
the MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of any failure by the District to provide the required annual financial
information described above under “Annual Reports” and any notices of material events in accordance with this
section. The term “material” when used in this paragraph shall have the meaning ascribed to it under federal
securities laws. Neither the Bonds not the Bond Order makes any provision for debt service reserves or liquidity
enhancement. In addition, the District will provide timely notice of any failure by the District to provide
information, data, or financial statements in accordance with its agreement described above under **Annual Reports.”

For purposes of the event numbered (12) above, the event is considered to occur when any of the following occur:
the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the District in a proceeding under a U.S. Bankruptcy
Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all the assets or business of the District, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders
of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement of
liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all the assets or
business of the District. A “financial obligation™ as described in (15) and (16) above means a (i) debt obligation; (ii)
derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, and existing
or planned obligation; or (iii) a guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term “financial obligation” does not include municipal
securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to MSRB consistent with the Rule.



Availability of Information from MSRB

The District has agreed to provide the foregoing information only to the MSRB. The MSRB makes the information
available to the public without charge through the EMMA internet portal at www.emma.msrb.org.

Compliance with Prior Undertakings

This is the District’s eighth issuance of Bonds, including the Series 2012 Refunding Bonds. Although some prior
compliance filings were not made timely due to administrative oversight, the District has now complied with all
continuing disclosure agreements made by it pursuant to the Rule. In addition, the District has put certain
administrative procedures in place to help ensure timely compliance with its annual obligations in the future.

OTHER INFORMATION
Registration and Qualification of Bonds for Sale

No registration statement relating to the Bonds has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"SEC") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon the exemption provided thereunder by
Section 3(a)(2). The Bonds have not been approved or disapproved by the SEC, nor has the SEC passed upon the
accuracy or adequacy of this Official Statement. The Bonds have not been registered or qualified under the
Securities Act of Texas in reliance upon various exemptions contained therein, nor have the Bonds been registered or
qualified under the securities act of any other jurisdiction. The District assumes no responsibility for registration or
qualification of the Bonds under the securities laws of any jurisdiction in which the Bonds may be sold, assigned,
pledged, hypothecated, or otherwise transferred. This disclaimer of responsibility for registration or qualification for
sale or other disposition of the Bonds shall not be construed as an interpretation of any kind with regard to the
availability of any exemption from securities registration or qualification provisions.

Authenticity of Financial Information

The financial data and other information contained herein have been obtained from the District's records, audited
financial statements, and other sources that are believed to be reliable. There is no guarantee that any of the
assumptions or estimates contained herein will be realized. All of the summaries of the statutes, documents, and
Orders contained in this Official Statement are made subject to all of the provisions of such statutes, documents, and
Orders. These summaries do not purport to be complete statements of such provisions and reference is made to such
documents for further information. Reference is made to original documents in all respects.

Forward Looking Statements

The statements contained in this Official Statement, and in any other information provided by the District, that are
not purely historical, are forward-looking statements, including statements regarding the District's expectations,
hopes, intentions, or strategies regarding the future. Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking
statements. All forward-looking statements included in this Official Statement are based on information available to
the District on the date hereof, and the District assumes no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements.
The District's actual results could differ materially from those discussed in such forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements included herein are necessarily based on various assumptions and estimates and are
inherently subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncertainties relating to the possible
invalidity of the underlying assumptions and estimates and possible changes or developments in social, economic,
business, industry, market, legal, regulatory circumstances and conditions, and actions taken or omitted to be taken
by third parties, including customers, suppliers, business partners and competitors, and legislative, judicial, and other
governmental authorities and officials. Assumptions related to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to,
among other things, future economic, competitive, and market conditions of future business decisions, all of which
are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond the control of the District. Any of
such assumptions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements
included in this Official Statement will prove to be accurate.



OFFICIAL STATEMENT
Preparation

The financial data and other information contained in this Official Statement has been obtained primarily from the
District’s records, the Engineer and information from certain other sources. All of these sources are believed to be
reliable, but no guarantee is made by the District as to the accuracy or completeness of the information derived from
such sources, and its inclusion herein is not be construed as a representation on the part of the District except as
described below under “Certification of Official Statement”. Furthermore, there is no guarantee that any of the
assumptions or estimates contained herein will be realized. The summaries of the agreements, reports, statutes,
resolutions, engineering and other related information set forth in this Official Statement are included herein subject to
all of the provisions of such documents. These summaries do not purport to be complete statements of such provisions
and reference is made to such documents for further information.

Financial Advisor

SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc. is employed as the Financial Advisor to the District to render certain professional
services including advising the District on a plan of financing and preparing the Official Statement. In its capacity as
Financial Advisor, SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc. has compiled and edited this Official Statement. The Financial
Advisor has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to
the District and, as applicable, to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of
this transaction, but the Financial Advisor does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. The
fees paid the Financial Advisor for services rendered in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds are based on
a percentage of the Bonds actually issued, sold and delivered, and therefore such fees are contingent on the sale and
delivery of the Bonds.

Consultants
In approving this Official Statement, the District has relied upon the following consultants:

Engineer: The information contained in this Official Statement relating to engineering matters and to the description of
the System and in particular that information included in the sections entitled “THE DISTRICT” and *THE SYSTEM”
has been provided by AEI Engineering LLC and has been included herein in reliance upon the authority of said firm as
experts in the field of civil engineering.

Appraisal District: The information contained in the Official Statement relating to the certified assessed valuation of
property in the District and, in particular such information contained in the sections captioned “FINANCIAL
STATEMENT” and “TAX DATA™ has been provided by the Galveston Central Appraisal District, in reliance upon the
authority as experts in appraising and tax assessing.

Tax Assessor/Collector: The information contained in this Official Statement relating to principal taxpayers and tax
collection rates has been provided by Ms. Cheryl Johnson Galveston County Tax Assessor/Collector in reliance upon
her authority as an expert in the field of tax assessing and collecting.

Auditor: The District’s financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2019, were audited by McCall Gibson
Swedlund Barfoot PLLC, Certified Public Accountants. See “APPENDIX A” for a copy of the District’s June 30, 2019,
financial statement.

Updating the Official Statement During Underwriting Period

If, subsequent to the date of the Official Statement to and including the date the Initial Purchaser is no longer required to
provide an Official Statement to potential customers who request the same pursuant to the Rule (the earlier of (i) 90
days from the “end of the underwriting period” (as defined in the Rule) and (ii) the time when the Official Statement is
available to any person from a nationally recognized repository but in no case less than 25 days afier the “end of the
underwriting period"), the District learns or is notified by the Initial Purchaser of any adverse event which causes any of
the key representations in the Official Statement to be materially misleading, the District will promptly prepare and
supply to the Initial Purchaser a supplement to the Official Statement which corrects such representation to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Initial Purchaser, unless the Initial Purchaser elects to terminate its obligation to purchase
the Bonds as described below. The obligation of the District to update or change the Official Statement will terminate
when the District delivers the Bonds to the Initial Purchaser (the “‘end of the underwriting period” within the meaning of

46



the Rule), unless the Initial Purchaser provides written notice to the District that less than all the Bonds have been sold to
ultimate customers on or before such date, in which case the obligation to update or change the Official Statement will
extend for an additional period of time of 25 days after all of the Bonds have been sold to ultimate customers. In the
event the Initial Purchaser provides written notice to the District that less than all of the Bonds have been sold to
ultimate customers, the Initial Purchaser agrees to notify the District in writing following the occurrence of the “end of
the underwriting period™ as defined in the Rule.

Certification as to Official Statement

The District, acting by and through its Board of Directors in its official capacity, in reliance upon the experts listed
above, hereby certifies, as of the date hereof, that to the best of its knowledge and belief, the information, statements and
descriptions pertaining to the District and its affairs herein contain no untrue statements of a material fact and do not
omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements herein, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading. The information, description and statements concerning entities other than the District,
including particularly other governmental entities, have been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but the
District has made no independent investigation or verification of such matters and makes no representation as to the
accuracy or completeness thereof.

Official Statement “Deemed Final”

For purposes of compliance with Rule 15¢(2)-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, this
document, as the same may be supplemented or corrected by the District from time-to-time, may be treated as an Official
Statement with respect to the Bonds described herein “deemed final” by the District as of the date hereof (or of any such
supplement or correction) except for the omission of certain information referred to in the succeeding paragraph.

The Official Statement, when further supplemented by adding information specifying the interest rates and certain other
information relating to the Bonds, shall constitute a “FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT” of the District with respect to
the Bonds, as that term is defined in Rule 15¢(2)-12.

This Official Statement was approved by the Board of Directors of San Leon Municipal Utility District, as of the date
shown on the first page hereof.

/s/
Joe Manchaca
President, Board of Directors
San Leon Municipal Utility District

s/
Keith Gossett
Secretary, Board of Directors
San Leon Municipal Utility District

47



PHOTOGRAPHS

The enclosed photos were taken in the District. The following photographs were taken in the District. The homes
shown in the photographs are representative of the type of construction presently located within the District, and
these photographs are presented solely to illustrate such construction. The District makes no representation that any
additional construction such as that as illustrated in the following photographs will occur in the District.



APPENDIX A
District Audited Financial Statements

The information contained in this appendix has been excerpted from the audited financial statements of San Leon
Municipal Utility District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Certain information not considered to be relevant
to this financing has been omitted; however, complete audit reports are available upon request.



APPENDIX B
Special Tax Counsel Opinion



Financial Advisory Services
Provided By:

SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF
SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF GALVESTON §

The Board of Directors of the San Leon Municipal Utility District met in regular sessipn, open to
the public, on Wednesday, August 21, 2019, at 6:30 p.m. at the District's reguiar‘me}atmg place at
the San Leon Volunteer Fire Department 337 12th Street, San Leon, Texas. Constituting a quorum,
the following members of the Board were present, to-wit:

Joe Manchaca, President Kenneth Bishop, Treasurer
Kelly Neason, Asst. Secretary Keith Gossett, Secretary

Not Present: Tyson Kennedy, Vice President

Also present were janice Hoffman, Office Manager, Ken Keller, Field Superintlender-lt, AndTew
Miller, District Manager, Hal Walker, District's Engineer Chris Lane, District’s Financial Advisor
and Perry Larvin, Security.

Not Present: Steve Don Carlos, District's Attorney

Call Meeting to Order:

Meeting called to order at 6:30 pm.

Comments from District Residents:

Dan Sumpter had comments and questions regarding the letter received about the rate increase for
the San Leon Volunteer Fire Dept. There were no other comments from District residents.
MMEWWW’MM—M—W
of Notice of Public Hearing. take Record Vote on Proposed Tax Rate:

C. Lane discussed the proposed draft documents. C. Lane said they are in the process of issuing
Bonds so you can include that Bond issue in this year tax rate; so the debt service to $0.45 and the
0O & M down to $0.18, a total of $0.63. There were four (4) Board members for, none (0) against
and one (1) not present and setting the 2019 tax rate at $0.63. Ken Bishop made the motion to call
a public hearing and authorize publication notice of a public hearing for the proposed tax rate,
seconded by Kelly Neason. All in favor, motion carried unanimously.

Consider discussion from Boyd Thomure:

Boyd Thomure asked the Board to consider waiving the $25 reconnect fee if the customer has been
a good paying customer for the last six (6) years. Look into a reduced rate for the over 65
customers on a fixed income and the customer would have to apply for it. To have a separate fund
to be established to assist in paying the monthly bill for the household due to illness or family
hardship and they would need to apply for this also. Something to think about and look into.
Consider and Approve a Proposed Development at 24™ and Ave N for John Arena:

Item tabled, J. Arena is not present.

Consider and Approve a Proposed Development at 11" and Ave K for R. Saldierna;

R_ Saldierna discussed his proposal to build ten (10) small cottages and said that the property is
big enough he can build ten (10) more on the back. Timeline on the initial ten (10) would be about
a year. Tabled until next meeting.




Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting for July 17. 2019;

Minutes of the Regular Meeting for July 17, 2019. -

Consider and Approve the Engineer's Report;

Hal Walker presented the Engineer's Report to the Board. Bond Report; had a conversation with
Daniel Harrison with TCEQ, he assured that everything was running smoothly on the application
and that it has moved out of administration and management reviews, but this afternoon we
received a call from management and they had some questions regarding the water capacity. The
state criteria is .6 gallons per minute, per single-family connection and the District does use that
much every day. Work on the WWTP Generator looks good so far and Costello approves the
payment to McDonald Electric for the amount of $32,124.60.

Consider and Approve the Field Superintendent's Report:

Ken Keller presented the Field Superintendent's Report to the Board.

Consider and Approve the Office Manager's Report;

Janice Hoffman presented the Office Manager's Report t0 the Board.

Kelly Neason made the motion to approve of the Minutes to the Regular Meeting for July 17, 2019,
the Engineer’s Report, the Field Superintendent’s report and the Office Manager’s report,
seconded by Keith Gossett. All in favor, motion carried unanimously.

Discuss and Approve of Pay Est. No. 3. from C. F. McDonald Electric Inc.:

Ken Bishop made the motion to approve of the Pay Est. No. 3 from C. F. McDonald Electric in
the amount $32,124.60, seconded by Kelly Neason. All in favor, motion carried unanimously.
Review and Discuss Sludge Haul Proposals;

A. Miller presented to the Board five (5) proposals for sludge haulers. Sludge haul proposals table
until next meeting.

Review and Adopt Amended Rate Order:

A_Miller stated on page 2 regarding the PEX plumbing the District already approves PEX
plumbing for interior, it should say that the District will approve PEX for exterior plumbing. A.
Miller said that we wanted to confirm with the Board how we need to approach multi-commercial
accounts; if there needed to be a base rate of $20.00 plus the $5.00 per occupied unit. J. Manchaca
said that is correct. Keith Gossett made the motion changes to the rate order with the fire
department rate changes, seconded by Ken Bishop. All in favor, motion carried unanimously.
District Manager's Report:

We will be getting the District emergency radios from Galveston County dispatch; they are
finishing up the programming. Working with Ken on a solution for Topwater; they are at the end
of the waterline, so when the District is flushing lines, they have low to no water pressure. Taps
for this month; there were thirty-eight (38) taps requested, twenty-one (21) were available and
seventeen (17) were unavailable and quoted for line improvements. Three (3) of the quotes were
for r. v. parks. A. Miller said we are evaluating on a case by case bases when there is two-inch
(2) water lines that are at the capacity and working with TCEQ about getting variances in certain
situations. Working on a street light survey so we can do a night run to see which one needs
repairs.

Discuss and Follow up on Quistanding Issues:

There were no outstanding issues.

Director's Report;
There were no Directors Reports.



Recess into Executive Session Pursuant to Section 551.0711551.072 and 551.074 of the Texas

Government Code:

Recess into Executive Session at 7:32 p. m.

Return to Regular Session and Act on Matters Discussed in Executive Session:

Returned to Regular Session at 7:39 pm and acted on matters discussed in Executive Session.
There were discussions regarding one (1) employee’s annual appraisal in Executive Session and
the Board agreed on what was discussed. The Board discussed having all of the employee’s
annuals to be done once a year at the beginning of January. There was nothing approved,
discussions only.

Adjourn Meeting:
Keith Gossett made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:39 pm, seconded by Ken Bishop. All

in favor, motion carried unanimously.

Approved: Attest:

Joe Manchaca Keith Gossett
President, Board of Directors Secretary, Board of Directors



SAN LEON
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

Costello &

‘*«v

ENGINEER'S REPORT

FOR
SEPTEMBER 18, 2019

Cl Project NO. 2018145-000-DS
Prepared on 09/12/2019

This report provides the District with current information regarding updates, progress, or documentation
on the projects below as authorized by the District.

1) WWTPEXPANSION DESIGN
Structural and electrical drawings have resumed.

2) WWTP EMERGENCY GENERATOR AND CONTROLS CONSTRUCTION
Approximately 60% of the work is complete. The new MCC has been energized and is operation.
The main item remaining is the arrival and installation of the generator. The contractor has
received word that the manufacturer will ship it on September 25" and should arrive a week
later to be installed. No Pay Estimate this month.

3) BOND REPORT
TCEQ approved the Bond Report/Application on September 3rd.

4) UTILITY MASTER PLAN UPDATE
No work performed since the previous meeting.

Prepared by:
Harry B. “Hal” Walker, P.E.

Senior Project Manager
TBPE Firm Registration No. 280

iy Dbt —




“"-?\'E'-.wjﬁﬂ'l

Gulf Coast Water Authority

2630 Fiv 1765 Texas Cily. Texss 77591 409.935.2438 fax 408 835 4158
TO: SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

443 24TH STREET
SAN LEON, TX 77539

INVOICE NO. 2019 6206 DATE: 09/12/2018
RAW WATER CHARGE $ 17,250.16
CAPITAL CHARGE 9,588.42
OPERATING BUDGET 13,545.27
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS - CAPITAL
NORTH LINE 1,894.78
BAYSHORE 1,285.54

TOTAL DUE FOR CURRENT MONTH  § 43,574.17

08/01/19-09/03/19
WATER CONSUMPTION: 24,292 KG

METER READING
08/01/19 13,854
09/03/18 38,146

24,292

REMIT TO: GULF COAST WATER AUTHORITY
3630 FM 1765
TEXAS CITY, TX 77591

Water for Indusry, Agriculture, & Municipalities in Brazoria, Fort Bend, and Galveston Counties



San Leon Municipal Utility District
Operations Report for Aug 2019

Water Treatment Plant

GCWA Received: 24,292.000

Pumped into system: 21,730.00
Meters billed: 15,119.000

Gallons lost (leaks/flushing): 2,562.000
Accountability: 13%

Active meters: 2,823
9 bacteriological samples taken and tested

(8 distribution, 1 well); all results were good,
no coliform organisms found

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Permitted Actual
Flow <0.85MGD A492MGD
BOD 158 Ibs/day 8.23lbs/day
TSS 158 Ibs/day 5.01 Ibs/day
DO  2.0mg/L 6.6mg/L

CL? 1.0 min - 4.0 max

Total flow: gallons 15,252.000

Daily average flow: .492 MGD

Average solids level: 273 mg/L

Sludge hauled: 0 tankers & 10 containers
Total rainfall: 3.58 inches

MGD: Million gallons per day
mg/L: Milligrams per liter

1.1 min - 3.5max

Distribution & Collection

Taps, Inspections, & Extensions
Water Taps: 8 Water Taps YTD: 116
Sewer Taps: 8 Sewer Taps YTD: 116
Inspections: 7 Inspections YTD: 73
Line extensions:1 Extensions YTD: 3

Account Activity
Active Accounts: 2,823
Taps & Payments: 10 taps, $15,000 collected
inspections & Fees: 7 inspections, $405
Capacity Fee: n/a
Lock-off for non-payment: 76accounts
Locked-off accounts paid: 45 accounts
pulled meters & fees: 0 pulled, S0 collected

Service Orders

ken 0
leo 66
randy 83
Mack 21
Anthony 9
Taps 8
Connects 37
Disconnects 28
QOccupants change 13
Pool fills 14
Reconnects 17
After Hours i 1
Water/Sewer Taps: 8
Plumbing Inspection: 7




Month: Aug 2018

Meters

Fire Department
Hydrants Flushing
Water Leaks
Stolen Water

Galveston Co.
Not Metered Total

GCWA
Water Office Meters

Water Meter Use

Difference

5%

Monthly Water Audit

UN METERED

LOSS
755.950

METER READS
15,118.000

200,000
1,504,000

1,000 X 10 MIN

2,000,000

0

3,704,755.950

24,292,000 8/1/19 - 8/31/19
21,730,000 8/1/19 - 8/31/19
15,119,000

Total % of |
Unaccounted for water

6,611,000.000

2,906,244.050
13%



SERVICE ORDERS JULY 18th. thru AUGUST 21st. 2019

KEN

LEO

RANDY

MACK
BRANDON
ANTHONY
OTHER

TAPS

LINE EXTENSION
CONNECTS
DISCONNECTS
OCCUPANT CHANGES
POOL FILLS
RECONNECTS
AFTER HOURS
RE-READ

TOTAL:

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS:

235 24TH. ST.
301 13TH. ST.
227 7TH.ST.
1564 RAILROAD
801 28TH. ST.
1012 AVE. A 1/2
960 7TH.

705 11TH. ST.
812 8TH. ST.
329 SUTTON
2303 BAYLINE UNIT A
803 16TH. ST.
426 18TH. ST.
413 5TH. ST.
2653 AVE. J
1234 8TH. ST.
2432 AVE. D
1025 23RD. ST.
933 23RD. ST.
1043 8TH. ST.

66
83
21

o 00 &~ W -

37
28

13
14
17

309

REPLACE METER BOX
REPLACE METER BOX
REPLACE METER BOX
INSTALL NEW METER
CHECK FOR LEAK
REPLACE METER BOX
LOW WATER PRESSURE
CHECK FOR LEAK
REPLACE CURBSTOP
CLEAN OUT METER BOX.
CHECK FOR LEAK
CHECK FOR LEAK
REPLACE METER BOX
RE-SET METER BOX
CHECK FOR LEAK

TURN OFF FOR LEAK
REPLACE METER BOX
REPLACE CURBSTOP
CHECK FOR LEAK
CHECK FOR LEAK



SERVICE ORDERS JULY 18th. thru AUGUST 21st. 2019

1241 11TH. ST. LOCATE AND MARK TAPS
1105 3K'S SEWER BACK-UP
914 10TH. ST. LOCATE AND MARK TAPS
927 5TH. ST. LOCATE AND MARK TAPS
233 16TH. ST. CHECK FOR LEAK
435 24TH. ST. SEWER BACK-UP

PROFILED METERS:

1124 10TH, ST.

2303 BAYLINE UNIT A
346 15TH. ST.

430 6TH. ST.

2485 AVE. B

MAIN REPAIRS:

826 10TH. ST. CONTRACTOR BROKE CURBSTOP - REPAIRED
VIOLATIONS:

239 24TH. ST. CHECK FOR VIOLATION

1435 BROADWAY RV

1004 20TH. ST.

METER INSTALLATION / TAPS:

mi

28 CINDY PALMER LN.
706 15TH. ST.

325 22ND. ST.

325 22ND. ST. UNIT A
1404 E. BAYSHORE
803 16TH. ST.

1125 STH. ST.

413 5TH. ST.

735 12TH. 5T.

1231 9TH. ST.

1235 DICKBAY

1024 24TH. ST.

413 3RD. ST. UNIT A
2724 AVE. D UNIT B

LINE EXTENSIONS:



SERVICE ORDERS JULY 18th. thru AUGUST 21st. 2019

PLUMBING INSPECTIONS:

329 SUTTON

2250 AVE. )

325 22ND. ST. UNIT A
1125 9TH. ST.

706 15TH. ST.

105 23RD.1/2 ST. UNIT B
2290 AVE )

413 5TH. ST.

123 14TH. ST.

831 16TH. ST.

933 AVE.D

28 CINDY PALMER LN,
814 9TH. ST.

315 24TH. ST.

814 STH. ST.

803 16TH. ST.



District Manager Report
September 18, 2019

Regional Agencies
US Census Bureau: Met with a local worker for the census and assisted him with
locating difficult to identify dwellings by confirming physical addresses in Tyler

Gulf Coast Water Authority (GCWA): Ken Keller attended the bimonthly operations
meeting and verified that our emergency radios are properly calibrated to the GCWA
emergency frequency

Galveston County: Meeting with our Commissioner’s office to evaluate if funds are
available to assist with funding an electronic community entrance sign that could
feature messages from the District as well as emergency notices from the county. We
also received training from the Galveston County 911 District on the operation of the
emergency radios.

Texas Commission for Environmental Quality (TCEQ): No new interactions this month

Attorney General: We received a letter confirming that our initial estimate for
charges regarding a public information request made earlier this year were in line
with their assessments. A minor change was made regarding computer and server
usage and an amended quote was sent to both the requestor and the attorney
general.

Facilities and Distribution

Water treatment plant: The MCC has been operating from the EST for the past several
months without error; some minor timing adjustments were performed to ensure the
booster pumps were cycling properly, but everything else has been functioning well.
The SCADA has been set up and programmed, so this project is now complete

Sewer treatment plant: The sludge haul companies who gave quotes were mostly
proposing with a different method of haul off than has been previously done at the
facility. Discussions with the engineer are ongoing to determine the feasibility of
engaging the mobile belt press method as this would provide the District with the
most cost savings.

iTrackers: The iTrackers have been relocated to a small section near 22" and FM 517.
Though rain has been scarce this past month, the data we’ve collected has given a
good baseline for comparison once we do receive rain to properly gauge the amount
of inflow and infiltration occurring in the area under observation

GIS Survey and Update: We are continuing to evaluate the infrastructure maps and
update new or erroneous information based on the repairs, line extensions, and
institutionalized knowledge of our staff. Once updated, a plan will be implemented to
begin replacing the system’s most dire infrastructure with a crew led by some of our
existing staff, supplemented by a potential new hire or two. The chief goal is to
handle a majority of the District’s repairs with a systematic approach by an internal
crew, including replacement of the aging collection system pipes as well as



improvements to the distribution system through upgrading the 2” water lines. A
valve survey is currently being evaluated as a simple first step to ensuring the
integrity of the system and our GIS data.

Community entrance sign: We are in communication with a local sign installation
company and ironing out details for a preferred sign design to confirm how much it
would cost and what the installation timeline would look like.

Consultants

Attorney: Clarification over the plumbing policies with regards to TCEQ requirements
for separation of water and sewer in the District’s infrastructure in comparison to
TCEQ requirements on a customer’s property

Engineer: Continued discussion regarding connection counts and consumption for
TCEQ and bond documents

Financial Advisor: Continued discussion regarding bond documents

District Services: We renewed our TCEQ required backflow compliance software for
the next 3 years. Payscale has been implemented and several training sessions have
been conducted for onboarding. The website management proposals from Off Cinco
and CivicPlus are being evaluated and fine print is being confirmed with our attorney.
The trash service proposals discussed last month were fielded in anticipation of the
existing contract’s end date; no further action is needed at this time, the proposals
will be updated closer to the existing contract’s end date.

Community Engagement

Resident communications: Communication with several residents regarding the VFD
increase. Discussion with 3 separate developments regarding taps and permit
requirements. Discussion with Dale Brown regarding Cindy Palmer development.
Certified letters sent to 2 customers regarding multiple unit connections.

Public relations: articles in the Seabreeze and Eagle Point regarding how meters are
read and how consumption is calculated

Tap requests: 5 taps requested, all of which were ok with existing infrastructure

Community Engagement
Upcoming projects: I’'m continuing to take TEEX classes for my B licenses. | will be

coordinating with nearby municipalities to schedule a manhole rehabilitation
demonstration with a product that will be beneficial for the District’s collection
system improvement plan.



Revenues Connections
Aug-18 $ 284.456.79 2788 —
Sep-18  $ 294,967.70 2797 T~
2840 @Sep-it
Oct-18 § 30221107 2791 2
Nov-18 § 296,988.91 2820 o il
Dec-18 § 283,901.61 2812 2820 @oec-1s
Jan-19 § 321,750.75 2823 2810 ot
Feb-19 § 308,501.14 2821 2800 "y
Mar-19 $§ 319.068.03 2818 2790 BAN-19
Apr-19 § 206,784.67 2815 2780 - i
OJun-15
May-19 $ 29269427 2831 — s
Jun-19 $ 339,252.65 2840 S 4 st
Jul-19 $§ 314,432.55 2838 Connections ==
Aug-19 $ 294,033.74 2823
$350,000.00 aAug-18
$340,000.00 e
adct-18
$330,000.00 ONov-18
$320,000.00 @Dec-18
$310,000.00 ; aJen-18
$300,000.00 — : @Feb-19
$290,000.00 - —
|Apr-18
$280,000.00 = I P
$270,000.00 — | gwun1e
$260,000.00 - —t |ewee
$250,000.00 - | |20 |
Revenues




August 2019

GENERAL OPER FUND TP OP
BEGINNING GL BALANCE § 1,121,046.89
REVENUES
DEPOSIT RECEIPTS $ .
INTEREST $ 2,067.47
M/O TAX DEPOSITS $ :
PR TRANSFER $ .

$ 1,123,114.36
EXPENSES
PAYROLL ENTRIES S :
ACCTS PAYABLE $ .
AETNA EMP INS DRAFTED 8 %
TRANSFERS PAYROLL $ :
RET CKS $ .
RET CK FEE (3) $ .
MERCH CHRG S .
ENDING GL BALANCE  § 1,123,114.36
DUTSTANDING CKS $ .
ENDING BANK BALANCE § 1,123,114.36
CUSTOMER DEP FUND TP DEP
BEGINNING GL BALANCE §  225,763.27
REVENUES
DEPOSIT RECEIPTS $ .
INTEREST $ 41635

§  226,179.62
EXPENSES
FINAL REFUNDS $ .
ENDING GL BALANCE  §  226,179.62
OUTSTANDING CKS $ -
ENDING BANK BALANCE §  226,179.62
DEBT SERVICE FUND TP TAX
BEGINNING GL BALANCE § 1,078,073.21
REVENUES
INTEREST $ 1.908.99
D/S TAX DEPOSITS 3 .

S 1,079,982.20
EXPENSES
2017 BOND PYMT §  (138,228.13)
2013 BOND PYMT $  (275.409.38)
2012 BOND PYMT $  (255.175.00)
ENDING GLBALANCE  §  411,169.69
OUTSTANDING CKS 8 2
ENDING BANK BALANCE §  411,169.69
BOND 2017 FUNDS TS BOND 2017
BEGINNING GL BALANCE §  807,053.01
REVENUES
INTEREST $ 1,457.10

$  808,510.11
EXPENSES
PAYABLES 3 :
ENDING GL BALANCE  §  808,510.11
OUTSTANDING CKS s -
ENDING BANK BALANCE §  808,510.11

G/L. BALANCE
GENERAL OPER FUND  § 1,896.738.03
CUSTOMERDEP FUND  §  390,003.29
DEBT SERVICE FUND S 81991427
BOND 2017 b 998,328.59
TOTALS S 4,105,884.18

TEX 1ST OP

$ 523,251.87

$ 297,724 26

$ 289 42

) 23,457.34

% -

s 844,722.89

< =

$ (298 468.58)

$ (11,818.08)

$ (53.724.99)

8 (801.41)

s (18.00)

$ (927.07)

$ 478,964.76

S 11,574.23

s 490,538.99
TEX 1ST DEP

s 165,574.29

$ 4,675.00

$ 4938

S 170,298.67

$ (5,575.00)

b 164,723.67

$ 1,790.18

$ 166,513.85

TS DIS

3 255,739.39

$ 461.72

g -

$ 256,201.11

3 -

5 =

b -

s 256,201.11

% =

b 256,201.11

TEX 1ST 2017 BOND

s 223,937.97
$ 7023
s 224,008.20
$ (34,189.72)
s 189,818.48
$ 32,124.60
$ 221,943.08
BANK BALANCE
$ 1,909,281.93
g 392,693 47
$ 819,914.27
$ 1,030,453.19
$ 4,152,342.86

TFB OP ACCRU

$ 1,001.71

$ 51.900.00

$ 5.99

g B

§ :

b 52,907.70

$ &

[ "

[~ -

$ 3

g s

s -

S =

b 52,907.70

s at

s 52,907.70

TOTALS

$  391,337.56

$ 4,675.00

$ 465.73

b 396,478.29

s (5,575.00)

$  390,903.29

$ 1,790.18

$  392,693.47
TEX 1ST /S

h ) 135,013.28

$ 4333

$ 17,486.86

S 152,543.47

L -

$ "

£ ”

$ 152,543.47

£ =

b 152,543.47

TOTALS

$  1,030,990.98

$ 1.527.33

S  1,032,51831

Ed (34,180.72)

S  998,328.59

$ 32.124.60

$ 1,030,453.19

TEX 1STP/R
§ 12835888

744

53,724.99
82,091.31

U I

(53,724.99)

$

$

B -
$ -

£ -

® 3

8 .

$ 28,366.32
$ 969.67
$ 2933599

TOTALS
$51,468,825.88

$ 241404
8 17.486.86
$1,488,726.78

$ (138,228.13)
$ (275.409.38)
§ (255,175.00)
§ 819,914.27
< -

§ 819,914.27

AMOCO SVG.
$ 250.24
(3 -
5 0.01
3 -
[ =
s 250.25
8 i
s .
s &
$ :
$ =
$ -
$ .
s 250.25
g 5
$ 250.25

3

3 153.75
$ a
(3 =
3

213,134.64

BRI - - -
1

$213,134.64
g -
$213,134.64

TOTALS
$1,886,890.48

$ 349,624.26
$ 252408
$ 2345734
§ 53.724.99
$2,316,221.15

8§ (53,724.99)
$ (298,468.58)
$ (11,818.08)
$ (53.724.99)
S (801.41)
s (18.00)
§ (92707
$1,896,738.03
$  12,543.90
$1,909,281.93



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Income Statement
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2019

Revenues

Water Tap Fees

Sewer Tap Fees

Penalty

Inspection Fees

Water Service

Sewer Service
Reconnection Fees

Return Check/T-Tech Fees
Line Extenions

Misc Income (see attached)
Interest/Dividend Income
Maint. & Operat. Tax
Street Light Revenue

VFD Revenue
Trash/Garbage

Total Revenues

Expenses

Salaries

Alliance Payroll Serv.
Payroll Tax Expense
Employee Pension Expense
State Unemployment Taxes
Auditing Fees
Bank/Global/TTech Charges
Auto & Vehicle Expense
Equipment Expense
Chemicals Expense

Pest Control

Computer Expenses

Annual Support Serv Agreements

Education Courscs/Materia
Life/Dental/LTD/STD Ins.
Group Insurance - Health
Laboratory Fees

Filing/Posting Agendas/Notices

Advertised Legal Notices
Laboratory Equip./Supplies
Permits

Mileage/Lodging Exp

Fuel & Lube

Small Hand Tools/Tools

Current Month

Year to Date

$ 9,500.00 $ 20,000.00
$ 9.000.00 $ 18,000.00
$ 279195 $ 5.669.73
$ 51000 $ 1,500.00
§  107.257.66 $ 224.838.73
$ 8416232 $ 174,847.57
$ 975.00 $  1,600.00
$ 6000 $  150.00
$ 5190000 $ 70,650.00
$ 369052 $ 7.668.87
$ 208081 $  6.256.63
§ 2345734 § 40,394.73
$  10,365.63 § 21,220.09
$ 2181444 $ 4466429
$ 4666131 $ 9551854
§  375,135.98 § 732,979.18
$ 5297134 $ 108,673.25
$ 20805 $ 49445
$ 308767 $ 8,184.24
$ 1,34493 §  2,676.10
$ 187 $ 4.20
$ 1500000 $ 15,000.00
$ 94507 $ 193445
$ 9846 $  161.42
$ 491700 $ 14,406.47
$ 134350 $  2.687.00
$ 9000 $  180.00
$ 424533 $ 1547364
$ = 8 72.00
$ 27500 $§  275.00
$ 1,25847 $ 3.117.19
$ 1239188 $ 24505381
$ 1,083.00 $  3.003.00
$ 2300 $ 46.00
$ 900.00 $  1,350.00
$ 127493 $ 2,731.81
$ 4620 $ 4620
$ < 8§ 31235
$ - $  1.413.00
$ 9641 $ 21283

Page 1 of 2



SAN LEON MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Income Statement

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2019

Office Supplies

Printing

Postage

Shipping/Handling Expense
Security System Monitoring
Legal Fees

Engincering Fees

Rentals and Leases

Water Line Ext.

Sewer Line Ext.

Director Per Diems

WTP - Repair/Expense
WWTP - Repair/Expense
Repair & Maintenance-Water
Repair & Maintenance-Sewer
Sludge System Expenses
Safety Equip/Supplies/Training
Contracted Services

Water - Tap Exp

Sewer - Tap Exp

Consumable Supplies & Material
Testing (Employee Drug)
Telephone

Mobile/Comm Exp

Tax Collection Expense
Uniform Expense

Street Light Expense
Security/Locks @, Entryways
Waste Disposal

Utilities

Lawn Service

VFD Expense

GCWA - Dist Sys - Cap - North
GCWA - Dist Sys - Cap - Bayshr
GCWA - Capital Charge
GCWA - Raw Water Charge
GCWA - Operating Budget

Total Expenses

Net Income

Page 2 of 2

$ 89090 $  2,608.25
$ 583.00 $  2.269.00
$ 1,52099 §  3.205.39
$ 32750 $ 89242
$ 4500 $ 90.00
$ 145000 $ 3,012.50
$  27.19265 $ 5832254
$ 169.14 $  333.54
$ - $ 20,460.00
$ 7,040.00 $  7,040.00
$ 55410 $ 3,091.56
$ 299881 $ 453665
$ 3,860.58 $  3,860.58
$ 6,371.33 $ 4094226
$ 3,98927 $ 11,563.60
$ 1260105 $ 24,797.65
$ 48452 $ 60357
$ 2830000 $ 77.090.00
$  12,00000 $ 18,000.00
$ 1100000 $ 16,000.00
$ 34526 $ 35874
$ 53.00 $ 53.00
$ 111170 §  2.384.17
$ 748812 $  7.686.11
$ 1,7221 § 1,723.21
$ 96538 $  1,693.74
$ 578067 $ 11,607.99
$ 10000 $  100.00
$ 4958799 $ 99,730.49
$ 9,527.64 $ 18,355.32
$ - $ 130000
$ 2181600 $ 44,664.00
$ 1,89478 §  3,789.56
$ 128554 $  2,571.08
$ 959842 $ 19,196.84
$  17.250.16 $ 34,500.32
$ 1354527 $ 27.090.54
$  366,044.09 $ 782,985.03
$ 9,091.89 § (50,005.85)



9/10/19 at 13:18:06.95

SAN LEON MUD
General Ledger

Page: 1

For the Period From Aug 1, 2019 to Aug 31, 2019
Filter Criteria includes: 1) IDs from 34510 to 34510. Report order is by |D. Report is printed with shortened descriptions and in Detail Format.

Accoun Date
Accoun

Referen Jrn Trans Description

Debit Amt Credit Amt Balance

34510 8/1M19
Misc Inc  8/9/19
8/211

81311

AUG19 CR
AUG19 CR

Beginning Balance

MISC. INCOME - JULY FINALS APPLIED

MISC. INCOME - UNCOLLECTED FUNDS JANN
Current Period Change

Ending Balance

-3,978.35
3,64973
40.79
360052 -3,690.52
-7,668.87



SAN LEON MUD

Operating Funds
Check Register
For the Period From Aug 1, 2019 to Aug 31, 2019

Check # Date  Payee Cash Acct Amount
4597 8/1/19 MP2 ENERGY 10400 $ 1513547
4598 8/9/19 WATER. SEWER REPAIR & MORE 10400 $ 25.540.00
4599 8/9/19 R. S. SMOKE TEST & MULTI SERVICES 10400 $ 7.400.00
4600 8/9/19 ANDREW MILLER 10400 $ 102.78
4601 8/9/19 IMPACT WASTE, LLC 10400 $ 12,601.05
4602 8/9/19 CENTERPOINT ENERGY 10400 $ 172.84
4603  8/9/19 AMERICAN FUNDS SERVICE CO. 10400 $ 200517
4604 8/9/19 DECKER DISPOSE-ALL & RECYCLING SERVICES 10400 $ 49.306.50
4605 8/9/19 PAYSCALE, INC. 10400 $ 2.500.00
4606 8/9/19 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF SOUTH TEXAS 10400 $ 281.49
4607 8/9/19 CINTAS CORPORATION #081 10400 $ 445.57
4608 8/9/19 ROCKET FRANCHISING, INC. 10400 $ 312.93
4609 8/9/19 ELITE PUMPS & MECHANICAL SERVICES 10400 $ 750.00
4610 8/9/19 BIRD NEST SERVICES, INC. 10400 $ 333.00
4611 8/9/19 EAGLE POINT PRESS 10400 $ 450.00
4612 8/9/19 CINTAS CORPORATION #081 10400 $ 54.00
4613 8/9/19 DOCTOR COOL & PROFESSOR HEAT, INC. 10400 $ 1,714.00
4614 8/9/19 CASH 10400 $ 153.00
4615 8/9/19 CARDMEMBER SERVICE 10400 b 33.25
4616 8/9/19 FORTILINE, INC. 10400 $ 6.217.13
4617 8/9/19 ACE BACLIFF BUILDERS SUPPLY 10400 hY 637.02
4618 8/9/19 OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC. 10400 $ 4771
4619 8/9/19 LOWES BUSINESS ACCOUNT 10400 $ 518.12
4620 8/9/19 USA BLUE BOOK 10400 $ 59.17
4621 8/9/19 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT PLAN 10400 $ 544 47
4622 8/9/19 ACT PIPE & SUPPLY 10400 $ 812.90
4623 8/9/19 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC. 10400 $ 7,18851
4624V 8/23/19 VOID 10400 $ -

4625V 8/23/19 VOID 10400 $ -

4626V 8/23/19 VOID 10400 $ -

4627V 8/23/19 VOID 10400 $ B

4628V 8/23/19 VOID 10400 $ -

4629V 8/23/19 VOID 10400 5 -

4630V 8/23/19 VOID 10400 $ -

4631V 8/23/19 VOID 10400 $ -

4632 8/23/19 AFLAC 10400 $ 364.09
4633 8/23/19 AMERICAN FUNDS SERVICE CO. 10400 $ 1976.34
4634 8/23/19 ERROR COMPUTER REPAIR, LLC 10400 $ 1,100.00
4635 8/23/19 WATER, SEWER REPAIR & MORE 10400 $ 21,000.00
4636 8/23/19 R. S. SMOKE TEST & MULTI SERVICES 10400 $ 4.400.00
4637 8/23/19 HARRIS-GALVESTON SUBSIDENCE DISTRICT 10400 $ 46.20
4638 8/23/19 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INS. COMPANY 10400 $ 573.80
4639 8/23/19 ALWAYSCARE BENEF ITS, INC. 10400 $ 91.62
4640 8/23/19 TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 10400 $ 90.00
4641 8/23/19 MATHESON TRI-GAS 10400 $ 169.14

Page: 1



SAN LEON MUD
Operating Funds
Check Register
For the Period From Aug 1, 2019 to Aug 31, 2019

Check # Date  Payee Cash Acct Amount
4642 8/23/19 EASTEX ENVIRONMENTAL LAB 10400 $ 1.083.00
4643 8/23/19 CINTAS CORPORATION #081 10400 $ 902.39
4644 8/23/19 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 10400 $ 275.00
4645 8/23/19 COMCAST 10400 $ 31233
4646 8/23/19 PURCHASE POWER 10400 $ 152099
4647 8/23/19 WORLDWIDE POWER PRODUCTS 10400 $ 4917.00
4648 8/23/19 REID,STRICKLAND, GILLETTE 10400 $ 1.450.00
4649  8/23/19 FRONTIER 10400 $ 1111.70
4650 8/23/19 VERIZON WIRELESS 10400 $ 196 .83
4651 8/23/19 SEABREEZE 10400 $ 450.00
4652 8/23/19 GULF COAST WATER AUTHORITY 10400 $ 43,574.17
4653 8/23/19 GREEN EARTH 10400 $ 175.00
4654 8/23/19 GALVESTON CENTRAL APPRAIS 10400 $ 1,723.21
4655 8/23/19 MCCALL GIBSON SWEDLUND BARFOOT PLLC 10400 $ 15,000.00
4656 8/23/19 ASAP SECURITY SERVICES 10400 $ 45.00
4657 8/23/19 DISA GLOBAL SOLUTIONS INC 10400 $ 53.00
4658 8/23/19 MOSHERFLO PUMPS 10400 $ 3,100.06
4659 8/23/19 CORPORATE QUALITY 10400 $ 583.00
4660 8/23/19 DXI INDUSTRIES, INC. 10400 $ 1,343.50
4661 8/23/19 USA BLUE BOOK 10400 $ 1,556.73
4662 8/23/19 FORTILINE, INC. 10400 $ 347313
4663 8/23/19 SAM'S CLUB 10400 $ 304,77
4664 8/23/19 RED'S TIRE SERVICE 10400 $ 15.00
4665 8/23/19 USAble LIFE 10400 $ 589.75
4666 8/26/19 DENTAL SELECT 10400 $ 577.10
4667 8/26/19 COSTELLO, INC. 10400 $ 27,192.65
4668 8/28/19 SAN LEON VFD 10400 $ 21.816.00
Total $298,468.58

Page: 2



Budget Comparison

2019 - 2020 2019 - 2020
Revenues Annual Budget Monthly Budget Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Febh-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 TOTAL AP2:P24verage

Capacity Fee $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 _ |  $0.00 $0.00
Water Tap Fees $180,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,500.00 | $9,500.00 | — | $20,000.00 $10,000.00
Sewer Tap Fees B $180,000.00 $15,000.00 $9,000.00 | $9,000.00 il | _ $18,000.00 $9,000.00
Penalty $36,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,877.78 | $2,791.95 | $5669.73 $2,834.87
Inspection Fees $10,000.00 $833.33 $990.00 $510.00 [ | $1,500.00 $750.00
Water Service $1,350,000.00 $112,500.00 $117,581.07 | $107,257.66 | | _ _ | — $224,838.73  $112,419.37
Sewer Service $1,050,000.00  $87,500.00  $90,685.25  $84,162.32 | m " _ || $174,84757  $87,423.79
Reconnection Fees $15,500.00 $1,291.67 $625.00 | $975.00 | | N ' _ $1,600.00 $800.00
Returned Check Fees $2,200.00 $183.33 $90.00 | $60.00 _, | | $150.00 $75.00
Line Ext. $20,000.00 $1,666.67 $18,750.00 | $51,900.00 | [ i . | $70,650.00  $35,325.00
Meter Tampering Fee $500.00 $4167  $0.00 __ 5000 B | | $0.00 $0.00
Meter Move/Repair Fee $600.00 550.00 $0.00 $0.00 _ - $0.00 $0.00
Misc Income $0.00 $0.00 $3,97835 | $3,690.52 m B i ) - $7,668.87 $3,834.44
Interest Income ~ $35,000.00 $2,916.67  $3,266.82 | $2,989.81 o | _ . $6,256.63 $3,128.32
Maint. & Operat. Tax $630,000.00 $52,50000  $16,937.39  $23,457.34 | _ I | $40,394.73  $20,197.37
Street Light Revenue $130,000.00  $10,833.33  $10,854.46 510,365.63 @ - | - $21,220.09  $10,610.05
VFD Revenue $275,000.00 $22,916.67 $22,849.85 $21,814.44 | A $44,664.29  $22,332.15
Trash/Garbage ~ $575,000.00  $47,91667  $48,857.23 $46,661.31 _ | ] $95518.54  $47,759.27
Reimbursement for Bond Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 [ ” | $0.00 $0.00

Total Revenues $4,489,800.00 $374,150.00  $357,843.20 $375,135.98 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $732,979.18  $366,489.59

2019 - 2020 2019 - 2020 ﬁ T _ T =
Expenses Annual Budget Monthly Budget Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 | Oct-19 | Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 TOTAL AVERAGE

Salaries $660,000.00 55500000  555,701.91 $52,971.34 _ - , $108,673.25  $54,336.63
Alliance Payroll Serv. $2,700.00 $22500  $19640  $298.05 _ 1 7 $494.45 $247.23
Payroll Tax Expense $50,000.00 $4,166.67 $4,196.57  $3,987.67 | _ - $8,184.24 $4,092.12
Empl Pension Expense $17,000.00 $1,416.67 $1,331.17  $1,344.93 _ $2,676.10 $1,338.05
State Unemploy Taxes $2,500.00 $208.33 $2.33 $1.87 i N $4.20 $2.10
Employee Medical Exp. $500.00 541,67 $0.00 $0.00 [ o | $0.00 $0.00
Auditing Fees $21,000.00 $1,750.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 | — $15,000.00 $7,500.00
Bank/Global/T-Tech Charges $12,000.00 $1,000.00 $989.38 $945.07 - — o _ $1,934.45 $967.23
Auto & Vehicle Expense $10,000.00 $833.33 $62.96 $98.46 | I | $161.42 $80.71
Equipment Expense $40,000.00 $3,333.33 $9,489.47 | $4,917.00 ] o | $14,406.47  $7,203.24
Chemicals $25,000.00 $2,083.33 $1,343.50 = $1,343.50 | | $2,687.00 $1,343.50
Pest Control $1,200.00 $100.00 $90.00 $90.00 . ~$180.00 $90.00
Computer Expenses $40,000.00 $3,333.33 $11,22831 | $4,245.33 $15,473.64 $7,736.82
Conferences & Seminars $6,000.00 $500.00  $0.00 $0.00 - I | $0.00 $0.00
Dues & Subscriptions $1,500.00 $125.00 $0.00 $0.00 ] ] $0.00 $0.00
Annual Sup Agreements $1,000.00 $83.33 $72.00 $0.00 | $72.00 $36.00
Educ Courses/Materia $5,000.00 $416.67 $0.00 $275.00 . - i $275.00 $137.50
Election Expenses $15,000.00 §1,250.00 50.00 $0.00 | $0.00 $0.00
Insurance $75,000.00 $6,250.00 $0.00 | $0.00 i $0.00 $0.00
Life/Dental/LTD/STDIns.  $18,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,858.72 | $1,258.47 [ ] $3,117.19 $1,558.60
Group Insurance - Health $180,000.00 $15,00000  $12,113.93 $12,391.88 | - $24,505.81  $12,252.91
Laboratory Fees $15,000.00 $1,250.00 $1,920.00  $1,083.00 $3,003.00 $1,501.50
Filing/Posting Agendas/Notices $500.00 541.67 $23.00 $23.00 — | $46.00 $23.00
Advertised Legal Notices $6,500.00 $541.67 $450.00 $900.00 B - $1,350.00 $675.00
Lab Equip./Supplies $8,000.00 $666.67 $1456.88 = $1,274.93 _ [ B $2,731.81 $1,365.91
License Expense $1,000.00 $83.33 $0.00 | $0.00 o - | $0.00 $0.00
Permits $100.00 $8.33 $0.00 $46.20 | , L $46.20 $23.10
Mileage/Lodging Expense $5,000.00 $416.67 $812.35 $0.00 Page 1 of 2 | | $812.35 $406.18




Misc Expense $5,000.00 $416.67 $0.00 50.00 1 2U.UU 2U.UL
Fuel & Lube $11,000.00 $916.67 $1,413.00 $0.00 - - $1,413.00 $706.50
Small Hand Tools $10,000.00 $833.33 $116.42 $96.41 - $212.83 $106.42
Office Supplies $12,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,717.35 | $890.90 i B * $2,608.25  $1,304.13
Printing $6,500.00 $541.67  $1,686.00 | $583.00 N o $2,269.00  $1,134.50
Postage $20,000.00 $1,666.67  51,684.40 | $1,520.99 | $3,205.39 $1,602.70
Shipping/Handling Exp $4,000.00 $333.33 $564.92 | $327.50 ] - $892.42 $446.21
Security Sys Monitoring $500.00 $41.67 $45.00 $45.00 o $90.00 ) $45.00
Legal Fees $30,000.00 $2,500.00 $1,562.50 1,450.00 | B | 1$3,012.50 $1,506.25
Engineering Fees $90,000.00 $7,50000  $8,031.08  $2,064.55 _ )| $10,09563  $5,047.82
Engineering Fees Spec Projects $0.00 $0.00 $23,098.81 $25128.10 | _ m - $48,226.91  5$24,113.46
Financial Advisor Fees $3,000.00 $250.00 $000 | %000 | m ] I [ (N (N $0.00 $0.00
Rentals and Leases $50,000.00 $4,166.67 $164.40  $169.14 | o $33354  $166.77
Social Sec Assess Fee $50.00 $4.17 $0.00 $0.00 ) $0.00 $0.00
Water Line Ext. $50,000.00 $4,166.67  $20,460.00  $0.00 | _ _ ) - $20,460.00  $10,230.00
Sewer Line Ext. $25,000.00 $2,083.33 $0.00 $7,040.00 i | - $7,040.00  $3,520.00
Road Bore $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 - 0.0 $0.00
Director Per Diems $10,000.00 $833.33 $2,537.46 $554.10 [ 7 $3,091.56 $1,545.78
|Cap. Imp. - Impact Fee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ” | - | $0.00 $0.00
WTP - Repair/Expense $40,000.00 $3,333.33 $1,537.84  $2,998.81 , . - - 84553665  $2,26833
WWTP - Repair/Expense $45,000.00 $3,750.00 $0.00 $3,860.58 l $3,860.58  $1,930.29
R & M-Water $150,00000  $12,500.00  $34,570.93 @ $6,371.33 _ $40,942.26  $20471.13
R & M-Sewer $100,000.00 $8,333.33 $7,574.33 | $3,989.27 | - $11,563.60  $5,781.80
Sludge Sys mxnmamm $120,000.00 $10,000.00 $12, 196.60 | $12,601.05 _ B | $24,797.65 $12,398.83
Safety Equip Expense ~ $7,500.00 $625.00 $119.05 | $48452 - - | $603.57  $301.79
Contracted Services $300,000.00  $25,000.00  $48,790.00 | $28,300.00 | | | $77,090.00  $38,545.00
Inflow & Infiltration $250,000.00 $20,833.33 $0.00 $0.00 - | $0.00 $0.00
Water - Tap Expense $120,000.00  $10,000.00 $6,000.00 | $12,000.00 — - B + $18,000.00  $9,000.00
mms_m_. Tap Expense $120,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000. oc $11,000.00 C $16,000.00 $8,000.00
Cons Supplies & Mitrls. $3,500.00 $291.67 $1348 | $34526 - $358.74 $179.37
Testing (Employee Drug) $250.00 $20.83 $0.00 $53.00 | $53.00 $26.50
Telephone $13,000.00 $1,083.33 mu 74y | s8¢0 | - (v —+«¢4 'V 0 % 4y N - $2,384.17 $1,192.09
Mobile/Nextel Expense $4,500.00 $375.00 $197.99 = $7,488.12 — $7,686.11  $3,843.06
Tax Collection Expense $14,000.00 $1,166.67 $0.00 $1,723.21 o —Jli $1,723.21 $861.61
Uniform Expense $10,000.00 $833.33 $728.36 $965.38 o - $1,693.74 $846.87
Street Lights Exp $75,000.00 $6,250.00  $5827.32  $5780.67 _ - $11,607.99 $5,804.00
Sec/Lacks @ Entryways $8,000.00 $666.67 $0.00 $100.00 | B $100.00 $50.00
Waste Disposal $615,000.00 $51,250.00  $50,142.50 $49,587.99 ] - $99,730.49  $49,865.25
Utilities $100,000.00 $8,333.33 $8,827.68  $9,527.64 | | $18,35532  $9,177.66
TCEQ Permit $15,000.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 %000 - - | $0.00 $0.00
Water Assess. Fee $12,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 | - _ $000  $0.00
Lawn Service $15,000.00 $1,250.00 $1,300.00 $0.00 o | $1,300.00 $650.00
VED Expense $275,000.00  $22,916.67  $22,848.00 $21,816.00 — $44,664.00  $22,332.00
GCWA-Note Pymt $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 i 1 1 $0.00 $0.00
GCWA - Dist Sys - Cap-North ~ $22,000.00 $1,833.33 $1,894.78 = $1,894.78 , _ $3,789.56 $1,894.78
GCWA - Dist Sys - Cap-Byshr $16,000.00 $1,33333  $1,28554 | $1,285.54 | “ | - $2,571.08  $1,285.54
GCWA-Capital Charge $125,000.00 $10,416.67 mm 598.42 $9,598.42 | . _ e $19,196.84 $9,598.42
GCWA - Raw Witr Charge $205,000.00  $17,083.33  $17,250.16 | $17,250.16 - $34,500.32  $17,250.16
GCWA-Operating Budget  $160,000.00  $13,333.33  $13,545.27 | $13,545.27 ; $27,00054  $13,545.27
GCWA-Excess Water $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 | . $0.00 $0.00
GCWA-Line Repairs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ] $0.00 $0.00
Total Expenses $4,487,300.00 9373,941.67 5416,940.94 $366,044.09 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 6782,985.03 $391,492.52
Net Income $2,500.00 5208.33 -$59,097.74 | $9,091.89 | $0.00 $0.00 §0.002 of 2 $0.00 $0.00 $000  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  -$50,005.85  -$4,167.15




